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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 13 APRIL 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing Mr Seleka, ,  good morn ing 

every – Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  cor rec ted myse l f .   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The oath you  took yesterday Mr  S ingh 

wi l l  cont inue to  apply.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  f ine  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Okay le t  us  proceed.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Mr  S ingh thank you aga in  

for  your  ava i lab i l i t y  in  ass is t ing the commiss ion.   Yesterday 

we t raversed a couple of  –  wel l  qu i te  a  number  o f  i ssues 

regard ing the MSA and I  want  to  conc lude on that  MSA.    

I  was about  to  go to  what  is  the  legal  rev iew 

presented to  Eskom by CDH and that  dea l  spec i f i ca l ly  w i th  

the suspens ive cond i t ions amongst  o ther  th ings that  you 

were – you re fer red to  a  couple o f  t imes yesterday.  

But  before I  do that  Mr  S ingh I  want  to  p lace on 

record Chai rperson the a ff idav i t  that  I  read yesterday of  Mr  20 

Phakamani  that  that  mat ter  Eskom was the Appl icant  and 

Mr Phakamani  was an act ing Group Chief  Execut ive  o f  the  

Appl icant  when he deposed to  th is  a ff idav i t .   

So he was depos ing to  the aff idav i t  fo r  and on 

behal f  o f  Eskom.   So the requi rement  fo r  the Nat iona l  
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Treasury  that  we read about  yesterday is  ac tua l ly  Eskom’s  

pos i t ion and i f  Eskom says there  was no Nat iona l  Treasury  

approva l  that  means the cont ract  was a nu l l i t y  f rom 

incept ion which means the cont ract  never  came in to  

ex is tence Mr S ingh.  

And then i t  would  not  mat ter  whether  or  not  the 

suspens ive cond i t ions are fu l f i l led because i t  i s  ne i ther  

here  nor  there.  

Do you fo l low that  reasoning?  You – do you fo l low 

the reasoning and then you can comment  on what  your  10 

v iew is?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  maybe Mr Seleka maybe the – there 

was a cont ract  but  i t  never  came in to  opera t ion because 

for  i t  to  get  in to  opera t ion there were those condi t ions that  

needed to  be backed and there for  noth ing should  have 

been done under  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i r  I  am – I  remember  because the 

PFMA requi rement  i t  i s  a  leg is la t ive requi rement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So i f  –  i f  that  one is  not  obta ined at  the  20 

r ight  –  a t  the beginn ing the cont ract  accord ing to  the PFMA 

is  a  nu l l i ty  –  is  void  ab in i t io .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  the end i t  might  not  make much 

d i f fe rence whether  i t  was vo id  f rom the beginn ing or  i t  d id  

come in to  be ing but  d id  not  come in to  e ffect .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes wel l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And no –  and nobody ought  to  have acted 

under  i t  in  c i rcumstances  where the condi t ions had not  

been met .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so the Chai rperson has the 

suspens ive cond i t ions in  mind? 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  what  I  am – I  am – I  th ink you are 

ta lk ing about  or  is  that  –  was that  not  so?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh yes what  –  okay I  hear  what  the  

Chai rperson is  say ing.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  may be – I  may – I  may have missed 

someth ing.   The approva ls  were they not  the suspens ive 

cond i t ions? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the suspens ive condi t ions were 

d i f fe rent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We a t  Clause  3.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No then that  is  f ine.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then the PFMA was Clause 22.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No that  is  f ine.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chai rperson I  am sorry  to  
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in ter rupt .   I  –  I  hear  what  Mr  Seleka says at  th is  po in t  but  

w i th  the greatest  o f  respect  to  h im th is  is  not  the  issue to  

be dec ided here.   Th is  is  a  –  you are here to  in ter rogate  

wi th  the greates t  o f  respect  the  facts  that  appl ied at  the  

t ime whatever  pos i t ion Eskom current ly  takes ex post  fac to  

is  a  to ta l ly  d i f fe rent  s tory.  

 My understanding was a lways that  what  you need to  

do is  in ter rogate facts  that  app l ied at  the t ime and that  

people  can ass is t  you wi th  and deal  w i th  because o f  the i r  

knowledge at  tha t  po in t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the law as wel l  because you know 

people are a l leged to  have entered or  done cer ta in  th ings 

wi thout  cont racts  where they were supposed to  do them 

only  i f  there were cont racts .   What  –  what  –  where you 

might  have some po int  is  the fact  that  Eskom states a  

sect ion a cer ta in  fac tua l  pos i t ion does not  necessar i ly  

prec lude Mr Singh f rom sta t ing the factua l  pos i t ion as he 

unders tood i t  –  that  par t .   I  th ink  that  par t  may be a fa i r  

po in t .   Okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Thank you Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r ight .    Yes cont inue Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So there is  tha t  d is t inc t ion then 

because as I  sa id  to  you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   As you do so Mr  Seleka a lways remember  

that  as  I  understand i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  S ingh is  not  a  lawyer.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  o f  course by v i r tue of  h is  pos i t ion he  

knows some laws you know.   He knows someth ing about  –  

so –  so I  am jus t  say ing as you deal  w i th  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  bear  that  in  mind.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  –  ja  –  okay a l r ight .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Espec ia l ly  the  Pub l ic  F inance 

Management  Act  Mr  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As the Group Chief  Execut ive Off icer  –  

Ch ief  –  Ch ief  F inanc ia l  Off icer  you shou ld have a work ing 

knowledge of  that  Act  because i t  fa l l s  square ly  w i th in  your  

–  the purv iews o f  your  dut ies,  is  i t  not?  

MR SINGH:   Oh so 00:07:31 so wr i te  down the quest ion  

00:07:25.  (Mr  S ingh is  mumbl ing) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.   The Act  fa l ls  w i th in  the purv iews of  20 

your  dut ies is  i t  not?  

MR SINGH:   So – so ( inaudib le)  just  wanted that  quest ion  

not  the f i rs t  one?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   We wi l l  go to  that .  

MR SINGH:   Or  do you want  me to  respond to  the f i rs t  one 
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as we l l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no le t  –  I  th ink… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am say ing… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  S ingh –  Mr  Seleka is  ask ing you 

whether  you agree that  as  Chief  F inanc ia l  Off icer  o f  Eskom 

you would have been expected to  have a  work ing 

knowledge of  the  PFMA.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  I  wou ld agree wi th  that  but  I  wou ld  

qual i f y  that  by  say ing.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   That  I  wou ld  be expected to  have a work ing 

knowledge of  aspects  that  are appl icab le  to  my spec i f i c  

domain.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Which is  f inance hence I  sa id  Sect ion 54.2b 

for  example is  Cap i ta l  and Procurement  Capi ta l  Pro jec ts  

those are th ings that  negate that  enta i l  us that  we deal t  

w i th  a lmost  on a da i ly  bas is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR SINGH:   In  te rms of  procurement  and a l l  o f  these other  

aspects  Mr  Chai r  hence we have a very spec i f i c  funct ion  

wi th in  Eskom as wel l  as  Transnet .   We have a fu l ly  f ledged 

group legal  funct ion  as wel l  as  compl iance –  as wel l  as  a  

compl iance funct ion and they are  the ones that  are 
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capac i ta ted and accountab le in  te rms of  de legat ion o f  

author i ty  00:08:40 to  be ab le  to  deal  w i th  these spec i f i c  

mat ters  and as Mr Seleka sa id  Mr  Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t  does 

re fer  to  cer ta in  ind iv idua ls  f rom those spec i f i c  condi t ions.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rperson sorry  Mr  S ingh ’s  

vo ice is  coming over  very so f t ly  on th is  s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Yesterday the sound was up 

qu i te  h igh today i t  i s  qu i te  low.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay p lease … 10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   And i t  i s  impor tant  tha t  we hear  

what  he says th is  s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease – p lease speak up Mr S ingh 

maybe you can –  cou ld repeat  your  answer.  

MR SINGH:   So now the techn ica l  test .   Is  tha t  bet ter?  

Now? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR SINGH:   Okay.   So in  te rms of  the quest ion as i t  

re la tes  to  the PFMA being someth ing that  I  shou ld be 

par t icu lar ly  fami l ia r  w i th  Mr  Chai r  yes I  do concede that  i t  20 

is  someth ing that  I  am fami l ia r  wi th .   I  am fami l iar  w i th  the 

sect ions  of  the  PFMA that  app l ied to  me in  my spec i f i c  

da i ly  ac t iv i t ies as i t  re la tes to  the CFO.   Issues –  broader  

issues l i ke  procurement  and other  aspects  o f  the PFMA Mr  

Chai r  I  normal ly  le f t  to  the spec ia l is ts  and those are the 
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Group Legal  funct ions as wel l  as  the Legal  and Compl iance 

funct ions wi th in  the – both the organisat ions cer ta in ly  I  w i l l  

quote is  Eskom and Transnet .  

 They are spec i f i ca l ly  de legated those funct ions 

through the de legat ion of  author i ty  premise.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Mr  Singh.   But  c lear ly  the –  

th is  requ i rement  fo r  Nat ional  Treasury approval  the  team of  

wh ich you form par t  was aware of  i t .   I t  i s  c lear  f rom the 

documentat ion.  

MR SINGH:   By which documenta t ion makes i t?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The documentat ion in  the bundles.   The 

Steer ing Commit tee meet ings we can see that  you ta lk  

about  that  approva l  even on the 9 t h  o f  February  2016.  

MR SINGH:   In  the Steer ing Commit tee? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   Oh yes i t  i s  –  i t  says there  i t  has been 

obta ined.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Cor rect ,  cor rect .    

MR SINGH:   So i t  comes back to  th is  po in t  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Say again.  20 

MR SINGH:   Okay car ry  on you – I  –  you go ing to  make a  

po in t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  th is  is  what  I  want  to  do Mr S ingh 

Chai r  because I  do not  want  to  waste  t ime on th is  mat ter.   

I f  the – i f  the Nat ional  Treasury approva l  was not  obta ined 
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that  is  the one c lause of  the agreement  the agreement  then 

does not  s tar t  o ff  the b locks.    

 In  addi t ion  to  that  you have the suspens ive 

cond i t ions.   Those suspens ive cond i t ions i f  they are not  

fu l f i l led  as CDH and I  was about  to  go to  that  yesterday –  

as CDH found in  the i r  lega l  rev iew to  Eskom i t  on ly  serves  

as an aggravat ing factor.   But  i f  you say they were fu l f i l led 

as you do in  your  a ff idav i t  o f  yes terday i t  does not  change 

the fac t  that  the Treasury  approva l  because of  lack  thereof  

the agreement  cou ld not  have come in to  fo rce.   You 10 

unders tand what  I  am say ing? 

MR SINGH:   I  unders tand to ta l ly.   Do you want  me to  

respond? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes p lease.  

MR SINGH:   So f i rs t ly  Mr  Chai r  as I  sa id  to  you yesterday 

or  as  you cor rect ly  say today I  am not  a  lega l  person but  I  

w i l l  g ive  you my v iew for  what  i t  i s  wor th  and a lso  second ly  

Mr  Chai r  in  te rms of  cor rec t ion  to  Mr  Seleka as I  sa id  

yesterday when he s tar ted wi th  th is  top ic  these mat ters  are 

not  –  were not  w i th in  my personal  purv iew a t  the t ime.   I  20 

unders tood that  there was someth ing that  was happening 

but  they were not  in  my d i rect  in teract ions on a da i ly  bas is .   

Even i f  you look  at  the  af f idav i t  that  Mr  Koko had –  Mr  

Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t  tha t  Mr  Se leka had taken us through i t  

was Mr Koko that  was deal ing wi th  th is  mat ter  a t  a  la ter  
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meet ing that  he had ca l led wi th  Mr  Laher,  w i th  Mr  

Mabelane and wi th  Mr  Govender.   So f rom that  perspect ive  

that  team was deal ing.   Ul t imate ly  an ind iv idual  by  the 

name of  Mr  Ave Gor ie  who was f rom Procurement  engaged 

wi th  Nat ional  Treasury  to  obta in  the emai l  that  we 

obta ined.   Let  us  just  park there –  there for  now okay.  

 So that  is  the  context  wi th in  which I  g ive my 

feedback now.   So between then and now I  have come 

across a l l  o f  th is  in format ion which I  w i l l  now g ive you my 

v iew on and the reason why I  g ive you my v iew Mr Chai r  i s  10 

because the Par l iamentary  Inqui ry  ca l led on me to  prov ide 

that .  

 So that  is  how I  come across th is  in format ion.    

 F i rs t  po in t  to  make Mr Chai r  i s  tha t  Mr  Se leka is  

cor rec t  in  say ing that  Mr  Hadebe in  h is  a f f idav i t  acts  on 

behal f  o f  Eskom and prov ides a  v iew that  Eskom had a t  

th is  po in t  in  t ime.  

 S imi la r ly  Mr  Chai r  when I  s i t  here  and I  p rov ide an 

af f idav i t  I  was a lso an o ff ic ia l  o f  Eskom at  the t ime.   So I  

p rov ide you a vers ion of  –  o f  the  events  and the facts  that  20 

ex is ted at  the t ime.  

 So that  was Eskom’s v iew at  the  t ime.   I f  i t  was 

correct  a t  the t ime a l l  we l l  and good –  i f  i t  i s  now proven to  

be incor rect  then i t  i s  incorrect .   But  i t  i s  not  fo r  me to  say 

whether  i t  was r ight  or  wrong because that  is  not  my –  as 
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you say I  am not  a  lega l  person.   

 But  a l l  I  can te l l  you now is  I  knew of  the events 

that  occurred leading up to  and what  the Eskom pos i t ion 

was at  the t ime g iven the in format ion that  we had at  the 

t ime.  

 So Mr Chai r  in  te rms of  the Nat iona l  Treasury 

approva ls  Mr  Chai r  as I  sa id  and maybe we shou ld t ry  and 

f ind th is  emai l  o f  the 4 t h  o f  February.   Do we have i t  

somewhere in  the bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The what?  10 

MR SINGH:   The emai l  that  we rece ived f rom Nat ional  

Treasury  on the 4 t h  o f  February  2016? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes i t  i s  in  your  –  i t  i s  in  your  a ff idav i t  

o f  yesterday.  

MR SINGH:   D id  we put  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You quoted i t .  I  do  not  know whether  

you… 

MR SINGH:   I s  the emai l  there actua l ly?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rperson i t  i s  indeed in  the – 20 

an at tachment  to  the a ff idav i t  tha t  we produced.  

MR SINGH:   Submi t ted yesterday.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Yesterday and maybe i t  –  i t  i s  a  

good t ime just  to  make sure that  the a ff idav i t  i s  rece ived as 

an exhib i t  and you can then be re fer red to  spec i f i ca l ly  to  
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th is  annexure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  emai l  i s  that  Mr  Seleka?  I  am not  

sure what  the two of  you are  ta lk ing about .  

MR SINGH:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes… 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  i t  i s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You seem to be ta lk ing to  the two of  you 

between yourse lves on ly.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  i t  i s  the  emai l  that  Eskom re l ies  on –  

that  Eskom re l ied on at  the t ime.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And to  say what?  

MR SINGH:   To say that  i t  had the requi red author i ty  to  

enter  in to  the cont ract  re la t ive  to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  had requi re  –  i t  had the requi red 

approva ls? 

MR SINGH:   Approva ls  or  author i ty  or  s tand ing to  enter  

in to  a  r isk-base cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because… 

MR SINGH:   Wh ich is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Because author i ty  depending –  author i ty  20 

might  be someth ing d i f fe rent  f rom approva l .  

MR SINGH:   No hence – hence I  am say ing Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  jus t  depends.   Approva ls? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  you see th is  is  where I  th ink there is  

some leve l  o f  confus ion in  my mind i f  I  look at  what  has 
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happened.  

 Eskom re l ies or  Mr  Hadebe re l ies  on I  th ink Pract ice 

Note 1 okay wh ich requ i res an approva l  fo r  a  dev ia t ion  

which is  what  I  th ink Mr  Koko test i f ied to  in  te rms of  the 

document  he had s igned.  

 The emai l  that  we re fer red to  Mr  Chai r  i s  re ly ing I  

th ink on a d i f fe rent  Pract ice Note that  e ffect ive ly  a l lows for  

ent i t ies  such as th is  one to  a l low to  enter  in to  r isk  base 

cont racts  w i thout  a  dev ia t ion  necessar i ly  hav ing to  be 

sought  f rom Nat ional  Treasury.  10 

 So there  is  two d i f fe rent  schoo ls  o f  thought .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And are conf l i c t ing.  

MR SINGH:   Oh I  –  f rom what  I  can see I  th ink  that  is  what  

the – the prob lem is  Mr  Chai r.   And one seeks to  say l i s ten 

you have the – th is  schedule is  appl icab le  and there for  you 

can enter  in to  th is  cont ract .   That  is  the  emai l  that  we refer  

to .  

 What  Mr  Hadebe re l ies  on is  a  schedule that  

e f fect ive ly  says  you requi re  to  phys ica l ly  app ly  fo r  a  

dev ia t ion which in  that  case you would have do someth ing 20 

– submi t  someth ing to  them,  cons ider  i t  and then rece ive 

an appl icat ion for  an approval  or  a  non-approva l .  

 So in  my v iew I  th ink that  is  where the issue l ies 

and I  th ink  there for  I  am say ing Mr  Chai r  in  order  fo r  me to  

demonst rate  what  the pos i t ion was at  the  t ime when Eskom 



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 16 of 249 
 

be l ieved i t  had the requis i te  s tand ing –  le t  us  ca l l  i t  

s tand ing to  enter  in to  the r isk  base cont ract  th is  emai l  

p rov ides  that  con text .  

 So that  wou ld be for  the  issue of  whether  the PFMA 

was compl ied wi th  or  not  before  we get  to  the suspens ive 

cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Annexure AS8 at tached to  the 

af f idav i t  o f  yesterday just  to  make i t  easy Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Seleka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r  just  before  we got  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   What  Mr  Ano j  S ingh shou ld exp la in  to  

you Mr Anoj  to  the Chai rperson is  that  there was a  Pract ice 

Note as we read yesterday 2013/2014 of  the Nat ional  

Treasury  which on ly  a l lowed for  cont ract ing on a fee bas is  

not  r isk  based and Eskom had adopted that  Prac t ice Note  

on the i r  po l icy  fo r  procurement  and hence the in terna l  

people  were say ing that  you need to  obta in  Treasury  

approva l  i f  you want  to  dev ia te  f rom that  po l icy  o f  ours  f i rs t  20 

because we have adopted that  Pract ice  Note of  Nat iona l  

Treasury.  

 So that  is  what  Mr  Hadebe says,  that  is  what  Mr  

Anoj  should  know.  

MR SINGH:   No but… 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   That  tha t  is  the  – that  is  where the 

turn ing po in t  i s  Chai r.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  me just  understand that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Nat ional  Treasury  had issued an 

Ins t ruc t ion Note.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  had la id  down cer ta in  requi rements  

fo r  the appointment  o f  consu l tants  on a  fee bas is .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then –  but  they wanted that  is  Eskom 

wanted to  appoin t  McKinsey on a  r isk  bas is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So in  o ther  words the Inst ruct ion  Note on 

a fee bas is  would not  be appl icab le  to  a  r isk  bas is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes – yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In  the sense that  the r isk  base is  not  

catered for  in  tha t  inst ruct ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   So – but  the Inst ruct ion Note 

f rom Treasury  was understood to  deal  w i th  the 

appointments o f  consu l tants .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  you were go ing to  –  i f  you wish to  

appoint  consu l tants  not  on a fee bas is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  on some other  bas is  i t  was 

unders tood that  never the less you must  approach Nat iona l  

Treasury.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For  approva l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   For  approva l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes i f  –  because you are  dev ia t ing f rom 10 

a fee bas is  appo in tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You now want  to  do someth ing e lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Someth ing e lse ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Outs ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  Eskom had taken a s tep fur ther.   

They had adopted that  in to  the i r  po l icy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so – so in  o ther  words your  po in t  i s  

the appoin tment  o f  consul tants  both in  te rms o f  Nat iona l  

Treasury  Inst ruct ion and in  te rms of  Eskom pol ic ies was 

supposed to  be on a fee bas is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  you wanted to  do someth ing 

d i f fe rent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You needed –  i f  Eskom wanted to  do 

someth ing d i f fe rent  namely  appo in t  consul tants  on a bas is  

o ther  than a fee bas is  they needed to  approach Nat iona l  

Treasury.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For  approva l  to  do i t  that  way.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   To dev ia te  yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   To dev ia te.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  –  that  is  the po in t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  the po in t  Cha i r  and you f ind that  

exp l ic i t l y  in  the a ff idav i t  o f  Mr  Phakamani  Hadebe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And I  have just  for  the record .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And is  Mr  S ingh ’s  pos i t ion that  h is  

unders tanding was that  the – i f  Eskom wanted to  appoin t  

consu l tants  on a r isk  bas is  Eskom d id  not  need to  seek 20 

approva l  fo r  dev ia t ion as you understand i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes  that  he says they re l ied on that  

emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For  that  pos i t ion .  



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 20 of 249 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   From somebody at  Nat ional  Treasury.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   From somebody a t  Nat ional  Treasury.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is  –  is  tha t  the  emai l  he wanted 

to? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  that  is  the emai l  he  wants to  

re fer  the  Chai rperson to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So far  so good in  te rms o f  

unders tanding where you stand Mr S ingh namely i f  Eskom 

wanted to  appo in t  consul tants  on a bas is  o ther  than a fee 

bas is  was i t  your  understanding that  Eskom d id  not  need to  10 

obta in  approva ls  f rom Nat ional  Treasury? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  I  th ink  you are summar is ing i t  

cor rec t ly  but  I  jus t  need to  add one… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Addi t iona l  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  Mr  Se leka and I  th ink Mr Hadebe or  

Mr  Hadebe and Mr Seleka is  fo l lowing the i r  thumb tak ing a  

v iew of  conven ience to  say Pract ice  Note was c lear  cut  and  

was appl icab le .   R ight .   So in  –  f rom what  I  can unders tand 20 

in  the –  in  the documentat ion that  we current ly  have now 

but  th is  was not  a  c lear  cut  Inst ruct ion Note  that  was b lack 

and whi te  and was appl icab le  or  not .   There was some 

ambigui ty  as  to  whether  i t  was appl icab le  or  not .    

 Now yes terday when Mr  Seleka took us through Mr 
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Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t  and maybe we shou ld go there  – what  i s  

i t  again? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Say again.   Eskom Bundle 14.  

MR SINGH:   Yup.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   14(d) .  

MR SINGH:   14.    

CHAIRPERSON:   12(d) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   14(d) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.    10 

MR SINGH:   Oh so sor ry.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   14(d) .  Oh.   She says i t  i s  page 1193.  

MR SINGH:   I  00:25:27 – 11 – 1193? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Wel l  I  s tar ted reading f rom page 

1193 paragraph 78.1.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   So Mr Chai r  you wi l l  see and the –  the 

paragraph that  I  wou ld l i ke you to  go to  is  –  oh so page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry  f i rs t  o f  a l l  what  are  we look ing 

for  a t  page 1193? 

MR SINGH:   So that  is… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  what  you are ta lk ing about .  

MR SINGH:   Yes so th is  is  the a ff idav i t  I  was ta lk ing about  

Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   But  i f  you – i f  you move to  page 119… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   And whose a ff idav i t  i s  th is?  

MR SINGH:   Th is  is  Mr  Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .  

MR SINGH:   I f  we move to  page 1195 you see paragraph 

81 there  Mr Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I t  says there was a meet ing that  was ca l led  on 

or  about  27 October  by Mr Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Okay and 81.1 bas ica l ly  deals  w i th  the peop le  10 

that  were there  who are bas ica l ly  Mr  Mabelane Chie f  

Procurement  Off icer,  Mr  Govender  who was the Programme 

Di rector  on th is ,  Eskom’s  then Di rector  Group Capi ta l ,  two 

representat ives f rom Vikas – f rom McKinsey be ing Vikas 

and Dr  Weiss  and 81.2 deals  w i th  Mr  Laher  exp la in ing the 

ho ld-up in  the conc lus ion o f  the Master  Serv ices 

Agreement  re la t ing to  Nat iona l  Treasury  approval  wh ich 

again re la tes to  th is  mat ter  o f  the  f ixed fee versus the r isk  

base fee v is-a-v is  the Ins t ruc t ion Note  that  Mr  Seleka 

speaks to  that  found i ts  way in to  the Po l icy  document .  20 

 81.4 Mr  Chai r  i s  what  is  appl icab le  to  us.   81.4  

bas ica l ly  s ta tes:  

“Notwi thstand ing the fact  the  Mr Koko 

s igned the Inst ruct ion Note – I  mean s igns 

the Eskom Pol icy  that  gave e ffect  to  the 
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Ins t ruc t ion Note. ”  

He st i l l  then in  81.4 s ta tes:  

“Mr  Koko sta ted that  h is  in tent ion was to  

obta in  an externa l  op in ion on the mat ter. ”  

Okay.    

“McKinsey a lso  s ta ted that  they would  

prov ide the i r  own v iew about  whether  the 

remunerat ion model  was in  l ine wi th  

Nat iona l  Treasury inst ruc t ions or  not . ”  

Okay.   And Mr  Chai r  f rom there f lows two lega l  op in ions.   10 

One was obta ined f rom Advocate Kennedy SC and another  

one was obta ined f rom a lega l  f i rm Mazwai  At torneys.   

Okay.  

 The Mazwai  At torney op in ion I  th ink  was rece ived 

by – by  McKinsey and the Kennedy op in ion was rece ived 

by Eskom.   Okay.  

 So the Eskom op in ion f rom Kennedy –  f rom 

Advocate Kennedy Mr Chai r  ind icated that  he be l ieved at  

the  t ime that  the Inst ruct ion  Note  may have been 

appl icab le .   But  he a lso concedes that  there is  ambigu i ty  20 

as to  whether  i t  i s  app l icab le  or  not .  

 So I  th ink  he is  adv ise  was eventua l ly  yes you know 

engage wi th  Nat ional  Treasury  to  understand what  the 

s i tuat ion  is .  

 By that  t ime Mazwai  had g iven an op in ion and they 
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categor ica l ly  sa id  the – you do not  need to  get  approval .   

Okay.   So there  was th is  ambigu i ty.   So what  then 

happened Mr Chai r  subsequent  to  rece iv ing Kennedy ’s  –  

Advocate Kennedy ’s  op in ion as wel l  as Mazwai ’s  op in ion 

there was then in  December  i f  you reca l l  Mr  Mabelane 

issued the le t ter  o f  acceptance to  McKinsey and in  there  

Mr Chai r  he – he actua l ly  s ta tes  the nature  o f  th is  issue 

and what  Eskom’s  pos i t ion was at  the  t ime in  issu ing th is  

le t ter  o f  acceptance.  

 And i f  you want  to  Mr  Chai r  we can take you 10 

through i t  because I  th ink i t  i s  impor tant  fo r  you to  

unders tand the chrono logy o f  events  in  te rms of  what  has 

t ranspi red on th is  mat ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do we have those lega l  op in ions you are 

ta lk ing about  in  one of  the  bundles  by any chance? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  do  not  th ink we incorporated them in  

the bund les Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  I  know that  they  –  I  th ink  they are  

annexures or  maybe they f rom the – what  is  i t  they ca l l  i t  20 

the Record Bundle .  In  that  H igh Cour t  appl icat ion and we 

can – we can have them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They are ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   But  just  not  incorporated in  the 

bundles.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine,  okay,  a l r ight .   So they 

can be –  one cou ld  see them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  some s tage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .   You –  Mr  S ingh you were –  

you then wanted to  –  d id  you want  to  re fer  us to  the le t ter  

o f  acceptance? 10 

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chai r  I  wou ld  have – I  wou ld have l i ke  

to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So maybe actua l ly  Mr  Chai r  le t  us  just  use Mr 

Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t  i f  we then move to  page 1199.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1199 yes.  

MR SINGH:   Actua l ly  Mr  Chai r… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Does i t  quote  the le t te r  –  00:31:00 i t  

does.  20 

MR SINGH:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   87.1.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  fo r  –  fo r  conven ience at  th is  s tage 

whatever  i t  i s  wor th  paragraph 84 of  Mr  Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t  

deals  w i th  Advocate Pau l  Kennedy SC’s  op in ion and there 
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i s  a  –  they quote  a re levant  ex t rac t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   I f  i t  –  i f  i t  i s  he lp fu l  fo r  you S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bas ica l ly  the  op in ions are conf l i c t ing  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  because one is  fo r  Eskom by one of  

my co l leagues and the other  is  McKinsey sourc ing an 10 

op in ion f rom a law f i rm and they come to  a  d i f fe rent  

conc lus ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  S ingh for  the purposes of  the le t te r  

o f  acceptance that  is  in  Eskom Bundle 14.  

MR SINGH:   I  was jus t  go ing to  use – I  was just  go ing to  

use Mr Hadebe’s  a ff idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wi l l  you use that?  

MR SINGH:   Yes because i t  i s  wr i t ten – i t  i s  ac tua l ly  

quoted.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   But  I  th ink  the Chai rperson might  

want  to  have s ight  o f  the  le t ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja what  is  the page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 811.111 but  now Chai r  that  is  a  

d i f fe rent  Eskom Bundle.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  C.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay for  what  i t  i s  wor th  le t  me … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  that  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  have the acceptance le t ter.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   811.111.   And Chai r  as  you look a t  i t  we 

d id  obta in  the one – a copy s igned by McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  the contents  are  the same.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am not  sure I  unders tand the paragraph 10 

in  the le t te r  o f  acceptance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  ta lks about  a  cond i t ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  says:  

“ I t  i s  a  condi t ion o f  the acceptance that  

Eskom cons idered op in ion of  the  Nat iona l  

Treasury  inst ruct ion wi l l  ho ld  throughout  the  

l i fe  o f  the cont ract . ”  

I  do not  know what  Mr  Mabelane was t ry ing to  say there .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes a sen ior  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then the next  sentence says:  

“ In  an un l ike ly  eventua l i t y  that  the sa id  

op in ion is  conc lus ive ly  a l tered the par t ies  

hereby  agree to  rev iew the cont ract  
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payment  bas is  to  a f fec t  the rev ised 

op in ion. ”  

I  cannot  make head or  ta i l  what  he is  t ry ing to  say.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  I  a lso have not  –  as I  sa id  I  was not  

par ty  to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   I  know noth ing of  th is  a l l  I  can say is  th is  is  

what  the  pos i t ion  was at  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So 00:35:34 December  based on these two 10 

documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  –  but  you have got  to  –  how can you 

say th is  is  what  the pos i t ion was at  the t ime i f  you do not  

know what  i t  says the pos i t ion  is?  

MR SINGH:   We l l  Mr  Chai r  as I  sa id  I  qual i f ied by say ing I  

was not  par ty  to  i t  but  i f  you want  me to  g ive  you my v iew I  

w i l l  te l l  you what  ex is ted at  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  what  you unders tood i t  to  be.  

MR SINGH:   Unders tood i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja te l l  me what  you understood to  mean.  20 

MR SINGH:   We l l  Mr  Chai r  a t  the t ime as I  sa id  I  was not  

par ty  to  i t  so I  d id  not  know what  i t  meant .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR SINGH:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay wel l  i t  does not  he lp  then.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  –  I  –  maybe the –  maybe he jus t  

fo rmulated th is  paragraph ine legant ly  but  I  cannot  te l l  what  

he is  t ry ing to  say.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja Chai r  I  am not  go ing to  be ab le  to  

he lp  you because I  am equal ly  lost  by that  paragraph.  But  

as I  sa id  yesterday Mr Koko cut  a  long s tory  shor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH:   But  Mr  Chai r  before we go… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on Mr S ingh le t  Mr  Se leka f in ish.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes he cut  a  long s tory  shor t  and I  th ink  

he apprec ia ted the fact  that  the  conc lus ion of  th is  

agreement  requi red Nat ional  Treasury approval .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And he d id  not  have i t  and he sa id… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  was i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He sa id  so much here .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  was wrong to  conc lude th is  20 

agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .    

MR SINGH:   Who? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Koko.  
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MR SINGH:   No that  is  f ine but  you asked me for  my v iew 

so I  am g iv ing you my v iew Si r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No I  know that  but  you do not  have a  

v iew.  

MR SINGH:   No I  have a v iew.   I  do  not  00:36:41 I  have a  

v iew.   I  am te l l ing you my v iew.   At  the t ime Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id  not  have a v iew then.  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you have a  v iew now.  

MR SINGH:   Based on the in format ion that  I  see yes Mr 10 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja is  your  v iew about  what  th is  paragraph 

means or  is  i t  someth ing e lse?  

MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r  I  am tak ing you through the 

re levant  in format ion that  ex is ted and I  am br ing ing you to  a  

po in t  that  was one of  the – that  is  one of  the –  how can I  

say?  Per t inent  fac ts  that  you were need to  be aware o f  

that  ex is ted at  the t ime in  that  Mr  Mabelane issued th is  

le t ter  w i th  that  condi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  is  that  ja  te l l  me? 20 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  the paragraph you jus t  read in  the 

le t ter  o f  acceptance.   So i f  we then move on Mr Chai r  to  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wai t  the  Chai r  does not  fo l low you.   He 

is  re fer r ing  to  the paragraph Chai r  wh ich is  –  wh ich you 

jus t  read which we cannot  understand.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  no I  have read that  paragraph I  do not  

unders tand what  i t  means.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought  that  you wanted to  te l l  me what  

you th ink i t  means.  

MR SINGH:   Oh okay.   So Mr Chai r  I  can at tempt  to  te l l  

what  I  th ink i t  means now.   I f  you look at  –  i f  we go back to  

83.1 Mr Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   80? 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page? 10 

MR SINGH:   Page 1197.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1197 of?  

MR SINGH:   The same.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  Bundle D,  that  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   14(d) .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   14(d)  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   That  is  o f  Eskom Bundle 14(d) .  

MR SINGH:   D.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And page 1197.  

MR SINGH:   Yes .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   So we are a t  paragraph 83 –  83 83.1  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR SINGH:   So there  you see Mr  Chai r  on –  at  paragraph 
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83 i t  says:  

On 3  December  Mr  Benedic t  P i r i  McKinsey ’s  

assoc ia te  genera l  counse l  who is  the i r  head of  legal  I  

wou ld assume sent  an emai l  to  Mr  Govender  o f  Eskom and 

the cor respondent  read as fo l lows:  

In  essence they were seek ing for  Eskom to  –  

appeal ing to  Eskom’s  bravery  and they a lso  concede that  

th is  is  a  grey area in  te rms of  the  appl icab i l i t y  o f  th is  

Ins t ruc t ion Note and th is  is  where I  t ry  and – Mr Chai r  re fer  

the commiss ion to  two d i f ferent  inst ruct ing documents .  10 

So Mr  Seleka  re fers  to  a  Pract ice Note of  

2013/2014 Ins t ruct ion Note 1 am I  cor rect?  And i f  you then 

have regard  for  the – oh sorry  I  was s t i l l  exp la in ing why 

th is  th ing was there .  Sor ry  Chai r.  

So – so McKinsey a lso unders tands that  th is  is  a  

grey area Mr Chai r.   Now th is  is  a f ter  they have obta ined 

the Mazwai  op in ion.   Okay that  says the Inst ruct ion Note is  

now app l icab le .   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  le t  us –  le t  us t ry  and shor ten th is  i f  

we can.   Is  your  pos i t ion that  you cannot  say whether  or  20 

not  the conc lus ion of  th is  agreement  was lega l  –  was legal  

or  was lawfu l?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  that  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  i s  you g ive  me three minutes of  
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maximum.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   I  w i l l  –  I  w i l l  t ry  and conc lude th is  mat ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .  

MR SINGH:   Okay.   So my f i rs t  content ion Mr Chai r  i s  that  

we are compar ing two d i f fe rent  Ins t ruc t ion Notes.   2003 

Ins t ruc t ion Note 1 which is  what  Mr  Hadebe and Mr Seleka 

re l ies on and to  an extent  now Mr Koko.  

 But  i f  you move to  – one second Mr Chai r.    I f  you 

move to  paragraph 90 of  –  so  page 1202.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   90 you sa id .  

MR SINGH:   Paragraph 90.2 on page 1202.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry  what  paragraph? 

MR SINGH:   90.2.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  have got  i t .  

MR SINGH:   So you see there Mr  Chai r  i t  says:  

“On 4  February 2016 Mr  00:41:30 

responded s ta t ing that . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I t  says:  20 

“Pract ice Note 3 of  2003 is  s t i l l  app l icab le  

unt i l  rep laced wi th  a  new Ins t ruct ion a f ter  

the promulgat ion of  new Treasury  

regu lat ions.  The re ta iner  cont ingency 

pr inc ip les  are not  c lear ly  out l ined in  the 
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Pract ice  Note.   I f  you in tend app ly ing them 

you need to  do some fur ther  work to  ensure  

that  they do not  compromise the pr inc ip les 

of  217 and other  leg is la t ion. ”  

 Now th is  is  the emai l  I  was re fer r ing to  ear l ie r  Mr  

Chai r.   And Mr Chi t ty  Phango [? ]  Mr  Chai r  a lbe i t  that  Mr  

Hadebe bas ica l ly  down p lays h is  capac i ty  is  the Ch ie f  

D i rector  in  Nat ional  Treasury respons ib le  fo r  governance 

and moni tor ing? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  before you proceed you have the 10 

quotat ion in  90.2  what  do you understand i t  to  mean? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  f i rs t ly  i t  te l l s  us  that  there are  two 

d i f fe rent  documents that  are actua l ly  be ing used.   Mr  

Hadebe re l ies on Pract ice  Note 1 of  2013.   Th is  bas ica l l y  

re fers  to  Pract ice Note  3 of  2003 and i t  says i t  i s  s t i l l  

app l icab le  unt i l  rep laced wi th  a  new inst ruc t ion af ter  

promulgat ion of  the new Treasury  regulat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The Pract ice Note 3 of  2003 is  that  the  

one that  sa id  –  is  that  the one re la t ing to  the appoin tment  

o f  consu l tants  on a fee bas is?  20 

MR SINGH:   So Mr  Chai r  the Pract ice  Note  that  Mr  Hadebe 

and Mr  Seleka re l ies  on is  Pract ice  Note  1 of  2013/14 okay.   

Th is  is  Pract ice  Note 3 of  2013 which obv ious ly  precedes 

th is  Ins t ruct ion Note that  they re fer  to .   Th is  says that  2003 

Pract ice  Note 2003 is  s t i l l  app l icab le  and you can st i l l  
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remunerate on a r isk  bas is  g iven you do some stu f f .   

 So my f i rs t  po in t  i s  Mr  Chai r  i s  tha t  we are  

compar ing two d i f ferent  how can I  say –  enab l ing  or  

govern ing documents .   So I  am t ry ing to  say that  a t  the  

date when a l l  o f  th is  was t ranspi r ing  v is -a-v is  the actua l  

agreement  th is  is  what  Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  v iew was at  the 

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  I  go back to  my quest ion you 

remember  you sa id  in  th ree minutes t ime you would have 

made the po in t .   Is  your  pos i t ion  that  you are not  ab le  to  10 

say whether  the conclus ion of  th is  agreement  w i thout  the  

approva ls  in  te rms o f  the PFMA was lawfu l  o r  not?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  in  my v iew g iven th is  emai l  f rom 

Nat iona l  Treasury  I  be l ieve that  Eskom had the requi red 

s tand ing to  enter  in to  the app l icab le  cont ract  –  on the 

appl icab le  bas is  because i t  i s  c lear  that  the Inst ruct ion  

Note is  appl icab le  and so rep laced.   And Mr Chai r  a t  the  

t ime Mr Chi t ty  Phango [? ]  wou ld have been fu l ly  aware of  

the Ins t ruct ion Note that  Mr  Seleka re fers  to  because he 

was the – he would  have been the person that  issued the 20 

Ins t ruc t ion Note .   I t  would  not  have come f rom anybody 

e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So your  pos i t ion is  that  as far  as you are  

concerned i t  was lawfu l  i t  was proper? 

MR SINGH:   In  te rms – based on th is  emai l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Based on th is  ja .  

MR SINGH:   Emai l  f rom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   And what  Mr  S ingh 

shou ld have read to  you Chai r  i s  the page before.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which is  page 1201 paragraph 90 

because they seek ing th is  th ing af ter  they have purpor ted 

to  conc lude the agreement .   Paragraph 90 say:  

“Af ter  the Master  Serv ice Agreement  was 10 

s igned.  And i f  you take the a l legat ion that  i t  

was conc luded in  January  2016 Eskom 

made some at tempt  to  engage wi th  the 

Nat iona l  Treasury  a l though no approva l  was 

ever  secured. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry  you – d id  you say paragraph 

90? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   90 ja .   90.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Because Chai r  remember  as  you 20 

read.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink  – I  th ink you – the po in t  you 

make.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   When you re fer  to  th is  may be say ing but  
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here  i t  i s  sa id  that  no approval  was secured.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  unders tand h is  po in t  to  be d i f fe rent .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So – sor ry  Chai r  yes jus t  before that .   

That  a f te r  they s igned the agreement  and I  should add 

purpor ted to  conc lude the agreement  they then sought  –  

they took th is  s tep.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  the cont ract  requi res them to do the 

s tep before  they conc lude the agreement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  apprec ia te  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am say ing my unders tand ing of  what  Mr  

S ingh ’s  v iew is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  he is  say ing you can say whatever  

you want  to  say about  approvals .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Here  is  an emai l  f rom Treasury  –  

Nat iona l  Treasury.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And h is  understanding o f  tha t  emai l  i s  the  

agreement  cou ld be conc luded.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink that  is  h is  po in t .   So that  he says 
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whoever  sent  the emai l  wou ld have known about  whatever  

requ i rements .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who sent  the emai l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   As far  as Mr S ingh is  concerned 

everyth ing was proper  then.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No I  unders tand h is  pos i t ion .  

MR SINGH:   And Mr Chai r  in  response to  Mr  Se leka I  agree 

wi th  you  Mr Chai r  in  te rms o f  your  proposi t ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ar t icu la t ion of  not  my proposa l .  

MR SINGH:   Oh sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  terms o f  what  you are  say ing.  

MR SINGH:   Yes  in  terms of  what  I  am say ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   But  in  add i t ion to  that  Mr  Chai r  the reason for  

me to  h igh l ight  to  you the condi t ion  in  the le t te r  o f  

acceptance is  par t icu lar ly  for  th is  reason.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   I t  i s  because Eskom conc luded the le t te r  o f  20 

acceptance wi th  the v iew that  Nat iona l  Treasury inst ruct ion 

note  was not  approved.   The inst ruct ion  note that  Mr  

Hadebe and Mr  Seleka re l ies  on therefore that  cond i t ion 

found i ts  way there as  ambiguous as i t  i s .   So that  

empowered them to s ign on the basis  that  i t  was not  
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approved.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    To conf i rm that  i t  was not  appl icab le ,  they 

then engaged wi th  Treasury,  th rough th is  process that  

resu l ted in  Mr  Chevy Mfango ’s  response.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    And that  is  the pos i t ion I  take re la t ing to  th is  

po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay we can move on.   That  is  Eskom.   

Mr  Radebe’s  pos i t ion is  Eskom’s  pos i t ion .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  was at  Eskom at  the t ime as 

wel l ,  a t  some po in t  as wel l .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja,  but  we take note of  the  fact  tha t  

you are re ly ing . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    So g ive  me a cont ract  and I  w i l l  go  back to  

Eskom and then I  wi l l  you  my o ff ic ia l  pos i t ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Say again?  [ laughs]  20 

MR SINGH :    [No audib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What ,  you want  to  go back to  Eskom or  

what?  [ laughs]  

MR SINGH :    I  was just  say ing to  you,  i f  I  go back to  

Eskom then I  can g ive you an o ff ic ia l  pos i t ion as wel l .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .   Wel l . . .   Yes.   Now,  Mr  S ingh what  

you have sa id  to  the Chai rperson,  that  you d id  not  know 

these th ings at  the t ime.   You are re ly ing on them now 

when –  as you see them.    

MR SINGH :    But  you are now ask ing me a quest ion and I  

am responding to  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Why d id  you terminate th is  

agreement ,  by  the way?  10 

MR SINGH :    Sorry,  s i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    The MSA,  why d id  you terminate i t?   

The MSA was meant  to  be three years .   Ms Goodson,  when 

she s tar ts  a t  Tr i l l ian,  she  is  to ld  by  Mr Angel ,  C l ive Angel  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Again ,  I  was not  –  I  was hav ing a s ip  o f  

water.   So can you repeat?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.   I  was ask ing you.   Why d id  you 

terminate th is  MSA,  by the way?  Because i t  was meant  to  

be for  th ree years.   You terminated i t  hard ly  s ix  months 20 

in to  i t .   I t  was meant  to  be for  th ree years.   Ms Goodson 

sa id  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  hard ly  s ix  months f rom 

January 2016 or  f rom – or  October  2016 or  f rom 

June 2016? 
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ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is  cor rec t ,  Chai r.   That  is  –  

because Mr Singh ’s  vers ion has changed.   You know i t  has 

evo lved over  t ime,  Mr  S ingh?  Your  a ff idav i t  says 

January 2016,  is  the conc lus ion.   Yesterday,  you were 

adamant  i t  i s  31 March 2016,  the conc lus ion.   I  do not  

know on what  bas is .   And then we have mis ter  –  Dr  Weiss  

say ing he on ly  s igned in  October  2016.   But  assuming th is  

cont ract  was in  p lace and you purpor t  to  terminate i t  in  

June 2016.   Why d id  you terminate i t?  

MR SINGH :    [No audib le  rep ly ]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  f i rs t ly  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  me just  unders tand.   Where you say 

why d id  you terminate,  is  that  you as in  Mr  S ingh or  you as  

in  Eskom?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  maybe . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    He . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    No . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    He wi l l  c la r i f y.   Okay.   Mr  S ingh 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Let  h im c lar i fy,  Cha i r.  

MR SINGH :    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  your  answer,  wi l l  c la r i fy.   We wi l l  see 
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whether  you say why you are ask ing me.   I  d id  not  

te rminate anyth ing.   Or  whether  you say,  yes,  I  te rminated.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  th ink Mr S ingh knows.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    They made a submiss ion to  the BTC 

wi th  reasons to  te rminate .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So he –  the case that  you know,  

Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    So,  hence I  was go ing to  c lar i fy  that .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  the –  techn ica l ly  incorrect  to  say that  I  

d id  not  te rminate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You d id  not?  

MR SINGH :    I  d id  not  te rminate the agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  te rminate the agreement?  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    I  was not  the de legated author i ty  to  te rminate  

the agreement .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    The or ig ina l  dec is ion to  enter  in to  the 

agreement  was taken by the board and the commi t tee.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So the dec is ion to  terminate or  o therwise,  
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was sent  back  to  the board. . .  and the Board Tender  

Commit tee made a conc lus ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink f i rs t .   Before we go there.   I  

want  to  c lar i fy  that  I  am not  too  sure that  Mr  Seleka gets  

the changing o f  my vers ion.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Your  vo ice goes down.  

MR SINGH :    I  am say ing,  I  want  to  c lar i fy  tha t  I  am not  too 

sure where Mr Seleka f inds that  my vers ions have been 

changed.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    Because i f  you go . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  he sa id  your  a f f idav i t  sa id  the 

cont ract  was conc luded in  January.   And then he sa id ,  

yesterday you sa id  i t  was ,  what ,  31 March?  That  is  what  –  

how he sought  to  back up what  you are say ing.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Chai rperson,  I  am sor ry  to  

in ter rupt .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 20 

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Th is  is  not  what  Mr  S ingh sa id  

yesterday.   He never  s ta ted categor ica l ly  tha t  i t  was 

terminated by the 31 s t  o f  March but  to  put  that  propos i t ion 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  te rminated,  conc luded.   
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ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Or  conc luded.   He never  sa id  

that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    I t  i s  not  what  he sa id .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    And my learned f r iend should  

re f ra in  f rom put t ing s ta tements to  h im that  is  incor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  S ingh can cor rect  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    He can say but  I  d id  not  say that .   That  

w i l l  be . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    That  is  why I  am say ing Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you d id  not  say that .  

MR SINGH :    I  d id  not  say that  and he knows that .   I  sa id  

in  these  Steer ing Commit tee meet ing of . . .   I  th ink i t  was 

the second Steer ing Commit tee.   I  th ink there was a  

s l ight . . .  a t  that  s tep(?)  by the 31 s t  o f  March any cont rac t  

shou ld be conc luded,  the  cont rac t  shou ld  be s igned.   So I  

sa id  between 31 March and 28 June,  a t  some point  in  t ime,  20 

th is  cont ract  was then s igned based on the Eskom vers ion 

of  the facts  that  were there.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  course,  Mr  S ingh,  you have to  te l l  the  

t ru th  whatever  the t ru th  is ,  okay?  

MR SINGH :    [No audib le  rep ly ]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you are ab le  to  say  i f  hav ing in i t ia l l y  

sa id  in  your  a f f idav i t  the cont ract  was conc luded in 

January 2016 and la ter  on you sa id  i t  was conc luded in  –  

on the 31 s t  o f  March 2016.   I f  that  is  what  you sa id  that  

vers ion might  look in  a  cer ta in  way.   The vers ion you are  

put t ing now is  –  or  the vers ion now seems to  be:   Yes,  in  

the  a ff idav i t  I  sa id  i t  was conc luded in  January  2016 but  

r ight  now I  do not  know exact ly  when i t  was conc luded.   

Somewhere between the beginn ing of  2016 and mid-2016.   

Somewhere there.   Am I  r ight?  10 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Cha i rman,  I  have a prob lem wi th  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    When I  g ive  a  – when I  am requested to  

comment  on a  document  and they say here is  the  

document ,  what  do you have to  say about  i t?   So I  te l l  h im,  

based on what  I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no I  accept  that  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    No,  le t  me f in ish  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    Then I  get  Dr  Weiss  that  comes in  December  20 

that  says,  no,  th is  th ing was now . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    In  October.  

MR SINGH :    . . . in  October.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Now I  never  knew that  before  that ,  as I  
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tes t i f ied.   The f i rs t  t ime that  I  came to  know that  th is  

cont ract  was not  s igned a t  any po in t  was when they. . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Ja.   Wel l ,  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    So when – and even when I  come here ,  I  sa id  

to  –  I  say to  you the f i rs t  th ings.   These are not  th ings that  

were in  my – they were to  w i th in  my personal  knowledge.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    However,  i f  you want  me to  go to  them,  I  w i l l  

go to  them wi th  the in format ion that  I  have before me 

based on what  I  have seen thus far.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    I f  you br ing another  p iece of  in format ion to  

me tomorrow . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  i t  m ight  change.  

MR SINGH :    . . . ind ica t ing otherwise.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    I  concede to  the pos i t ion  that  I  have .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    So i t  i s  not  evo lv ing on the bas is  that  I  am 

being . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  changing in format ion.  

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  chang ing in format ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  do  not  need to  

be labour  the po in t  but  Mr  S ingh you do not  need the 
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vers ion of  Dr  Weiss  to  te l l  the Chai rperson when your,  

accord ing to  your  knowledge,  the  agreement  was 

conc luded because even wi th  Dr  Weiss ’ a ff idav i t  you have 

sa id  i t  was s igned in  January  2016.   Yesterday you sa id ,  

because of  Dr  Weiss ’ le t ter  o f  28 June,  then th is  

agreement  must  have been s igned between March and 

June 2016.  

MR SINGH :    But  Mr  Chai r,  again ,  i t  i s  coming back to  th is  

po in t  o f  what  in format ion.   As I  sa id  to  you.   When I  came 

in  –  the f i rs t  t ime I  came here  and I  was presented wi th  10 

th is .   I  th ink  Mr  Seleka asked me:   When was th is  th ing 

s igned?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    R ight .   And I  sa id  I  do not  know when i t  th is  

th ing. . .   I t  was the f i rs t  t ime that  I  heard of  the fact  that  

th is  th ing was not  s igned,  was when Dr  Weiss  was 

tes t i f y ing.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    So I  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i s  not  i t  a  fa i r  po in t  to  make,  20 

Mr S ingh,  the one I  th ink  you made yesterday that  you 

have persona l  knowledge of  Mr  Mabelane s igned.  

MR SINGH :    That  is  fa i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   So you have to  look at  what  

in format ion is  p laced there.   You were not  there  when he 



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 48 of 249 
 

s igned.   So you cannot  say that  is  the date that  he s igned.  

MR SINGH :    And hence,  Mr  Chai r,  I  take except ion to  the 

fac t  that  Se leka says my vers ion is  constant ly  changing.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    My vers ion is  not  constant ly  chang ing 

because of  the  in format ion that  is  p laced before me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Wel l ,  the in format ion changes,  you 

look at  i t  and say  i t  wou ld  a ffect  what  you say.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

MR SINGH :    I  mean,  o therwise,  I  am go ing to  s i t  here and 

I  am go ing to  say to  you:   Oh,  no i t  i s  s t i l l  s igned in  

January.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Yet  there is  a  le t te r  that  says  i t  s t i l l  in  

dra f t (?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no.   I  th ink  Mr S ingh,  the  impor tant  

th ing is .   You d id  say you have no persona l  knowledge 

when i t  was s igned.   So the person who can te l l  us  when 

actua l ly  i t  i s  s igned is  Mr  Mabelane.    20 

MR SINGH :    That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Dr  Weiss  has sa id  in  h is  a f f idav i t  

when he s igned.  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We do not  have an a ff idav i t  f rom 
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Mr  Mabelane,  Mr  Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    We have one of  h is  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  when he s igned.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  we are get t ing one f rom h im Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    There is  one.   There is  one on the 

issues but  he does not  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Deal  w i th  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .deal  w i th  th is  par t icu lar  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    So we have approached h im to  address 

th is  issue and . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja .   Okay a l r ight .   No,  that  is  f ine.   I  

th ink le t  us move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Thank you.   Mr  S ingh,  you d id  not  

ment ion the reasons why the terminat ion  was made.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  in  the-  I  th ink i t  was the th i rd  

BTC,  Steer ing Commit tee meet ing re la t ing  to  the master  

serv ice agreement ,  as  I  sa id  yes terday.   I t  was a c losed 

sess ion that  was ca l led .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry,  i t  i s  your  vo ice again .  

MR SINGH :    There  was a c losed sess ion that  was ca l led  to  

d iscuss the issue of  the  MSA.   And they were the issues 

re la t ing to  the le t te r  that  we have d iscussed yesterday,  the  

19 t h  o f  February  le t te r,  that  we were s t i l l . . .   And a t  that  
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s tage,  there  were a lso –  that  co inc ided wi th  that  Mr  Chai r,  

there was a s ign i f i cant  amount  o f  focus that  Nat ional  

Treasury  had s tar ted p lac ing on what  they ca l led  Sole 

Source Cont ract .    

 And So le Source bas ica l ly  means cont ract  that  

are p laced wi thout  an. . .   And there  was addi t ional  

gu idance,  there  was addi t ional  repor t ing requ i rements ,  

there was add i t ional  pract ise to  be cons idered and so on.   

So wi th  a l l  o f  those mat ters  –  even,  Mr  Chai r,  the  issue of  

the  contact  va lue at  tha t  s tage,  a lso  became a l i t t le  b i t  10 

more apparent  because be ing a r isk  p lace cont ract  I  do not  

th ink th is  cont ract  actua l ly  had a va lue that  anyone 

unders tood.    

 And I  th ink  Ms . . . [ ind is t inct ]  o r  Mos i lo (?) ,  I  th ink  

e luded to  the fac t  that  there was th is  cont ract  as b ig  as  ten  

b i l l ion or  twe lve b i l l ion  or  whatever  the. . .   So a l l  o f  those 

fac tors ,  Mr  Chai r  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  u l t imate ly  became one po in t  s ix  

b i l l ion.  

MR SINGH :    Sorry? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  u l t imate ly  became one po in t  s ix  

b i l l ion.  

MR SINGH :    No,  no.   Mr  Chai r,  what  I  am ta lk ing about  is  

the  potent ia l  had i t  las ted three years  would  have bas ica l ly  

gone to  a t  least  ten or  twe lve b i l l ion in  te rms of  the – th is  
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shar ing model  and obv ious ly  i f  the benef i ts  had been. . .   

G iven a l l  o f  these changes,  as wel l  as I  th ink Mr  Mabelane 

at  the t ime,  added an addi t iona l  concern that  was ra ised by 

the externa l  aud i tors  re la t ing to  the -  I  th ink i t  was the 

Corpora te Plan cont ract  or  even th is  cont ract .   I  am not  –  I  

th ink i t  may have been refer r ing to  th is  cont ract .    

 That  they had ra ised concerns regard ing the 

va l id i ty  o f  the fund(?)  in  te rms of  i t  potent ia l ly  be ing  

cons idered i r regular  expendi ture.   So a l l  o f  those issues 

and more par t icu lar ly,  I  th ink,  the concerns ra ised by the 10 

externa l  audi tors  were factored in to  the dec is ion.   And the 

recommendat ion was made to  the Board Tender  Commit tee 

to  cons ider  i t . . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  that  was a long answer.   I s  i t  no t  

poss ib le  fo r  you  to  say the reasons why the cont ract  was 

terminated were A,  B,  C?  

MR SINGH :    Okay,  Mr  Chai r,  i t  was A,  the issue of  the  

19 t h  o f  February le t te r  tha t  was d iscussed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on.   What  about  i t?   That  there  

have been no compl iance  or  what?  20 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  there as –  as I  sa id  yes terday –  

there was pret ty  much compl iance  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    . . . in  the terms of  the way they had responded 

to  the le t te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    But  I  do  not  th ink i t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You say they d id  not  comply  complete ly  

a t  some stage,  you sa id  so?  

MR SINGH :    Ja .   I  th ink ,  Mr  Chai r,  i t  was  more around the 

substance of  the whole  programme because when I  

rece ived  th is  Steer ing Commit tee mandate,  the concerns 

re la t ing to  the 19 t h  o f  February  le t te r,  i t  was re la t ing to  the 

programme that  I . . .  in  te rms of  the Steer  Co.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe le t  me ask the quest ion th is  way 10 

so that  we can e l iminate some th ings.   Was any of  the 

reasons,  assumingly  there  were two or  more reasons.  

MR SINGH :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Assuming – ja ,  assuming there  were two 

or  more reasons for  the terminat ion.   Was there any reason 

that  was based – that  re la ted to  what  McKinsey had done 

wrong?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Noth ing?  

MR SINGH :    No.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was just  Eskom’s own dec is ion based 

on cer ta in  reasons?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay what  were they?  

MR SINGH :    So,  bas ica l ly,  Mr  Chai r,  i f  we put  them in  
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o rder  o f  impor tance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    The f i rs t  one was the externa l  aud i tor ’s  v iew?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    The externa l  aud i tor ’s  v iew . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    . . .on the cont ract  i tse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the programme?  

MR SINGH :    On the programme.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

MR SINGH :    In  te rms of  the cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    And i ts  va l id i ty  and so on because i f  they had 

an issue wi th  i t  Mr  Chai r,  i t  would u l t imate ly  re f lect  as  

i r regular  expend i ture in  te rms of  the. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay the externa l  audi tors  had a  v iew 

which ind ica ted that  there was a r isk .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They would  f lag  i t  i r regu lar i ty.  

MR SINGH :    I r regular  expend i ture.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I r regu lar. . .   Ja ,  okay.   That  was one.  

MR SINGH :    That  was one.   And that  f lowed,  Mr  Chai r,  

f rom the increased focus that  Nat ional  Treasury was 

p lac ing on. . .   cont ract .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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MR SINGH :    R ight .   Which e i ther  –  so they were do ing i t  in  

two ways.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    They were do ing i t ,  f i rs t ly,  in  te rms of  

swind l ing(?)  the processes and procedures and grounds on 

which you cou ld actua l ly  do so le  sources in to  the fu ture.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  Nat ional  Treasury was 

quest ion ing whether  there was just i f i cat ion for  conc lud ing 

th is  cont ract  on a  so le  source bas is .  

MR SINGH :    No ,  par t icu lar ly  th is  one Mr Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  jus t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    They were issu ing gu idance and d i rect ives(?)  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    In  genera l?  

MR SINGH :    In  genera l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    That  was both backward look ing and forward 

look ing.   So the forward look ing s tu ff  was to  say:   L is ten,  

we want  to  s t rengthen these so le  source th ing because we 

th ink i t  i s  an area that  is  be ing abused.   For  now ins tead of  20 

jus t  comply ing wi th  two requ i rements ,  we now need to  

comply  wi th  ten.   Okay.    

 And the backward look ing s tu ff  was to  say:   

L is ten,  we may unders tand that  you have entered in to  

cont racts  before  on so le  source bas is .   Can you g ive us a  
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repor t  on these – on a per iod ic  bas is?  So i t  was another  

leve l  o f  moni tor ing that  was now happening.   So those two 

were the pr imary  reasons.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Reasons.   Okay.  

MR SINGH :    But  the . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is  the r isk  that  the  externa l  audi tors  

cou ld f lag i t  as an i r regular  expendi ture.  

MR SINGH :    I r regular  expend i ture.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Two.   That  the requ i rements  faced by 

Nat iona l  Treasury on the use of  so le  source cont racts .  10 

MR SINGH :    Cont racts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Both  in  te rms of  forward look ing 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    As wel l  as . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  k inds o f  th ings that  they wanted 

Eskom to . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Comply  wi th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .comply wi th  and as far  as  backward 

look ing,  as far  as  th ings . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Moni tor  . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . that  they wanted to  get  repor ts  on.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay a l r ight .   Mis ter  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    And then . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  
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MR SINGH :    And then,  Mr  Chai r,  obv ious ly  the va lue of  the 

cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    G iven those two issues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    A lso became a prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   A t  that  s tage,  was the va lue 

known?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  g iven these . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Requi rements.  10 

MR SINGH :    . . . these deve lopments ,  then we then had to  

have an answer  in  terms of  what  was th is  va lue.   Or  

cer ta in ly,  I  d id  not  know the va lue then(?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So then the va lue was then – then we have –  

then a  ca lcu la t ion was done and then I  had an 

unders tanding what  the va lue was.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And i t  was in  the reg ion o f  the ten or  twe lve 

b i l l ion that  has a l ready been . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Over  th ree years?  

MR SINGH :    Over  the three year  per iod.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Even that  va lue wi th  the two in i t ia l  concerns 

that  I  ra ised because a b i t  concern ing that  we were now 
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enter ing in to  th is  type o f  cont ract  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    . . . those – wi th  s ign i f i cant  exposure,  g iven the 

repor t ing requ i rements  and the potent ia l  i r regu lar  

expend i ture  that  th is  th ing cou ld lead to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

MR SINGH :    So those were the pr imary and as a  las t  one,  

okay,  I  th ink  we then d iscussed the issue of  the  responses 

that  McKinsey had g iven us but  not  in  the context  o f  

whether  McKinsey compl ied or  not .   Because as I  sa id  10 

yesterday.   In  pr inc ip le  they compl ied wi th  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    They sa id  yes to  everyth ing.   R ight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    The d iscuss ion was more around,  how do we 

actua l ly  –  i f  we have an ob ject ive of  the  18 top engineers 

and i f  we have an ob jec t ive  o f  the  18 empower ing 

consu l t ing or  empowered consu l t ing companies,  what  is  the 

best  way to  do that?  Is  i t  actua l ly  to  do,  you know,  a  

mass ive cont ract  w i th  one company?   20 

 Or  is  bet ter  to  actua l ly  g ive i t  to  a  number  o f  –  

se lect  f i ve or  s ix  or  seven or  whatever  the number  is .   And 

then t ry  and,  you know,  get  a  broader  based type o f  

implementat ion p lan for  economic  empowerment  ra ther  

than hav ing,  le t  us say,  one.    
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 So that  was more – the dec is ion – the d iscuss ion 

surrounded more the – how can I  say –  not  the – as I  sa id ,  

i t  was not  about  McKinsey whether  they compl ied or  not .   I t  

was more about ,  how does Eskom actua l ly  see i t  ac tua l ly  

p lay ing a ro le  in  ach iev ing those. . .  whether  i t  be through 

one b ig  bang approach or  whether  i t  be  through smal le r  

in i t ia t ives.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  as  wi th  regard  to  compl iance,  wh i le  

on the one hand,  you d id  say  yesterday by v i r tue of  

McKinsey ’s  response to  your  le t te r  o f  the  19 t h  o f  February.    10 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You took the v iew or  Eskom took the  

v iew that  they were comply ing or  they had compl ied but  

you d id  say that  la ter  you were not  sat is f ied or  Eskom was 

not  sat is f ied about  a t  least  one requ i rement  i f  I  am not  

mis taken.  

MR SINGH :    No,  no Mr Chai r.   My feedback to  the 

Commiss ion.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    In  pr inc ip le  they had compl ied in  a  response 20 

to  the le t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    But  a t  the subsequent  Steer  Co we had a  

d iscuss ion re la t ing to  the le t ter.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR SINGH :    And the e lements of  the le t ter.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Which is  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    E lements  o f  the i r  response 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    My . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .o f  your  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    No ,  the i r  response.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    And th is  is  the meet ing that  I  was re fer r ing 10 

to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Where we d iscussed the broader  aspects  o f  

how implementat ion of  a  programme of  th is  nature  cou ld be 

cons idered.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Given the current  env i ronment  we are f ind ing  

ourse lves in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So that  was d iscussed,  not  the  actua l  20 

compl iance or  non-compl iance o f  the issues that  were 

l i s ted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Seleka  ra ised the po in t  tha t  because the 

BEE quest ioned of  my le t te r  . . . [ in tervenes]   



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 60 of 249 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Had not  been f ina l ised.  

MR SINGH :    . . .had not  been f ina l ised.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    He  then says that  could  never  been va l id (?) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  I  thought  you agreed,  a t  some 

stage wi th  h im,  that  that  par t ,  namely  the issue of  SDL 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because McKinsey never  conc luded any 

agreement  w i th  a  subcont ractor  in  te rms of  SDL and there  10 

was no compl iance in  that  regard.   But  you were say ing 

when Mr Mabelane s igned,  you do not  know what  

d iscuss ion may have ar isen wi th  regard to  that .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which may have led to  h im to  s ign.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you had no persona l  knowledge,  

yourse l f ,  that  the  SDL requi rement  was met .  

MR SINGH :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r,  that  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  the Chai rperson is  a lso correc t  in  

regard  to  the par t  wh ich is ,  even af ter  they had sent  you a  

response to  you,  Mr  S ingh,  la ter  you met  w i th  the Steer ing 
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Commit tee and you were not  sa t is f ied that  they have met  

a l l  your  requests .   You d id  say that  yesterday.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  le t  us  unders tand th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    The issue of  the 19 t h . . .   As you sa id  

yesterday,  the 19 t h  o f  February  le t te r  is  go ing to  be. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR SINGH :    I  understand Mr Seleka ’s  po in t  o f  v iew in  

te rms o f  focuss ing on the 19 t h  o f  February  le t te r  but  

Mr  Chai r,  aga in,  i t  i s  a  po in t  that  the Board Tender 10 

Commit tee de legated to  the Group Execut ive Techno logy 

and Commerc ia l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  but  Chai r.   Can I  ask Mr  S ingh 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    No,  no,  no.   Let  me . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on Mr S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Let  me. . .   Mr  Se leka th inks you might  

not  be go ing towards responding to  h is  quest ion.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Now I  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    He just  wants  us to  unders tand.   Yes,  

Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i rperson,  we have put  to  Mr  S ingh 

what  we remember  he sa id  yesterday.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He needs to  say:   Yes,  that  is  what  I  

sa id  or  that  is  not  what  I  sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay do you want  to  repeat  the quest ion  

maybe.  

MR SINGH :    That  is  not  what  I  sa id .  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on a  second.   Just  repeat  the 10 

quest ion  and then you answer  Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   What  we remember  Mr  S ingh is  

say ing is  that  they d id  respond to  h im.   He wrote the le t te r  

w i th  those bu l le t  po in ts  that  the  s ign ing of  the  proposed 

agreement  is  cont ingent  upon the successfu l  response to  

th is .   They responded.   And you sa id ,  however,  a f ter  the  

response,  you had a Steer ing Commit tee and you were not  

sat is f ied  that  they have successfu l ly  sat is f ied a l l  your  

requests .   That  is  what  you sa id .    

 And then I  sa id :   Wel l ,  that  is  the one par t ,  Mr  20 

S ingh.   The las t  par t  i s  what  the  Chai rperson sa id  to  you.   

Then I  went  fu r ther  to  say :   I  can even te l l  you there is  one 

in  par t icu lar  wh ich was not  sa t is f ied and that  was the SDL.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  that  is  not  what  I  am say ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  Mr  S ingh.  
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MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  your  quest ion is  –  seeks to  get  

conf i rmat ion f rom h im or  agreement  whether  he sa id  

someth ing or  not .   What  is  that  you want  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Correct .   Which is ,  Chai r,  that  even 

af ter  they had rece ived the responses f rom McKinsey in  a  

subsequent  meet ing o f  the Steer ing Commi t tee,  the  

Steer ing Commi t tee was not  comple te ly  sat is f ied that  they 

have answered a l l  the requests .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say that  yesterday,  Mr  S ingh?  10 

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  wou ld ask Mr  Seleka to  

c lar i fy  what  he is  actua l ly  ask ing.   In  what  he asked me a  

few minutes ago and what  he is  ask ing me now,  there  is  a  

d i f fe rence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no.   Just  focus on the last  one.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He says he unders tood you to  say 

yesterday.   A l though when you had looked at  McKinsey ’s  

response to  your  le t te r,  you had thought  that  McKinsey had 

sat is f ied  the requi rements.  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Subsequent ly,  in  a  meet ing –  I  th ink  you 

sa id  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    The Steer ing Commit tee.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  a  subsequent  meet ing of  the Steer ing 
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Commit tee,  the mat ter  was d iscussed and you,  that  is  the  

commit tee,  I  th ink . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .was not  sa t is f ied that  McKinsey had 

not  sat is f ied a l l  the requi rements.   So he wants  you to  

conf i rm whether  h is  reco l lec t ion  o f  what  you sa id  is  cor rec t  

or  not .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  cor rec t  to  the extent  that  I  was c lar i fy ing 

yesterday even the context  wi th in  which th is  Steer ing 10 

Commit tee d iscuss ion was happening.   And I  have c lar i f ied  

that  because you have a l lowed me an oppor tun i ty  to  c lar i fy  

that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no.   That  is  f ine.   At  least  that  i s  

c lar i f ied ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  take the . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sha l l  we take the . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . tea-break.   I  do  not  know whether  the 

pace is  f ine .   I  have a  fe l l ing the pace is  not  as  good as i t  

shou ld be but  you know that  bet ter  because you 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  te rms of  what  s t i l l  needs to  be deal t  

w i th  in  te rms of  Tegeta.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  the end,  we seek to  s t r ike a ba lance 

between do ing just ice to  the issues and not  be ing too s low.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  . . . [ in tervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  le t  us  take the tea-break and then 

when we resume . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . i f  there  is  someth ing to  f ina l ise  on the 

MSA,  do so but  we need to  get  to  Tegeta as soon as 

poss ib le .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay we – i t  i s  twenty past .   We wi l l  

take the tea ad journment .   We wi l l  resume at  twenty- f ive to  

twelve.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  S ingh,  le t  

me – t ime is  the enemy at  th is  s tage.   I  th ink  we are  

en joy ing your  ev idence but  we wi l l  have to  approach i t  

d i f fe rent ly.   So the terminat ion is  done on 16 June – by 

le t ter  dated 16 June 2016 for  the reason that  you have 

ar t icu la ted.    

 Those reasons,  Chai rperson,  are found in  the 

minutes.   Wel l ,  not  the extent  you have ment ioned them.   

The minutes of  Steer  Co you have ment ioned but  a lso  in  

the submiss ion that  was made to  the BTC.   Those are in  10 

the bund le ,  Cha i r.    

 Can you exp la in  to  the Chai rperson,  Mr  S ingh?  

Af ter  the  terminat ion in  June,  there  were –  there was a  

meet ing wi th  –  the meet ing of  the Steer  Commit tee,  a t  

least  in  August  2016 which s t i l l  inc luded Tr i l l ian and 

McKinsey.   What  was the reason for  that  fu r ther  

engagement  w i th  them?  

MR SINGH :    I  have lost  you at  the last  b i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    What  was the reason for  fur ther  

engaging wi th  Tr i l l ian and McKinsey af ter  the terminat ion  20 

of  the  MSA or  the purpor ted terminat ion on the  

16 t h  o f  June 2016? 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  the –  once the terminat ion was 

communicated to  McKinsey,  there was an understand ing 

that  –  or  not  an unders tand,  an agreement  –  that  i t  wou ld  
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make log ica l  sense for  the programmes to  reach a log ica l  

end po in t  on our  programme’s  in i t ia t ives wi th in  the 

programme to reach a log ica l  conc lus ion,  i f  you can ca l l  i t  

that ,  tha t  were a l ready in  progress .    

 So that  –  they . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So in  o ther  words,  there  was an 

agreement  that  cer ta in  work that  was in  progress shou ld be 

f ina l ised?  

MR SINGH :    Would  be f ina l ised and no new in i t ia t ives 

would be under taken.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    And I  th ink that  date,  I  th ink ,  Mr  Chai r,  was 

around somewhere in  Ju ly /August  i f  I  am not  mis taken.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.   Ja,  the las t  meet ing as we have 

i t ,  i s  the  4 t h  o f  August  2016.   Okay.   When Ms Matshepo 

was here,  she test i f ied that  when McKinsey dec ided to  

te rminate fur ther  d iscuss ion wi th  Tr i l l ian  for  the  purposes 

of  cons ider ing them as a subcont ractor  in  respect  o f  the  

MSA,  you were unhappy wi th  that  terminat ion  and you 

asked them to g ive  – you asked McKinsey to  g ive Tr i l l ian 20 

more t ime to  prov ide them wi th  documentat ion  that  was 

requ i red in  regard to  BEE and ownersh ip  o f  the ent i ty  but  

McKinsey was s teadfast  in  the i r  pos i t ion.   What  is  your  

comment  in  regard to  her  vers ion that  you were unhappy 

wi th  that  dec is ion? 
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MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  –  as I  tes t i f ied before .   I  th ink,  

Mr  Chai r,  the choice of  a  sub-cont ractor  re la tes  is  –  is  the  

prerogat ive of  the main cont ractor.   Eskom is  a  rec ip ient  o f  

that  outcome.   I  do  not  reca l l  be ing unhappy wi th  

McKinsey ’s  v iew as Dr  Weiss  has tes t i f ied.   We requested 

that  they prov ide us a l te rnat ives in  terms of  be ing ab le  to  

onboard a new suppl ier  [ ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Face the Chai rperson.   Ja .   D id  you 

hear,  Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  d id ,  ja .  10 

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  Mr  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  that  is  f ine.   Recal l  aga in  that  your  

–  that  le t te r  o f  the 19 February  spec i f i ca l ly  ment ioned the 

BEE par tner  (Regiments  Group)  and in  response to  that  

le t ter  Tr i l l ian – McKinsey ra ther,  sor ry,  ind ica ted that  they 

wi l l  not  subcont ract  w i th  Regiments  but  they wi l l  cons ider  

Tr i l l ian which was at  the t ime under  rev iew.   Is  there  

reason why –  wel l ,  I  know you deal t  w i th  –  I  th ink  you were 

exp la in ing the reason why you spec i f ied  Regiments  

yesterday,  is  that  r ight?  20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  do  not  know.   I  was not  t ry ing to  

spec i fy,  a l l  I  was  t ry ing to  do yes terday was to  re ference to  

the fac t  that  the opening paragraph re fers  to  the 

Regiments  Group and then the second sentence in  the 

paragraph re la tes to  incorporat ing or  u l t imate ly  moving 



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 69 of 249 
 

over  to  Tr i l l ian.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes but  not  those paragraphs,  I  am 

ta lk ing about  your  requests  to  Tr i l l ian – I  mean,  to  

McKinsey.   Number  4  was about  the deve lopment  o f  a  BEE 

par tner  (Regiments Group)  as regards the v is ions,  

asp i ra t ions,  yes.   Do you remember  that?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  that  is  my – I  am responding to  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    I  am say ing I  cannot  remember  why 

Regiments  Group was put  in to  paragraph 4  spec i f i ca l ly.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  you cannot  remember,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    But  I  d id  comment  on the fact  tha t  the  

opening paragraph,  the f i rs t  two sentences of  the open ing 

paragraphs of  the le t ter  re fers  to  Regiments Group and 

then u l t imate ly  t rans i t ion  to  Tr i l l ian.   I  th ink  that  is  what  

the le t te r  says.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  cor rect ,  the  opening s ta tement .   I  

am jus t  deal ing wi th  a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe rent  mat ter  and le t  me 

go fur ther  on that  because when I  read the aff idav i t  o f  Dr  

Weiss  and Mr  Amankwah,  I  see someth ing to  the e ffect  –  20 

and I  want  you to  comment  on that ,  that  you would have 

been the one who in t roduced or  suggested to  McKinsey to  

subcont ract  Reg iments f i rs t ly  when you were a t  Transnet  

and secondly  when they were at  Eskom.   I  am go ing to  

read that  to  you,  you can go to  –  Chai r,  we can go to  the 
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a f f idav i t  o f  f i rs t ly  Mr  Amankwah,  Eskom bundle 14(C)  page 

702.10.   Ass is t  Mr  S ingh there? 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  is  the page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    702.210.  

CHAIRPERSON :    702.210.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correct ,  Cha i r.   Paragraph 19.1.  

MR SINGH:    19 .1? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Do you have i t  there ,  Mr  S ingh?   

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    19 .1 ,  Mr  Amankwah:  10 

“When the above ascr ibed issues and conf l i c t  

deve loped wi th  Letsema. . . ”  

Are you there? 

“ . . .McKinsey began look ing for  a  new supply  

deve lopment  par tner  fo r  i t s  work at  Transnet .   In  

d iscuss ing potent ia l  a l te rnat ives to  Letsema,  Mr  

S ingh of  Transnet  noted the fact  that  Reg iments had 

per formed wel l  fo r  Transnet  in  past  work that  

Reg iments had done for  Transnet  t reasury funct ion.   

Reg iments ’ pr io r  work wi th  Transnet  was 20 

documented at  the t ime in  the company prof i le  that  

was g iven to  McKinsey as wel l  as  in  proposa ls  

submi t ted by McKinsey and Regiments to  Transnet . ”    

Do you have a comment  on th is ,  Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  Cha i r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:     Do you have a comment  on th is?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Chai r,  I  am jus t  t ry ing to  th ink what  is  

the best  way to  respond to  th is  s ta tement .   Mr  Chai r,  Mr  

Amankwah’s  vers ion o f  events is  very fa r  f rom rea l i t y  as I  

had no such in teract ions wi th  suggest ing Regiments  as a  

subcont ractor  to  McKinsey a t  any t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    Actua l ly  to  be qu i te  honest ,  Mr  Chai r,  the 

t ranscr ip ts  o f  Dr  F ine goes in to  great  deta i l  as  to  how 

Regiments ac tua l ly  ended up be ing a subcont ractor  o f  10 

McKinsey and i f  you want  to  go there,  we can go there ,  I  

th ink we shou ld got  there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  i t  i s  f ine,  that  is  your  response.  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  th ink I  am going to  go there because 

th is  is  an issue …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To Dr  F ine ’s  t ranscr ip ts?  

MR SINGH:    Or  h is  a f f idav i t  because I  am sure he is  

cover ing i t  in  h is  a f f idav i t  as we l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  we do not  have i t  here.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  th is  is  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  you say Dr  F ine ’s  a f f idav i t  o r  

ev idence says?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  Dr  F ine bas ica l ly  goes through a  

process  of  exp la in ing how Regiments was in t roduced to  

…[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Eskom.  

MR SINGH:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    McKinsey.  

MR SINGH:    To McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    Because Mr Amankwah’s  a l legat ion is  that  I  

suggested to  McKinsey that  they shou ld use Regiments.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Okay?  So f i rs t ly  I  am say ing Mr Amankwah’s  

a l legat ion is  not  based in  fact ,  he does not  suppor t  th is  10 

a l legat ion wi th  any p iece of  paper.  

 Second ly  I  am say ing that  both  Dr  F ine and Dr 

Weiss  go through some leve l  o f  deta i l  in  te rms of  how 

Regiments  became a subcont ractor  o f  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink I  have seen someth ing a long 

those l ines.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  one of  the a f f idav i ts .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:    I t  was par t  o f  the  money s t ream – Dr  Weiss,  

Dr  F ine and Miesza la were on the same day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Dr  Weiss ’ a ff idav i t  we have.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We had i t  yesterday.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we d id  have i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  a lso have a . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  can we go to  where he had done so?  

Can we go where Dr  Weiss  g ives a background of  how 

Regiments  was in t roduced to  McKinsey.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  everyone ’s  unders tanding is  tha t  he 

does do that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  am on that  page,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh okay,  maybe you can read i t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  page,  ja?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes ,  I  need us to  go there because I  

have another  quest ion.  

MR SINGH:    I  have not  f in ished wi th  th is  one,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes  but  le t  us  go there,  you w i l l  

cont inue.   Let  us go to  that  page where Dr  Weiss dea ls  

wi th  how Regiments was in t roduced to  McKinsey because 

you sa id  Dr  F ine or  Dr  Weiss  –  Mr S ingh,  is  that  r ight?   20 

You sa id  both of  them deal  a t  length wi th  how Regiments  

got  to  work wi th  McKinsey.  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink Dr  Weiss  does deal  w i th  some of  the 

aspects  re la t ing to  Transnet .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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MR SINGH:    And then Dr  F ine deals  wi th  i t  in  greater  

deta i l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Is  i t  f ine i f  we go to  wh ichever  one 

of  them or  you want  us  to  go to  both? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  for  present  purposes maybe 

the one for  Dr  F ine is  probably  bet ter.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  do we have Dr  F ine ’s  

a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  that  one,  Chai r,  not  in  the  bundle .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  in  any of  the bundles that  you have? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  but  i t  can be found somewhere? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  we do not  have i t  a t  a l l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  we can f ind  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  maybe i t  can be found for  la ter  

then.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  we can f ind  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  we wi l l  come to  i t .  

MR SINGH:    Sure,  no prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes,  cont inue,  Mr  Se leka? 

MR SINGH:    Last ly,  Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink in  one of  my 

af f idav i ts  I  a t tach a le t te r  tha t  –  and again,  Mr  Chai r,  
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fo rg ive  us but  we are responding to  a  mat ter  that  re la tes to  

Transnet  because th is  is  where he is  a l leg ing th is  

happened and the le t ter  that  I  sent  to  McKinsey c lear ly  

s ta tes – and I  th ink i t  i s  a  19 June le t te r  20-someth ing and 

I  th ink i t  i s  one o f  our  a f f idav i ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you would have sent  i t  wh i le  you 

were s t i l l  a t  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    At  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    And i t  c lear ly  s ta tes that  Transnet  accepts 10 

Regiments  as  subcont ractor  to  one of  the cont racts  –  I  

th ink i t  was a t ransact ion adv iser  cont ract  tha t  we had 

awarded them – based on Regiments ’ recommendat ions of  

Reg iments  as a subcont ractor .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  do you remember  where we can 

f ind your  le t ter?  

MR SINGH:    We can just  check  and in  one of  my a ff idav i ts  

[ ind is t inct  –  dropping vo ice]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  i f  i t  i s  not  found now we 

can come back to  i t  la ter  when somebody has found i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We wi l l  f ind i t ,  Mr  S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us cont inue in  the meant ime,  

we wi l l  come back to  i t  once somebody has found i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   But  i f  you read th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  

Amankwah and Mr  Singh,  is  tha t  not  a f te r  the  fact  because 

when you read the a ff idav i t  there seems to  be a  proposal  

by you that  Reg iments should be McKinsey ’s  subcont ractor  

and then a document  is  prov ided to  them.   He says:  

“Reg iments ’ p r io r  work wi th  Transnet  was 

documented at  the t ime in  the company prof i le  that  

was g iven to  McKinsey. ”  

And I  do not  know – and then as a resu l t  o f  tha t ,  they 

would then put  a  proposa l  to  Transnet  –  I  pa in ted a  p ic ture ,  10 

you can comment  on i t  –  then they would put  a  proposa l  to  

Transnet  wi th  Regiments  as  the proposer  cont ract .   Then 

you wr i te  that  le t te r.   I s  that  not  how i t  happened? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink maybe we shou ld  in t roduce 

in to  the records the money f low sess ion that  w i l l  c la r i f y  

these quest ions.   The presenta t ion that  Mr  Amankwah is  

re fer r ing  to ,  I  can on ly  be l ieve re la tes to  the presentat ion 

that  was prov ided to  Mr  Sagar  that  then prov ided i t  to  

McKinsey and Mr Sagar  would  have rece ived that  f rom 

Regiments .   Why is  be ing assoc ia ted wi th  me in  any way,  20 

shape or  fo rm,  I  do  not  understand,  ye t  the  money f low 

work  s t ream has ev idence on i t  and has rece ived the exac t  

feedback that  I  jus t  gave you through an ev idence leader  

o f  your  own.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  le t  us  go to  Dr  Weiss ’ a ff idav i t .   
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In  the same bund le ,  page 693.  

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  Mr  Chai r,  just  before we move o ff  th is ,  

Mr  Amankwah’s  a ff idav i t ,  i f  you look a t  paragraph 19.3:  

“As noted by Dr  F ine in  h is  test imony before 

par l iament ,  McKinsey  conducted a  bas is  due 

d i l igence  o f  Regiments  pr io r  to  work ing wi th  them 

in  Transnet . ”  

Now i f  you compare that  to  Dr  Weiss ’ test imony and h is  

t ranscr ip ts  and Dr  F ine ’s  test imony and t ranscr ip ts ,  you 

would f ind that  I  do not  th ink they sa id  that  they d id  a  10 

bas ic  due d i l igence .  

CHAIRPERSON :    They d id . . .?  

MR SINGH:    I  am say ing you wi l l  f ind  that  I  do  not  th ink  

they wi l l  concur  that  a  bas ic  due d i l igence on Regiments  

was done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    As a l luded to  by Mr Amankwah in  paragraph 

19.3.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can I  move on? 20 

MR SINGH:    You can.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Dr  Weiss ’ a ff idav i t ,  page 693,  

paragraph 44.   Are you there ,  Cha i rperson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Paragraph 44,  th is  is  Dr  Weiss ’ 
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a f f idav i t .   He says:  

“ I  understand f rom my McKinsey co l leagues that  Mr  

S ingh had spoken pos i t i ve ly  about  engag ing 

Regiments a t  Eskom based on h is  exper ience wi th  

the i r  work a t  Transnet . ”  

He then goes on to  say:  

“ I t  was not  unusual  in  my exper ience for  execut ives 

to  deve lop op in ions on par t icu lar  f i rms based on the 

work they d id  than to  seek to  engage f i rms that  had 

per formed wel l  fo r  subsequent  pro jects . ”  10 

So there  aga in  seems to  be the same theme,  that  you 

spoke wel l  about  –  or  pos i t i ve ly  about  engag ing 

Regiments .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  again ,  I  am not  too  sure  what  rea l ly  

tu rns on th is  but  a t  the end of  the day,  Mr  Chai r,  I  spoke 

pos i t i ve ly  o f  a l l  and any  f i rms that  engaged wi th  me that  

actua l ly  d id  we l l .   So i f  i t  was Regiments  or  Letsema or  

PwC or  De lo i t tes  or  J  P Morgan or  whoever,  i f  they set  out  

to  do what  they were asked to  do and they d id  i t  p roper ly  

then yes,  i f  there  is  a  recommendat ion to  be made,  a  20 

recommendat ion would be made and Mr Weiss  actua l l y  

concedes,  he d id  not  see any issues wi th  i t  because i t  i s  a  

normal  th ing to  happen.   D id  I  say th is  w i th  a  speci f i c  

in tent ion  of  them engaging Regiments  or  Tr i l l ian as a  

subcont ractor?  No.   They of  the i r  own,  Dr  Weiss  and Dr  
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F ine.   Dr  F ine asser ts  to  the i r  c redent ia ls  a t  Transnet ,  Dr  

Weiss  re l ies  on those credent ia ls  that  they  had obta ined a t  

Transnet  to  engage wi th  them in  Eskom.    

So,  Mr  Chai r,  on the i r  own vers ion,  on McKinsey ’s  

own vers ion,  they were the ones that  dec ided who came 

across.   I  d id  not  in  any way,  shape or  fo rm in f luence 

anybody to  do anyth ing at  any s tage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So you were fami l ia r  w i th  Regiments  

f rom your  Transnet  dates.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were fami l ia r  w i th  Dr  Er ic  Wood.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  was qu i te  low.  

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  yes,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were fami l ia r  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

MR SINGH:    Not  as  i t  re la tes to  Regiments ,  no.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not?  

MR SINGH:    Not  as i t  re la tes to  any re la t ions that  he may 

or  may not  have had wi th  Regiments .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So in  what  re la t ion were you fami l ia r  

w i th  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  as  I  tes t i f ied before the 

Commiss ion,  under  the Transnet  work  s t ream I  had 

occas ion to  meet  Mr  Essa once or  tw ice but  that  was  
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…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Whi le  you were at  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  wh i le  I  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So do you remember  which year  

was that?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink ,  Mr  Cha i r,  you asked me that  quest ion 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Last  t ime.  

MR SINGH:    A lso  las t  t ime and I  sa id  to  you I  wou ld be 

guess ing i f  I  knew but  I  th ink  I  gave you a  date.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  we l l  I  cannot  remember.  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  i f  memory serves I  th ink  I  gave you a 

date of  2012 or  2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   So between 2012/2013 or  

thereabouts  unt i l  you le f t  Transnet  you had met  h im once 

or  tw ice.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Is  that  in  funct ions or  pr ivate ly  or  

a t  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    No,  no,  Mr  Chai r,  as I  test i f ied before  i t  was 20 

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was  the occas ion when –  was there  an 

occas ion when he was e i ther  your  o ff i ce  at  Transnet  or  

somebody or  Mr  Gama’s  o f f i ce  and …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    No,  no,  no,  Mr  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  was Mr Gama’s  ev idence.  

MR SINGH:    That  was Mr Gama’s ev idence o f  h im meet ing 

Mr Essa in  my off i ce.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay,  okay.   So that  was one of  the  

two? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  no,  no – ja ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Ja,  we wi l l  deal  w i th  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence 

la ter  on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.   But  you say f rom 10 

around 2012 or  ’13 up to  the t ime you le f t  Transnet  you 

had met  once or  tw ice? 

MR SINGH:    Once or  tw ice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You came to  know h im as the major i ty  

shareholder  in  Tr i l l ian when you were at  Eskom.  

MR SINGH:    Not  –  I  go t  to  know that  th rough the process 

of  the  McKinsey process when they became aware of  the 

fac t  that  Dr  Wood was engaging wi th  Mr  Essa and Mr Essa 

was in  fact  the major i ty.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    He – i t  has been tes t i f ied  here that  he 

was essent ia l ly  the ra inmaker  fo r  Tr i l l ian.   He would get  

Tr i l l ian to  be subcont ract  –  to  get  a  cont ract  w i th  an SOE 

or  a  s ta te  ent i ty  and he would get  them a major  cont ract ing 

par ty  for  Tr i l l ian to  be subcont rac ted to  or  for  Reg iments to  
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be subcont racted.   D id  you know that?  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  d id  not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  go  back to  your  one or  two 

occas ions wi th  h im whi le  you were at  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Were those bus iness encounters or  was 

i t  jus t… 

MR SINGH:    No,  as  I  tes t i f ied …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And were they p lanned or  were they not  

p lanned? 10 

MR SINGH:    I  am not  too sure,  Mr  Chai r  –  we l l ,  as  I  sa id ,  

i t  i s  very long t ime ago,  so I  am st ruggl ing to  reca l l  but  I  

do reca l l  tha t  I  d id  meet  h im.   But  they were bus iness-

re la ted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They were business- re la ted,  not  

persona l .  

MR SINGH:    They were bus iness- re la ted,  I  th ink  he was 

look ing for  –  to  promote h is  bus iness at  the t ime and I  

th ink he in t roduced h imse l f ,  he  in t roduced h is  bus iness  

credent ia ls  and I  tes t i f ied the last  t ime,  I  th ink ,  he had 20 

in terest  in  o i l  and gas or  someth ing or  o ther  that  t ime and I  

th ink that  was the extent  o f  our  engagement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  may be wrong but  I  seem to remember  

that  las t  t ime when you ta lked about  your  encounter  w i th 

h im or  one o f  your  encounters  wi th  h im i t  was outs ide 
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Transnet ,  i s  that  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    I t  was not  a t  the o f f i ce,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was not  a t  the o ff i ce,  ja .   On both  

occas ions,  i f  i t  i s  two or  not  one,  or  you…? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  do not  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  remember.  

MR SINGH:    I  cer ta in ly  do not  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you know that  one o f  them,  i f  there  

were two encounters,  one of  them was not  in  the of f ice.    

MR SINGH:    No,  no,  Mr  Chai r,  I  cer ta in ly  do not  reca l l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Hav ing Mr Essa or  enter ta in ing Mr Essa at  my 

of f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  your  o ff i ce ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    For  any meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    So i f  i t  was  one,  i t  was outs ide,  i f  i t  was two,  

i t  was outs ide.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  a l r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Commiss ion …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry,  Mr  Se leka.   And d id  you say 

those were not  p lanned meet ings in  the sense that  maybe 

you bumped in to  h im or  i t  was some funct ion and he was 

one of  the people  in  the funct ion? 

MR SINGH:    No,  no,  no.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Or  there was an ar rangement  to  meet .  

MR SINGH:    No,  i t  was a setup,  i t  was an ar rangement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was an ar rangement  to  meet .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And i t  would  have been the two o f  

you on ly  or  you cannot  remember? 

MR SINGH:    I f  I  reca l l  i t  was on ly  the two of  us .   I  d id  not  

reca l l  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no,  that  is  f ine.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Mr  S ingh,  h is  meet ing w i th  you as 10 

the CFO of  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  these meet ings? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Why meet ing you? 

MR SINGH:    I  do not  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you not  ask h im? 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  these meet ings are set  up and my o ff ice 

sets  them up and they  are set  up then I  a t tended to  

unders tand what  people would l i ke to  [ ind is t inc t  –  dropp ing 20 

vo ice]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Mr  S ingh,  I  mean,  you were a CFO 

of  Transnet ,  a  very b ig  s ta te  owned ent i ty,  you are not  

go ing to  jus t  go any meet ing as i f  you are not  busy.  

MR SINGH:    No,  no,  I  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You are on ly  go ing to  go to  a  meet ing i f  

when you look at  the reason for  the  meet ing you th ink  i t  i s  

impor tant ,  i s  i t  not?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  as  I  sa id ,  th is  is  l i ke s tu ff  that  

you are ask ing that  is  e ight  years ago,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry?  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  these are  meet ings that  ask that  

happened e ight  years ago.   I  do  not  even know what  the 

document  was that  he even brought  to  the meet ing.   So i t  

w i l l  be  h igh ly  i r regu lar  o f  me to  say wel l ,  I  went  to  a  10 

meet ing for  th is  spec i f i c  reason.   I f  I  met  h im on 15 

occas ions I  cou ld  te l l  you I  met  h im on 15 occas ions 

because there  was common theme for  us  to  meet .   But  in  

th is  case i t  was an arb i t ra ry  one or  two meet ings,  fo r  me to  

remember  why I  met  someone e ight  years ago for  a  s ing le  

meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  may wel l  be  that  i f  i t  was a  

s ing le  meet ing you would remember  than i f  i t  was many 

meet ings but  i t  may be that  i f  i t  was many meet ings but  

on ly  one them ran through the maybe,  you know?  But  you 20 

are  say ing you cannot  remember  now what  the reason was 

but  you accept  that  you must  have known then.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  def in i te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  the reason was.   H ’m.   Okay,  Mr  

Seleka? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Chai r,  I  see the screens are of f ,  I  do  

not  whether  the l igh t  broadcast  is  in ter rupted or. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The techn ic ians shou ld  te l l  us i f  there is  

a  prob lem.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Reverend is  not  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The Reverend is  not  here.   I  th ink  

somebody wi l l  te l l  us just  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Should  we proceed? 

CHAIRPERSON :    You may proceed.   Okay,  a l r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  S ingh,  pr io r  to  your  secondment  to  10 

Transnet ,  Ms Tsho lofe lo  Molefe was there.   She was 

approached or  in t roduced by one of  her  co l leagues Mr  

Col in  Mat j i la  to  Mr  Sal im Essa who sa id  there  is  a  company 

Regiments  that  can he lp  Eskom wi th  cash un lock ing 

in i t ia t ives in  the i r  ba lance sheet  .  

 Sa l im Essa and Mr  Er ic  Wood through Regiments ,  

they cou ld not  get  what  they wanted at  Eskom at  the t ime.   

We know that  Ms Molefe says she suspects  because of  her  

res is tance to  the i r  proposa l  i t  might  have been the reason 

why she was suspended and u l t imate ly  terminated a t  20 

Eskom or  separated f rom Eskom.   You have conceded that  

you in  fact  engaged McKinsey and Regiments  for  your  on 

board ing at  Eskom even before your  o ff i c ia l  s tar t  on the 1  

August  2015,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  we conceded that  the on board ing 
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was ar ranged and a t  the  behest  o f  McKinsey and Mr  Chai r,  

a lso ,  when we look at  th is  context  o f  the on board ing 

meet ings happening before my appointment  a t  Eskom,  Mr  

Chai r,  we have inc luded in  the a ff idav i t  tha t  we have 

submi t ted yesterday,  the of f ic ia l  announcement  o f  my 

appointment  a t  Eskom and that  was done on the 16 Ju ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say beginn ing of  Ju ly?  

MR SINGH:    16  Ju ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the 16 Ju ly.  

MR SINGH:    Ju ly,  2015.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    And that  was announced by the board of  

Eskom on that  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Chai r,  in  the context  o f  these on 

board ing sess ions,  g iven the fact  that  the announcement  o f  

my appo in tment  was made on the 16 Ju ly,  I  do not  be l ieve 

that  they are  actua l ly  i r regu lar  or  there was anyth ing 

untoward as Dr  Weiss  has test i f ied.  

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease speak up a b i t?  20 

MR SINGH:    Oh,  sor ry.   As Dr  Weiss  has tes t i f ied.   I t  i s  a  

normal  th ing that  they d id  wi th  Ms Tsho lo fe lo  Mole fe as  

wel l  a t  the t ime.   They d id  i t  to  a l l  the CEOs,  they  d id  i t  to  

a l l  the CFOs,  they would  have done i t  to  o ther  Group 

Execut ives as wel l ,  so  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Doing what?  

MR SINGH:    The on board ing,  Mr  Chai r,  the on board ing 

act iv i t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  us  unders tand what  you are  

ta lk ing about .   What  do you mean when you say on 

board ing?  I  mean,  i f  you are go ing to  –  i f  you are  be ing 

seconded to  Eskom,  your  own on board ing or  McKinsey ’s  

on board ing?  Which one are  you ta lk ing about?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  Mr  Se leka re fers  to  these meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  tha t  happened before …[ in tervenes]  10 

MR SINGH:    Pr io r  to  my …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Assume dut ies at  Eskom.  

MR SINGH:    Assumed ro le  to  Eskom.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    So I  am jus t  put t ing in  context  that  the  

meet ings happened in  the context  o f  McKinsey ’s  on 

board ing of  myse l f  re la t ing to  my ro le  a t  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  wel l  I  do  not  know what  you and Mr 

Seleka – how you and Mr Seleka are us ing the term on 

board ing,  i f  –  I  wou ld unders tand i f  you  ta lk  about  your  20 

own on board ing at  Eskom but  then i f  you  are ta lk ing about  

your  own on board ing a t  Eskom,  I  would  expect  that  to  be 

done by Eskom off ic ia ls  on board ing you.   I f  you ta lk  about  

McKinsey ’s  on board ing at  Eskom,  I  would expect  tha t  to  

be one by Eskom off ic ia ls .   I t  may wel l  be that  fo r  some 
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reason when i t  was known that  you would be go ing to  

Eskom you would a lso be – you cou ld be inc luded but  I  am 

not  sure  now when both of  you ta lk  about  on board ing,  

whose on board ing you are ta lk ing about .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can I  just  say someth ing? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Chai r,  I  am put t ing i t  in  Mr  S ingh ’s  

inver ted commas.   Insofar  as  he sa id  i t  was h is  own on 

board ing,  that  is  what  I  am say ing to  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Oh,  he has used the term.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes he has used that  te rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  we know that  the ev idence we 

rece ived  f rom a wi tness goes wider  than that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  I  am on ly  be ing spec i f i c  to  what  he 

sa id .   I  am us ing h is  concept  and he wi l l  exp la in  to  the 

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe le t  us  s tar t  here,  Mr  S ingh.   

Insofar  as you may be ta lk ing about  your  own on board ing 20 

at  Eskom,  you have heard what  my understanding would be 

i f  you ta lk  about  your  on board ing.   Is  your  understand ing 

d i f fe rent  f rom mine? 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  le t  us put  i t  th is  way.   The 

word on board ing,  I  impor t  f rom Dr  Weiss ’ t ranscr ip t  
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because he deals  w i th  what  he re fers  to  as these on 

board ing sess ions,  r ight?  

CHAIRPERSON :    And does he make i t  –  is  i t  c lear  f rom 

h is  ev idence who he was say ing was be ing on boarded,  

McKinsey or  yourse l f?  

MR SINGH:    I t  was – i t  i s  a  McKinsey term that  is  used to  

–  how can I  say. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  are they say ing they were on 

board ing you a t  Eskom.  

MR SINGH:    That  is  bas ica l ly  –  that  is  bas ica l ly  what  i t  i s ,  10 

Mr Chai r.   And that  was the context  o f  these meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  no wel l  I  wou ld expect  Eskom 

off ic ia ls  to  onboard you,  you know,  not  McKinsey.  

MR SINGH:    No,  as I  exp la ined to  you prev ious ly  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  tha t  is  h is  te rm.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.   But  as I  exp la ined to  you,  Mr  Chai r,  

p rev ious ly,  there  were a lso  those sess ions that  happened 

where Eskom ind iv idua ls  on boarded mysel f  wh i le  I  go t  –  

ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  bas ica l ly  f rom my unders tanding,  my 

reco l lect ion   o f  the ev idence,  rea l ly  there  was noth ing 

about  on board ing in  those d iscuss ions as far  as I  -  in  

te rms o f  my own understanding of  on board ing,  the  

d iscuss ions seem large ly  to  have been about  th is  is  what  
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we have in  mind for  Eskom,  you are go ing to  be CFO of  

Eskom,  what  is  your  take on th is  and that  and that  and you 

gave your  take.  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  you have an incor rect  

reco l lect ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  that  so? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    The on board ing sess ions,  Mr  Chai r,  were the 

– and maybe we shou ld put  th is  in to  context ,  Mr  Chai r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    We have an organisat ion that  is  in  c r is is .   We 

a l luded to  the fact  prev ious ly  that  in  January o f  2015,  they 

were rea l ly  in  a  deep cr is is ,  they  had load shedd ing,  the i r  

energy ava i lab i l i t y  factors  were l i ke at  69%.  The i r  coa l  

p r ices were esca la t ing  at  around 18%,  when in f la t ion  was 

around 4 to  5%.   The i r  new-bu i ld  programme was one,  

unfunded and two,  be ing schedule  and the i r  budgets were 

uncont ro l lab le .   They were burn ing d iese l  a t  a  ra te  o f  a  

b i l l ion rand a  month.   So,  Mr  Chai r,  that  is  the  env i ronment  20 

wi th in  which I  was f ind ing myse l f .   So these on board ing 

sess ions  sought  to  e levate those issues,  say these are the 

issues that  you are go ing to  be deal ing wi th ,  these are the 

issues that  we be l ieve caused these th ings.   So when you 

get  there,  be in  a  pos i t ion to  deal  wi th  them because these 
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a re  the root  causes o f  these issues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   What  does remain s t range,  o f  

course,  is  why that  should  be done by an outs ider  and that  

is  a  po in t  that  I  may have made last  t ime,  you know? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why that  shou ld not  be done by Eskom 

off ic ia ls  who are  a l ready at  Eskom for  somebody who is  a t  

Transnet  but  who wi l l  be jo in ing them as the i r  co l league.  

MR SINGH:    But  Mr  Chai r,  w i th  respect ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  deal t  

w i th  that  mat ter  and Dr  Weiss  on  h is  own aff idav i t  10 

concedes that  th is  is  normal  pract ice to  happen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why is  i t  normal  fo r  an outs ider  to  –  i f  

you are  – i f  I  have a house,  I  have a  fami ly  and somebody 

is  go ing to  jo in  us and stay  wi th  us,  why must  somebody 

e lse  not  f rom th is  fami ly  prepare h im to  say when you stay  

wi th  these people,  w i th  the Zondos,  th is  is  what  you must  

be ready for.   Why must  i t  not  be done by me? 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  somet imes that  is  why you need fami ly  

counse l l ing,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  no,  i t  i s  a  s t range th ing.   But  20 

anyway,  you have sa id  what  those sess ions were about .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Mr  S ingh,  i t  i s  in terest ing that  

the concept  –  you do not  seem to own that  concept .   So  
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what  do you ca l l  what  they were do ing wi th  you in  these 

sess ions?  You say i t  i s  McKinsey ’s  concept .   Wel l ,  what  do 

you say to  th is?  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  sa id  –  I  d id  not  say  i t  i s  McKinsey ’s  

concept ,  I  sa id  I  impor ted Dr  Weiss ’ word which  was on 

board ing sess ions.   I  sa id  on board ing sess ions are  

normal ,  I  have been –  I  have had sess ions wi th  a  number  

o f  peop le that  brought  new concepts  that  wanted to  ta lk  

about  Transnet  issues in  a l l  o f  those th ings.   There was in  

some way or  shape on board ing sess ion.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  but  just  last ly,  I  th ink your  

exp lanat ion of  what  they were say ing to  you is  exact ly  what  

the Chai rperson – how the Chai rperson was exp la in ing.   

They were p inpo in t ing what  you say there perce ived to  be 

cha l lenges at  Eskom and we know f rom Regiments ,  Ms 

Mothepu,  that  they were making proposa ls  to  you and some 

of  the proposa l  you wi l l  not  accept  and you would do the 

changes and you would then say  ja ,  th is  is  what  I  want  to  

focus on,  cor rect?  

MR SINGH:    But  not  in  Ju ly.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  in  Ju ly?  

MR SINGH:    Not  in  Ju ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When? 

MR SINGH:    Whenever  i t  happened,  I  do not  know when i t  

happened but  i t  was cer ta in ly  not  impl ied,  there was no 
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negot ia t ions that  were happening [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing 

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  i f  you do not  know when – i f  you 

do not  know when,  how do you deny Ju ly?  

MR SINGH:    Because the sess ions in  Ju ly  d id  not  have 

in i t ia t ives to  say  le t  us  move th is ,  le t  us  move th is ,  le t  us 

move th is .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  sor ry  to  in ter rupt .   

Maybe i f  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry?  10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you,  Chai rperson.   Maybe 

i f  Mr  Se leka knows when th is  happened he should  put  i t  to  

the wi tness.   I f  he is  in ter rogat ing that  issue,  say to  Mr  

S ingh on th is  day and th is  day accord ing to  Ms Mosi lo  

Mothepu,  th is  is  what  happened.   Let  h im then comment  on 

those dates,  not  specu late.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  we – no,  no,  but  we do know that  

Ms Mothepu sa id  i t  was e i ther  June or  Ju ly?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    June,  June.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  she sa id  June.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Mr S ingh would remember,  Mr  S ingh 

sa id  i t  was not  June i t  was Ju ly.  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms for  the meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  terms o f  the meet ings,  ja .  
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MR SINGH:    Yes.   And then Mr  Seleka put  to  me that  Ms 

Mothepu says that  I  was negot ia t ing.   So I  am ask ing when 

was I  negot ia t ing?  When was I  put t ing these th ings in  or  

tak ing them out?  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no,  Mr  Se leka has not  ta lk ing 

about  negot ia t ing  now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  is  r ight ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  ta lk  about  negot ia t ing then but  a l l  

he is  say ing now,  he says Ms Mothepu sa id  in  those 

meet ings the McKinsey people were making cer ta in  10 

proposa ls  fo r  you to  comment  on and she sa id  you were 

ind icat ing those that  you were not  happy wi th  and 

ind icat ing what  you had no prob lem wi th .   That  is  what  Mr  

Seleka says Ms Mothepu sa id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Are you say ing that  that  is  not  t rue as 

far  as you are concerned in  terms of  the Ju ly  meet ings? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  w i l l  repeat  once again,  as I  have 

done before,  that  Ms Mothepu ’s  reco l lect ion is  incorrect  

because i f  –  le t  us  for  one minute  suggest  that  Ms Mothepu 20 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  terms of  the content  o f  the d iscuss ion 

as opposed to  the month.   You a l ready sa id  June is  wrong.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  le t  us  dea l  w i th  June,  le t  us  

not  dea l  w i th  any  other  po in t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    Because Mothepu is  –  i f  Mothepu ’s  ev idence 

is  that  I  was do ing th is  in  June …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  we are done wi th  that ,  you d id  

deny that .  

MR SINGH:    No,  no,  le t  us  say Ju ly,  le t  us  deal  w i th 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  you sa id  meet ings happened in  Ju ly.  

MR SINGH:    In  Ju ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

MR SINGH:    Let  us deal  w i th  the content  o f  the Ju ly  

meet ing.   So am I  to  understand Ms Mothepu is  say ing that  

in  Ju ly  McKinsey made proposa ls ,  wh ich I  then re jected 

and I  requested other  th ings to  be put  in .   I s  that  what  the  

content ion is?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  do not  know whether  that  is  a  

content ion.  

MR SINGH:    No,  but  what  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  was put t ing  to  you her  vers ion.  

MR SINGH:    No,  so what  is  her  vers ion? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Exact ly  what  you have sa id .  

MR SINGH:    Okay.   So in  that  case,  Mr  Chai r,  I  deny that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Is  there a t ime when you say that  

d id  happen i f  i t  d id  not  happen in  Ju ly  or  are  you say ing i t  

never  happened even af ter  Ju ly?  
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MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Chai r,  post  that  –  I  mean,  for  

example ,  I  mean I  was requested to  comment  in  an 

af f idav i t  –  I  mean,  in  a  3 .3  not ice of  10.6 not ice around the 

fac t  tha t  there was an emai l  that  I  sent  to  Mr  Wood 

request ing h im to  look a t  some Duvha insurance c la im,  fo r  

example .   So that  was a request  that  I  made to  them.   So I  

made the request .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So is  the d i f fe rence there fore  between 

your  vers ion and Ms Mothepu ’s  vers ion in  th is  regard  apar t  

f rom whether  i t  was in  June,  whether  the meet ings were in  10 

June or  Ju ly,  i s  the d i f fe rence that  you accept  tha t  a t  some 

stage in  your  in teract ions wi th  McKinsey there was a  t ime 

where they would make proposa ls  and you would examine 

them,  the i r  mer i ts  and demer i ts ,  accept  some of  the i r  

p roposa ls ,  re ject  some but  you say that  happened af ter  you  

had assumed duty a t  Eskom and not  before and to  the 

extent  that  she  says that  happened before you assumed 

duty  you would deny that  par t .  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect ,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Wel l ,  I  w i l l  not  go to  Dr  Weiss  

about  negot ia t ions because you know he puts  i t  in  May,  

June,  that  they s tar ted around there  and that  was 

spec i f i ca l ly  about  the negot ia t ions.    

Mr  S ingh,  zooming back on Mr  Sa l im Essa,  you 
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wou ld have seen the t rave l  agents ’ a ff idav i ts  in  which they 

say you were in t roduced to  them by Mr Sa l im Essa in  2014.   

What  is  your  comment  on that?  

MR SINGH:    I  have no reco l lect ion of  that ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  do  

not  reca l l  Mr  Essa ever  in t roducing me to  a  t rave l  agent .   I  

used a  number  o f  t rave l  agents  to  t rave l ,  Travel  Exce l lence 

was one of  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Travel  Exce l lence is  one of  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He says Trave l  Exce l lence was not  one 

of  them,  is  that  r ight?  10 

MR SINGH:    No,  I  am say ing …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are  say ing is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say was one of  them? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you reca l l  how you came to  do 

bus iness wi th  them or  can you not  reca l l  how that  came 

about?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  Mr  Chai r,  I  cannot ,  my PA normal ly  20 

d id  lo ts  o f  s tu ff  fo r  me in  my persona l  capac i ty,  so i t  may 

have been here  that  recommended them,  I  am not . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Do you have a reco l lect ion o f  

when you may have s tar ted us ing them? 

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Chai r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Even in  te rms of  year  you cannot  

remember?  Okay,  a l r ight .   But  i t  wou ld not  have been 

before 2010 for  example? 

MR SINGH:    Not  f rom – no.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  wou ld have been af ter.  

MR SINGH:    Cer ta in ly,  def in i te ly,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   Mr  Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you have seen that  they  say they 

d id  your  f l ight  book ings f rom 2014,  there is  three f l ight  

book ings in  2014,  th ree f l ight  book ings in  20 …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you want  to  re fer  us  to  where that  is?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  can cer ta in ly  do that .   

Th is  is  Eskom bundle  18(B)  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Seleka,  le t  us  take seven minutes 

break,  just  a  shor t  ad journment .   Let  us  ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Chai r.   The aff idav i t  i s  

found on – Eskom bundle 18[b]  page 1565 po in t  one.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  there ’s  the aff idav i t  o f  Samira  

Sule iman?    

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  is  cor rect .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Samira Sule iman,  an adu l t  female 
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employed as a  t rave l  agent  work ing at  Double  Exce l lence 

t /a  Travel  Exce l lence,  and the re levant  passages in  

re la t ion to  Mr  S ingh are f rom page 1565 po in t  4 .   Are you 

there Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So I  –  th is  is  -  my summary was based 

on th is .   Mr  Essa in t roduced Mr Anoj  S ingh,  paragraph 20:  

“ In t roduced Mr S ingh to  me dur ing 2014.   I  had 

never  met  Mr  S ingh before  then.   From there 

onwards we had rece ived requests  f rom e i ther  Mr  10 

Essa,  a lso  Mr S ingh d i rect ly  to  book f l igh ts  f rom 

them.   The charges were a lways a l located to  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I ’m sorry  Mr  Seleka I  th ink you shou ld 

s tar t  w i th  what  she says her  re la t ionsh ip was wi th  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa.  

ADV SELEKA SC:  Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Before you go to  where he says,  she 

says Mr Essa in t roduced Mr Ano j  S ingh to  her.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cer ta in ly  Chai r  that  is  on page 1565 20 

po in t  3 ,  under  the head ing re la t ionsh ip wi th  Sal im Essa,  

and i t  s tar ts  a t  paragraph 15,  she wr i tes:  

“Whi ls t  I  was employed at  Harvey Wor ld  I  was 

in t roduced to  Mr  Sal im Essa,  whom I  then serv iced 

as a  c l ient .   Af ter  a  wh i le  many of  the employees,  
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inc lud ing myse l f ,  were  le t  to  go f rom Harvey Wor ld  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  th ink  she expla ins  ear l ier  that  

Harvey Wor ld  was a lso a t rave l  agency or  not?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ear l ie r  in  the a ff idav i t  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ear l ie r  in  the aff idav i t  does she not  

exp la in  that  Harvey Wor ld  was a lso a t rave l  agency? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  yes,  that  is  on page –  the page 

before,  the preceding page,  1565 po in t  2 ,  a t  the top of  the  

page,   10 

“background to  my re la t ionship  wi th  Ms Hal ima 

A lana,  both I  and Ms Hal ima Alana had been 

work ing in  the t rave l  indust ry  for  the las t  30 years.    

At  a  po in t  in  t ime both  I  and Ms A lana worked 

together  a t  a  t rave l  agency ca l led Sure Three Way 

Trave l .   I  la ter  went  on to  jo in  a  t rave l  agency 

named Harvey Wor ld  Travel  and Ms Alana le f t  to  

s tar t  up her  own t rave l  agency. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  that  su ff ic ient?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  that  is  su ff ic ient .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then go ing back to  page 1565 

poin t  3 ,  paragraph 16 . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh then just  to  connect  every th ing 

proper ly  then she says in  15:  
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“Whi ls t  I  was employed as Harvey Wor ld  . . . ”  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:     

“ . . . I  was in t roduced to  Mr  Sal im Essa,  Mr  Essa,  

whom I  then serv iced as a c l ien t . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can then take i t  f rom there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

“Af ter  a  wh i le  many of  the employees,  inc lud ing 10 

myse l f  were le t  go f rom Harvey Wor ld .   I  then 

contacted Ms A lana and jo ined her  a t  Trave l  

Exce l lence around June 2013.   Mr  Essa,  be ing my 

c l ient ,  fo l lowed me to  Trave l  Excel lence.   At  Travel  

Exce l lence I  usual ly  dea l t  wi th  Mr  Essa d i rec t ly.   I  

do not  be l ieve Ms Alana ever  dea l t  w i th  h im d i rect ly,  

a l though both Ms Alana and I  have access to  each 

other ’s  mai lboxes to  ensure that  we are ab le  to  

speed i ly  respond to  the requests  f rom c l ients .   Mr  

Essa had a s tanding account  w i th  us,  account  20 

number  300365 . . . ”  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no,  you ’ve got  less zero ’s  than –  i t  

i s  3000365.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

“Mr  Essa would usua l ly  e i ther  send me an emai l  or  
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he would phone me wi th  a  request  fo r  bookings.   

A l though Mr  Essa f requent ly  requested us to  book 

t ickets  fo r  o ther  peop le  we a lways a l located the 

t ransact ions to  h is  account  as we cons idered h im 

the guarantor  for  a l l  such  t rave l  book ings.   Mr  Essa 

usua l ly  cor responded wi th  us  be ing e i ther  h is  

sa l imessa@gmai l .com or  sa l im@globa l .co.za emai l  

address.    Mr  Essa ’s  secre tary  a lso  f requent ly  

cor responded wi th  us  us ing the Sal im@global .co.za 

emai l  address.   I  unfor tunate ly  cannot  remember  10 

her  name. ”   

And then the next  heading is  Trave l  Arrangements  for  Mr  

Anoj  S ingh,  I  suppose Mr  Anoj  S ingh  w i l l  have on 

knowledge of  tha t  in format ion I  read.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  how the two of  them met  and what  

ar rangements they had,  you wou ldn ’ t  know anyth ing about  

that ,  o r  wou ld you? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  do you know Ms Sami la  Sule iman? 

MR SINGH:   I  do Mr Chai r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then t rave l  a r rangements for  Mr  Anoj  

S ingh,  paragraph 20:  

“Mr  Essa in t roduced Mr  Ano j  S ingh to  me dur ing 

2014.   I  had never  met  Mr  S ingh before  then.   From 

there onwards we had rece ived requests  f rom e i ther  
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Mr  Essa or  f rom Mr  Singh d i rec t ly  to  book f l ights  for  

them.    The charges were a lways a l located to  Mr 

Essa ’s  account  number,  C000365.    I  set  out  be low 

as per  my records and reco l lect ion the book ings 

made for  Mr  S ingh s ince 2014.  

22.1  A booking was requested for  Mr  S ingh to  f l y  

f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg on 8 June 2014.   I  

cannot  reca l l  who made the request .   Mr  S ingh was 

issued wi th  t i cket  number  4875955176.   I  do not  

know how Mr  Singh f lew to  Dubai .   The to ta l  cost  10 

charged was R9 100.   The invo ice was addressed to  

Mr  S ingh a l though i t  was charged to  Mr  Essa ’s  

account .   I  cannot  reca l l  whether  I  spoke to  Mr  Essa 

or  Mr  S ingh but  one of  the two gent lemen phoned 

me to  te l l  me a  dr iver  would  be dropp ing o ff  money 

in  cash to  set t le  the invo ice,  wh ich indeed took 

p lace.   I  a t tach hereto the cash rece ip t  dated 16 

Ju ly  2014.   I  subsequent ly  depos i ted the money in to  

our  bank account  on the same day. ”  

Mr  S ingh are you ab le  to  conf i rm th is  . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

ADV VAN HEERDEN:   Chai rperson before . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   . . .or  comment  on i t?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN:    . . .before we cont inue wi th  th is  there  

is  an issue that  I  wou ld l i ke to  ra ise v is-a-v is  the aspect  o f  

the  – and I  know you are  ent i t led to  l i s ten to  hearsay 
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ev idence,  but  i t  re la tes d i rect ly  to  the issue of  what  he 

says about  Mr  Essa,  and maybe i t  would  be appropr ia te  to  

f i rs t  dea l  wi th  my learned f r iend f rom that  issue before I  

p lace i t  on  record ,  because most  probably  tak ing in to  

account  the way that  the Commiss ion invest igators shou ld 

opera te  I  wou ld assume they have done i t ,  so  i f  –  and I  

hate to  ask for  two or  th ree minutes,  but  le t  me f i rs t  dea l  

w i th  Mr  Seleka to  t ry  and see i f  i t  i s  done,  and then I  w i l l  

take an ins t ruc t ion as to  how to  deal  w i th  that  par t icu lar  

issue,  because I  th ink you can unders tand i t  impacts  10 

cer ta in  issues d i rect ly  re la t ing to  my c l ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAN HEERDEN:    Thank you Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you.   Mr  Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  I  th ink  the . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink you are say ing you would  dea l  

w i th  that  la ter,  i s  that  r ight?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN:   No Chai rperson I  th ink  –  I  want  to  

ask my learned f r iend about  i t  now,  because I  need to  

unders tand i f  someth ing has been done.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You would  l i ke  an ad journment?  

ADV VAN HEERDEN:   I  wou ld l i ke a  very  br ie f  

ad journment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  no that  is  f ine .    Le t ’s  take a – 

wel l  i t  m ight  a ffect ,  because I  th ink you are say ing i t  might  
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a f fect  a  lo t  o f  th ings,  okay le t  us  take that  shor t  

ad journment ,  we are  at  near ly  quar ter  to  one,  okay le t  us  

take the shor t  ad journment ,  g ive minutes.  

 We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we are at  f i ve to  one,  but  maybe 

le t ’s  do about  ten minutes or  so  or  f i f teen minutes and then 

we take the lunch break.  

ADV SELEKA:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA:   Ja,  I  accept  that ,  we have addressed the –  

or  to  move forwards,  i f  not  addressed but  we have agreed 

to  move forward.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ja ,  I  th ink  counse l  fo r  Mr  S ingh 

nods.   Ja,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Where ’s  my f i le?   Mr  S ingh 

I  was reading f rom that  f i le  18,  Eskom Bundle  18[b]  page 

1556 po in t  4 ,  I  have read paragraph 22,  we have 22.1 ,  

wh ich reads:  20 

“A book ing request  made for  Mr  S ingh to  f l y  f rom 

Dubai  to  Johannesburg on 8  June 2014.   I  cannot  

reca l l  who made the request .   Mr  S ingh was issued 

wi th  t i cket  number  . . . ”  

And I  have read that .  
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“ . . . I  do not  know . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sorry,  you had read to  22.1 and Mr 

S ingh was about  to  respond to  i t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correct  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  respond or  comment  Mr  

S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  S ingh,  I  th ink,  no I  am Mr S ingh,  but  I  am 

doing the same th ing that  I  d id  yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  I  do not  know whether  you are  

re fer r ing  to  Mr  Seleka or  to  me.  10 

MR SINGH:    Or  myse l f  sor ry  Mr  Chai r,  I  wou ld th ink  that  in  

order  for  us to  deal  w i th  th is ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  wou ld l i ke to  f i rs t  

deal  w i th  i t  ho l is t ica l ly  ra ther  than deal  w i th  each 

ind iv idual  i tem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  you want  to  g ive  a broad 

answer  and then we can see whether  we go to ,  

ja…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  and then we can see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  that  is  f ine ,  I  th ink  that  is  f ine.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink the f i rs t  po in t  that  we need 20 

to  make is  that  the nexus of  th is  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Su le iman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  you say the essence.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r  the  or ig ins o f  Ms Sule iman’s  

a f f idav i t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   
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MR SINGH:    Ar ises f rom a concern that  Mr  Koko ra ised to  

the Commiss ion v ia  a  v is  the a ff idav i t  o f  Ms Gal iema and I  

th ink you then d i rected the Commiss ion to  do fur ther  

invest igat ions,  i f  I  am not  mis taken,  wh ich then gave r ise 

to  th is  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know that  there  was the d iscuss ion  o f  

t rave l  agents  ev idence dur ing Mr  Koko ’s  ev idence,  but  I  

cannot  remember  whether  I  d i rect ly  sa id  anyth ing,  ja .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  anyway th is  bas ica l ly  comes about .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   10 

MR SINGH:    And one of  the issues Mr Chai r,  that  we can 

c lear ly  see in  Ms Sule iman’s  a f f idav i t  i s  that  she does 

concede that  the issue of  Mr  Koko was in  fact  an er ror.   

There was an er ror.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    There was a c lear  er ror  in  te rms o f  one of  the  

aspects  o f  Mr  Koko ’s  t rave l  documents  re la t ing to  Ms 

Gal iema’s  a ff idav i t .   So that  is  the f i rs t  le t  us say issue 

that  we have or  I  have wi th  Ms Sule iman’s  a f f idav i t  i s  that  

you wi l l  f ind that  i t  i s  r idd led wi th  incons is tency and I  20 

would say,  er rors ,  which I  wi l l  take you through.   

And the f i rs t  one I  would l i ke to  po in t  out  is  

obv ious ly  Mr  Koko ’s  admiss ion by Ms Sule iman that  the  

document  was incor rect .   Mr  Chai r,  i f  we  then go 

to…[ in tervene]  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry,  sor ry  Mr…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  I  wou ld  l i ke  Mr  Seleka to  remain  in  

the dr iver 's  s ta tus  as far  as  th is  but  a t  some poin t  you 

would be a l lowed to  make a l l  the po in ts  that  you want  to  

make.   But  I  th ink  for  now,  insofar  as there are er rors  in  Ms 

Sule iman’s  a ff idav i t  I  th ink  i t  may be enough for  you to  

s imply  say,  there  are  a  number  o f  e r rors  that  you have 

ident i f ied,  or  incons is tenc ies  or  cont rad ic t ions or  whatever  

i t  i s  in  her  a ff idav i t .   And la ter  on,  you wi l l  ident i fy  them 

and say what  do you make of  them.  10 

ADV VAN HEERDEN:    Chai rperson,  aga in sor ry.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAN HEERDEN:    I  th ink the reason why my c l ien t  

w ishes to  s tar t  there is  bas ica l ly  -  and I  do not  want  to  g ive  

ev idence on h is  behal f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV VAN HEERDEN:    What  he is  t ry ing to  say  is ,  inso far  

as you go ing to  re ly  on th is  a ff idav i t  and the annexures I  

have an issue wi th  i t ,  because there is  prob lems wi th  i t .   

 There is  prob lems wi th  the annexures,  there  is  20 

prob lems and you cannot  now ask me now to  comment  on 

someth ing where there is  c lear  prob lems wi th  i t  or  c lear  

issues w i th  i t .   I  want  to  exp la in  to  you why I  say you as 

the Evidence Leader  and your  invest iga tors cannot  re ly  on 

these documents .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No that  is  f ine,  I  th ink le t  us go po int  by  

po in t  but  i f  a t  the  end,  you say,  hav ing gone po in t  by po in t ,  

I  wou ld l i ke to  say the fo l lowing broadly,  that  is  f ine.   But  

a lso ,  as  we go po in t  by  po in t ,  you wi l l  fee l  f ree to  make 

whatever  po in ts  or  i f  you say,  we l l ,  I  am l is ten ing to  th is ,  I  

am not  admi t t ing i t .  

But  in  te rms of  the broad response I  w i l l  be say ing 

that  th is  ev idence in  th is  a ff idav i t  should  not  be re l ied upon 

because i t ' s  got  too many er rors  or  the annexures are  

r idd led wi th  con t rad ic t ions or  er rors .    10 

That  is  f ine ,  but  I  th ink  le t  us go p in t  by  po in t ,  as 

long as in  the end,  you wi l l  be ab le  to  make a l l  the po in ts  

you wish  to  there ,  okay.   Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Mr  S ingh there  in  

paragraph 22.1 we have asked you to  comment  on.  

MR SINGH:    Thank you,  Mr  Chai r  22.1 th is  re fers 

to…[ in tervene]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  is  page 1565.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  re la tes  to  a  book ing 

that…[ in tervene]  20 

MR SINGH:    8 t h  o f  June.  

CHAIRPERSON:    …she says,  was for  you to  f l y  f rom 

Dubai  to  Johannesburg on 8 June 2014.   

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And she annexures annexure SS1,  
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annexure SS2,  annexure SS3 and annexure SS4.   So you 

want  Mr  Seleka that  we go to  those before he responds to  

those annexures? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  wou ld l i ke h im to  comment  f i rs t  

on the content  o f  that  paragraph that  there was a  book ing 

for  you f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  maybe then you must  not  ask h im 

to  comment  on the paragraph in  genera l  you must  just  put  

spec i f i c  quest ions,  such as was there  a  book ing that  was 

made for  you to  f l y  f rom -  that  was made by Trave l  10 

Exce l lence for  you to  f l y  f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg on 8 

June 2014?  

He might  say yes there  was or  he says  I  do  not  

know what  they are ta lk ing about .   So i f  you want  h im to  

then maybe you jus t  ask h im spec i f i c  quest ions based on a 

par t icu lar  paragraph.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  S ingh that  

is  the quest ion then in  regard to  the factua l  a l legat ion  

made,  can you conf i rm or  not  that  there was a  book ing 

made for  you by Trave l  Exce l lence,  to  t rave l  f rom Dubai  to  20 

Johannesburg on 8 June 2014? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  deny that  th is  book ing was made 

on my inst ruct ion  or  on my beha l f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so you -  f rom what  you are say ing 
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I  th ink  you are say ing they may have made a  book ing but  

you d id  not  ask them to do i t .  

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you reca l l  you t rave l l ing f rom Dubai  

to  Johannesburg on the 8 t h  o f  June,  we l l…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  d id  you f ly  f rom Johannesburg,  f rom 

Dubai  to  Johannesburg on that  date,  i r respect ive of  who 

had made the book ing? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Chai r,  I  do not  reca l l ,  but  I  know that  

f rom the Transnet  work s t ream,  i t  wou ld appear  that  I  was 

on an o ff ic ia l  t r ip  dur ing th is  per iod of  t ime,  and I  had to  be 

and I  was -  I  th ink  the re turn leg was v ia  Dubai .   So I  

wou ld have t rave l led v ia  Dubai  on an o f f ic ia l  t r ip  back to  

South Af r ica .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay and you say you th ink  i t  wou ld 

have been on Transnet  bus iness? 

MR SINGH:    And Mr  Chai r,  based on the in format ion that  

has been g iven to  us by the Transnet  s t ream i t  wou ld  20 

appear  that  i t  would  have been o ff ic ia l  bus iness at  the 

t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    Then there  would have been no need for  th is  

t i cket .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and the book ings insofar  as  there 

was such a –  there  may have been a t r ip ,  the  book ing 

would have been made by -  would i t  have been made by 

Trave l  Exce l lence? 

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  s i r  i f?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Would the book ing insofar  as  you may 

have t rave l led  to  Dubai  on Transnet  bus iness on that  day,  

as you may have t rave l led f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg,  

wou ld Trave l  Excel lence have been invo lved in  mak ing your  

book ing?  10 

MR SINGH:    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  would  not  have and insofar  as  you 

may have been t rave l l ing for  Transnet  bus iness,  wou ld 

there have been a s tandard t rave l  agents that  Transnet  

wou ld use? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  s i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the name of  that  one?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  am not…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cannot  remember.  

MR SINGH:    I  cannot  remember.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    But  there would have been a  s tandard 

t rave l  agency.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  there would have been,  yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And therefore,  to  the extent  that  i f  

indeed you d id  t rave l  on Transnet  bus iness,  that  t rave l  
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agency may wel l  have records.  

MR SINGH:    May wel l  have records,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay.   

MR SINGH:    And hence I  am say ing I  do not  reca l l  mak ing 

th is  request .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  Mr  Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  th ink  Ms Sule iman herse l f  says 

she cannot  reca l l  who made the request  but  the book ing 

was for  you and I  th ink  that  is  what  we seek ing to  conf i rm 

wi th  you that  the book ing for  a  f l igh t  f rom Dubai  to  10 

Johannesburg was for  you,  on the 4 t h  o f  June 2014.  

MR SINGH:    The 8 t h .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    On June 2014.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  he has sa id ,  as  far  as  h is  

concerned,  he never  asked Trave l  Exce l lence,  to  make any 

book ing for  h im to  t rave l  f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg on 

that  date,  and I  unders tood you to  say and you must  te l l  

me i f  I  am wrong Mr S ingh.  

I  unders tood you to  imply  that  you never  author ised 20 

anybody to  ask Trave l  Exce l lence to  make a book ing for  

your  t rave l l ing  on that  occas ion.  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect ,  s i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then they  re fer  to  the cost  o f  that  
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wh ich the invo ice  was addressed to  you a l though i t  was 

charged to  Mr  Essa ’s  account ,  but  le t  us  dea l  w i th  the 

a l legat ion that  the invo ice was addressed to  you.   

Which is  SS2 on page 1565.13,  the a i r  t i cket  is  a lso 

on the page just  before that .   So that  invo ice,  what  do you 

say about  i t  Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  have never  rece ived th is  invo ice  

and as you wi l l  see,  Mr  Chai r  i t  ac tua l ly  says t icket  vo id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Where is  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    SS2.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yeah.   

MR SINGH:    In  the  route,  in  the  co lumn say ing route the 

th i rd  l ine ,  i t  says t icket  vo id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  i t  the invo ice or  the t icket?  

MR SINGH:    SS2 annexure.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  is  the document  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    At  1565.13.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes I  see where i t  says t icket  vo id .   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  see i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  the co lumn -  you see the vo id  there? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  have just  seen that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So what  do you say about  that?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  he  was say ing that  he,  as  I  

unders tood he never  asked Trave l  Exce l lence to  make th is  

book ing and he d id  not  ask anybody or  author ise  anybody 

to  ask Trave l  Exce l lence to  do that .   Is  that  r ight ,  Mr  

S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    That  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you were re fer r ing to  the fact  

that  i t  says t icket  vo id  as to  suggest  that…[ in tervene]  

MR SINGH:    There  was never  a  t rave l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There was never  -  i t  was not  used.   10 

MR SINGH:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  i f  i t  were  to  be found that  you d id  

actua l ly  t rave l  on the 8 t h  o f  June 2014,  f rom Dubai  to  

Johannesburg.   Of  course,  the quest ion that  wou ld ar ise is  

how Trave l  Excel lence would have known about  your  

t rave l l ing f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg.  

MR SINGH:    But  Mr  Chai r,  hence,  I  wanted to  pa in t  the  

p ic ture  for  you upf ront .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    But  i t  i s  f ine we wi l l  dea l  w i th  i t .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You wi l l  do i t ,  Ja but  bear  in  mind that  

quest ion .  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  but  these are  in  fac t  the incons is tenc ies  

that  you wi l l  f ind,  in  every  one of  these th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay.   
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MR SINGH:    I  mean,  fo r  example,  they a l locate th is  th ing 

to  Mr  Essa ’s  account ,  I  d id  not  inst ruct  any of  th is  to  

happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Say again? 

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  they a l locate i t  to  Mr  Essa ’s  account  o f  

C000365.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    I  never  issued an inst ruct ion to  p lease charge 

my s tu ff  to  Mr  Essa ’s  account .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  but  remember  that  on the i r  vers ion,  

on her  vers ion,  she says Mr Sa l im Essa in t roduced you to  

Ms Sule iman,  Mr  Sal im Essa on her  vers ion was keep ing 

an account  w i th  them,  was there  c l ient  and whenever  they 

made book ings that  re la ted to  you and other  peop le ,  I  th ink  

she says,  they a lways connected those book ings wi th  Mr  

Sal im Essa ’s  account  because he was seen by them as the 

guarantor  –  she put  that  in  quotes “guarantor ” ,  in  regard to  

those book ings.   

By which I  mean,  they must  have been th ink ing 20 

wel l ,  in  case th is  person does not  pay we wi l l  ta lk  to  Mr 

Sal im Essa to  say wel l  th is  is  somebody that  you 

in t roduced to  us  so now they are not  pay ing,  so  you must  

pay,  that  is  my unders tanding.  

MR SINGH:    No,  I  agree wi th  you Mr Chai r,  but  le t  us deal  
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w i th  that  mater,  that  aspect .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    That  you br ing up,  i f  Ms Osmond’s  vers ion 

re la t ing to  the guarantor  issue is  to  be correct .    Mr  Essa – 

okay dur ing th is  per iod o f  t ime,  he was in  the count ry  and 

he had an account ,  post  h im leav ing the count ry  I  do not  

th ink he s t i l l  has an account  w i th  Trave l  Exce l lence and 

ne i ther  I  wou ld th ink  that  Trave l  Exce l lence cont inues to  

extend h is  guarantee s ta tus  i f  i t  ever  ex is ted.   Yet ,  i f  I  had 

-  I  booked t ickets  w i th  them post  th is  per iod of  t ime and 10 

they s t i l l  a l lowed me to  have -  le t  us ca l l  i t  a  defer red 

payment  type of  ar rangement .   So who was guarantee ing 

my payments  a t  that  t ime,  when he was not  there? 

CHAIRPERSON:    So you are say ing that  a f te r  Mr Sa l im 

Essa had le f t  the count ry,  you have cont inued to  have 

deal ings wi th  them and ask them to  make book ings for  you.   

Is  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .   

CHAIRPERSON:    And when you make those book ings they 

invo ice  you,  I  assume,  and you pay?  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  you are  -  but  your  quest ion is ,  

how would  Mr Sa l im Essa be a guarantor  a f te r?  

MR SINGH:    Af ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  o f  course,  she is  deal ing here wi th  a  
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spec i f i c  t ime as I  unders tand i t ,  a  spec i f i c  t ime and I  do 

not  know whether  once he had le f t ,  they would s t i l l  say 

guarantor  you know,  and I  do not  even know whether  they 

sense of  guarantor  is  what  I  am th ink ing.   

But  she says in  her  own a ff idav i t ,  that  there are  

occas ions when you ca l led to  make ar rangements for  

payment .   She says so in  her  a f f idav i t ,  even dur ing those 

t imes and then I  th ink there are  occas ions  when she says,  

Mr  Sa l im Essa made payment  in  regard to  your  t rave l l ing ,  

ja .   Mr  Seleka.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Let  me ask  th is  quest ion Chai r  and 

then maybe we can take a  lunch  ad journment .   Mr  S ingh,  

when d id  Mr  Essa leave the count ry? 

MR SINGH:    I  have no idea.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have no idea.  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  i t  was repor ted in  the media  so that  is  

when I  guess we know about  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no,  Mr  S ingh you were te l l ing  the 

Chai rperson what  f rom a factua l  po in t  o f  v iew,  is  what  you 

want  to  convey to  h im.   That  a f te r  Mr  Essa le f t  the count ry  20 

who would  have served as the guarantor  for  the cost  

occas ion by your  f l ight  book ings.   

Now the quest ion is  per t inent  to  that ,  when do you 

say then to  the Chai rperson d id  Mr  Essa leave the count ry? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  was making genera l  s ta tement .  I  
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sa id  I  was making a genera l  s ta tement ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  do not  

know the exact  date when Mr Essa le f t  the count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you would  not  say you made 

book ings af ter  h im,  Mr  Sal im Essa had le f t .   You requested 

Trave l  Exce l lence to  make book ings for  you,  a f te r  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa had le f t ,  un less there  was a  po in t  that  you regarded 

as the po in t  when he le f t .   So I  th ink  Mr Seleka is  ask ing 

what  is  that  po in t .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Chai r  as  I  sa id ,  I  was making the 

comment  genera l ly,  I  rea l ly  do not  know the date on which 10 

he le f t  o r  purpor ted to  leave.   But  I  know that  I  have made 

t rave l  book ings -  I  do not  know how many but  I  have made 

tab le  book ings w i th  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you made t rave l  -  d id  you make 

t rave l  book ings w i th  Trave l  Exce l lence last  year?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  I  th ink  maybe one,  I  th ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe one? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And 2019,  do you reca l l  d id  you make 

any,  d id  you request  them to make any?  20 

MR SINGH:    Maybe,  one as wel l ,  one or  two maybe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe one as wel l ,  but  are you say ing 

that  you do not  have a  t ime that  you take as the t ime when 

Mr Sa l im Essa le f t?  

MR SINGH:    No.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  because that  seems on the face of  

th is  -  o f  i t  to  undermine the po in t  you were making.  

MR SINGH:    But  Mr  Chai r,  as  you were -  le t  us  say,  

moving back in  te rms of  your  t imel ine ,  in  terms of  say ing,  

d id  you book one las t  year  or  d id  you book one the year  

before.  

I  th ink that  is  the genera l  po in t  that  I  was t ry ing to  

make,  is  that  even as ear ly  as or  as la te  as  las t  year,  i f  I  

had booked wi th  them and i f  he  is  not  here ,  then who was 

guarantee.   So that  is  the po in t  tha t  I  was t ry ing to  make.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    But  do you regard  las t  year  as  a t ime 

when he had le f t  the count ry? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Chai r  based on media ,  i t  i s  common 

cause that  h is  le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  but  your  understanding is  that  he 

le f t  roundabout  when?  

MR SINGH:    Chai r,  I  would  not  specu late .   

CHAIRPERSON:    But  you say,  def in i te  las t  year  –  by  last  

year  he had le f t .   

MR SINGH:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    By beginn ing of  last  year,  maybe? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  wou ld  be specula t ing but  I  know,  

Mr  Chai r,  my po in t  that  I  am t ry ing to  make is ,  i f  i t  i s  that  

these guarantee fac i l i t ies  were what  were ava i lab le ,  I  am 

say ing I  d id  not  en joy  those fac i l i t ies  th rough Mr Essa.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r ight .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  Cha i r,  just  before  we adjourn .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And we wi l l  ad journ,  Mr  S ingh,  you 

then cannot  -  and I  th ink  you  have to  accept  that  you 

cannot  use the genera l  s ta tement  as a  po in t  o f  c r i t i c ism in  

re la t ion to  th is  a f f idav i t .  

MR SINGH:    No but  i f  you -  that  is  why I  sa id  -  that  is  why 

I  requested for  the Chai r,  to  a l low me the indu lgence of  

deal ing wi th  i t  ho l is t ica l ly.   So a l l  o f  these th ings wi l l  be  10 

put  in to  context ,  as we are go ing to  deal  w i th  these issues 

ind iv idual ly  and you are  go ing to  get  to  a  po in t  where you 

are  go ing to  ask me th is  quest ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  but  you are not  address ing what  I  

am saying to  you,  you cannot  use your  genera l  s ta tement ,  

wh ich you sa id  i t  i s  as a po in t  o f  c r i t i c ism in  re la t ion to  th is  

a f f idav i t .   Do you accept  that?  

MR SINGH:    I  accept  that  Mr  Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  we can take a lunch 

ad journment .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us take the lunch ad journment  

i t  i s  twenty  past  one,  we wi l l  resume at  twenty  pas t  two.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chairperson.  Chairperson I  

was conveying to Mr Singh and my learned fr iend that I  have 

endeavoured to obtain Mr Singh’s aff idavi t  to the Transnet 

work stream specif ical ly on his t ravels between Joburg and 

Dubai.   I  have arranged that the Chairperson’s bundle on the 

same be del ivered in due course I  would do the comparison 

between the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   What the agent is saying what Mr Singh 10 

has responded to the Eskom work stream.  The Transnet  

work stream. 

CHAIRPERSON:    Just  repeat that last  point .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In due course when we have the – when 

the Chairperson’s f i le is here I  have for  Mr Singh we wi l l  

then do the comparat ive speci f ical ly in the – in regard to the 

dates of  t ravel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh is there an aff idavi t  by Mr Singh 

detai l ing his off ic ial  f l ights whi le he was at  Transnet? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Those could be – and that aff idavi t  is  20 

submit ted to the commission under the Transnet work 

stream.  Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But just  for the sake of  c lar i ty Mr Singh 

with regard to paragraph 22.1 can we – can we take i t  that 

you are saying you did t ravel  f rom Dubai to Johannesburg on 
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that  date or around that date?  What you are denying is that 

you had asked Travel Excel lence to make that booking or 

that you had asked anybody to ask Travel Excel lence to 

make that booking, is that  correct? 

MR SINGH:   That is correct  Mr Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  So that  8 June 2014 Mr 

Singh.  Then the other aspect of  the paragraph which is the 

last  that is in re lat ion to the payment.   Ms Suleiman says: 

“ I  cannot recal l  whether I  spoke to Mr Essa 10 

or Mr Singh but  one of  the two gent lemen 

phoned me to tel l  me a dr iver would be 

dropping off  money in cash to sett le the 

invoice which indeed took place.  I  at tach 

hereto the cash receipt  dated 16 July 2014 

and that  is at tached as SS3 subsequent ly 

deposited the money into our bank account  

on the same date.”  

 So let  us go to SS3 on page 1565.14 and what we 

see there is a document she cal ls i t  a cash receipt  dated 16 20 

July 2014 your name appears there Mr Anoj Singh and the 

amount is wri t ten out in words nine thousand one hundred 

rand, invoice number,  the number is given 85A587236 and 

the amount in numerics R9100.00 cash paid to Samira.  

 Your comment on the al legat ions in this regard Mr 
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Singh? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  have not – I  have no recol lect ion of 

this invoice.  I  deny that  this invoice was made out to me.  

There wi l l  be no reason for me to pay for this invoice.  And 

Mr Chair  i f  you look at  the – the – sorry not the invoice the 

receipt .   Mr Chair  even i f  you look at  these receipts and they 

pervasive throughout they relat ively rudimentary receipts.   I  

could have got a receipt  book and wr i t ten this invoice mysel f  

I  mean receipt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay just  repeat  the point  you make about 10 

the receipts ja I  th ink your – t ry and speak up a bi t .    

MR SINGH:   I  said Mr Chair  I  denied that  this receipt  was 

made our in my name.  I  d id not receive this receipt .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I t  does not  bear any signature of  mine or the 

purported dr iver or anybody.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   From who this cash was purportedly received 

from. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:   Secondly Mr Chair  i f  I  denied the fact  that I  

request this booking to be made in the f i rst  place.  There is 

no reason for th is receipt  to be made out in my name. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no I  – I  understand that .   As I  

understand her evidence in her aff idavi t  she does say that 
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there were t imes when you would arrange with her that you 

would send a dr iver to give her cash to sett le some of the 

invoices.   Now you have said that you know her.   You have 

said that  you know Travel Excel lence.  You have said that 

you did make bookings – you did ask them to make bookings 

for you at  t imes because i t  may be that you also asked other 

agents at  other t imes.  Is that correct? 

MR SINGH:   That is correct  Mr Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Now in regard to those occasions 

when you had requested her to make bookings for  you would 10 

you receive invoices from her?  Would she send you invoices 

and would you receive them? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  th ink occasional ly I  would receive 

them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Via Whatsapp. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I f  I  recal l  correct ly but I  do not recal l  

( inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Okay but at  some stage or another 20 

you would know what you – what you owed them? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  And how did you pay them?  Did your 

method of  paying them ever include sending a dr iver to pay 

them in cash? 
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MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  certainly paid through voyager mi les 

sometimes there were credi t  card payments that I  had made. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   There was cash payments that I  made but I  do 

not recal l  my dr iver going to sett le any of  these.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is your recol lect ion that  al l  payments you 

made that include – included cash payments even i f  there 

were – or let  me ask were there some payments you made in 

cash? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  th ink I  recal l  some of them but I  do 10 

not recal l  which ones exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay and would you have any 

recol lect ion as to whether i t  was something qui te usual for  

you to do namely to pay in cash even though sometimes you 

paid by other means? 

MR SINGH:   I  would – I  would think Mr Chair  i t  was not 

unusual.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was not unusual.   Okay.  Okay alr ight  so 

she – she says here a dr iver was – you know was sent to 

drop the cash.  So you are saying al though you accept that 20 

sometimes you did pay in cash but you say – you say you 

never sent a dr iver or are you saying you are not sure 

whether you might at  some stage or another sent a dr iver 

with cash? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  on this part icular invoice I  am saying 
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there was no need for me to pay this because I  did not 

request i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No, no I  accept – I  accept that that is what 

you say in regard to this invoice.  

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am talking about those that you 

acknowledge would have been your invoices because you 

would have requested her to make the payment – to make 

the bookings for you? 

MR SINGH:   Okay Sir  so the quest ion is… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   In regard to those bookings which you had 

requested her to make for  you.  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chair  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Where you had to pay are you saying that  

there was never an occasion when you would have sent your 

dr iver to pay her in cash or are you saying you are not sure 

whether at  some or other stage you may have sent  a dr iver 

to pay her in cash or you say whenever I  paid – you paid you 

paid her yoursel f  even i f  i t  was in cash? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  I  – look – f rom a dr iver perspect ive I  20 

am probably referr ing to our previous conversat ion in terms 

of  the Transnet dr iver.   But I  th ink in th is case Mr Chair  I  

th ink you asking the quest ion did a third party sometimes 

pay whether i t  be a dr iver or relat ives or… 

CHAIRPERSON:   At  your instance.  
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MR SINGH:   At  my instance yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, yes.  Is the answer yes? 

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh but whether i t  was a dr iver or not… 

MR SINGH:   I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are not sure.  

MR SINGH:   I  am not sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you recal l  whom – who else you might 

have asked to go and pay for you in cash i f  i t  was not your 

dr iver? 10 

MR SINGH:   As I  said Mr Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or is i t  something you cannot remember? 

MR SINGH:   I t  might have been – i t  might have been a family 

relat ive or i t  may have been acquaintances.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh i t  would not be somebody from work? 

MR SINGH:   No. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay alr ight.   Mr Seleka. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  Mr Singh when you refer to 

your dr iver is this a personal dr iver? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry Mr – Sorry Sir.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   When you refer to your dr iver are you 

referr ing to your personal  dr iver? 

MR SINGH:   No I  was clar i fy ing the Chairperson’s quest ion 

so that the response that I  gave to the Chairperson in terms 

of  saying no i t  was not my dr iver.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I  was referr ing to the al located dr iver f rom 

Transnet .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh i t  an al located dr iver f rom Transnet.   

Chairperson I  bel ieve the f i le is here and I  think I  should 

complete every sect ion also by reference to i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That is Transnet ’s Bundle 5(b).   We have 

a copy for Mr Singh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   10 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chairperson is there copies for us 

too because we did not know that this is going to be dealt  

wi th today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Is there a copy for Mr Singh’s 

counsel? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes there is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess you wi l l  need to have both f i les? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chair.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   To compare.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay what page in the bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 426.  426 is a page in the 10.6 

Direct ive – 426 – 426.  I  th ink i t  has that f lag – the orange 
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f lag.   So i t  is ( inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry just  repeat  Mr Seleka whose aff idavi t  

are we looking at  now at the Transnet Bundle 5 at  page 426? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  Chairperson we are going to look at  

two documents.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The one is the 10.6 – Regulat ion 10.6 

direct ive issued to Mr Singh request ing him to provide 

informat ion to the commission on certain aspects.   The page 

reference I  have now given is the page in that 10.6 direct ive 10 

as page 426.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Alr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We wi l l  then also refer to the aff idavi t  of 

Mr Singh responding to their  request in terms of  the 

direct ive.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the f i rst  – the page I  have referred to 

is 426 paragraph 113 he has been asked to provide 

informat ion relat ing to local  and internat ional t r ips that 

appear to have coincided with t r ips by members of  the Gupta 20 

family and their  associates inter  al ia for  present purposes 

Chairperson 1.13.3. 

 A return  t r ip to Dubai between 3 June 2014 and 8 

June 2014 that is the reason why… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry – I  am sorry.   I  thought you said 
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1.13.3? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No 1.13.2. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  A return t r ip to Dubai between 3 

June 2014 and 8 June 2014 yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That we – we referr ing to 8 June 

2014 because of  – i t  coincides with the date in the Ms 

Suleiman’s aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  The f i rst  t r ip of  4 June 2014.  You 

shared a return f l ight  with Mr Rajesh Kumar Gupta on Fl ight  

EK763.  The fol lowing individuals were in Dubai dur ing the 10 

same period.  Mr Sanjay Grover,  Mr Paul 00:15:24, Mr Iqbal  

Shama, Mr Selwyn Christ in,  Mr Zuwit ley,  Mr Vikas Sagar,  Mr 

Rajesh Kumar Gupta, Mr [?]  Edwin Sodi and Mr Kamal 

Vasram.  Now the response… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So the al legat ion he was asked to deal  

with then al legat ion that he had a t r ip – he was not – he had 

a return t r ip to Dubai and back between 3 June 2014 and 9 

June 2014 and that he shared that f l ight  with Mr Rajesh 

Kumar Gupta and the f l ight  number is g iven.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And that dur ing that same period when he 

was in Dubai a number of  people ment ioned there were also 

in Dubai that is what the al legat ion says? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Singh’s response to that on page 480 

- 480.   

MR SINGH:   480. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   480 that is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   In the same bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   In the same bundle that is Mr Singh’s 

aff idavi t  of  the 2n d of  February 2021.  480 the same bundle.  

MR SINGH:   I  do not have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Somebody must just  assist  Mr Singh to f ind 

the page.  I t  is your aff idavi t  where i t  says At paragraph 10 

1.18.2 at  the top.  

MR SINGH:   I  have unt i l  476. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you do not have al l  the pages? 

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink Mr Singh’s f i le has been 

regular ised.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you found the r ight page Mr Singh? 

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr Chair.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So the – Mr Singh then responds 20 

paragraph – at  paragraph 1.13.2 return t r ip to Dubai and he 

gives the date in brackets 47 says:  

“ I  deny I  t ravel led on a return t r ip to Dubai as 

al leged in this paragraph.” 

And then 48 he says: 
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“Regarding the aforesaid date I  wish to state 

that”  

48.1 

“ I  lef t  South Afr ica on 3 June 2014 I  only 

entered Dubai on 6 June 2014, I  exi ted Dubai  

on 8 June 2014.”  

And then he says further:  

“Between 4 June 2014 and the 6 June 2014 I  

t ravel led between Frankfort  and Heathrow 

airports.”  10 

But relevant for present purposes Chair  is 48.3 which is I  

existed Dubai.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  Yes 

ADV SELEKA SC:   On 8 June 2014. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  I  th ink for the sake of  completeness 

Mr Singh can we take i t  that when you exi ted Dubai on 8 

June 2014 you returned to Johannesburg? 

MR SINGH:   That is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   Okay Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So then Mr Singh i t  is  ei ther a 20 

coincidence or divinat ion on the part  of  the travel  agent that 

they arrange your t r ip f rom Dubai to Johannesburg on the 

same date 8 June 2014? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry Sir  I  got the f i rst  part  I  d id not hear your 

second part .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  repeat your – what you are putt ing to 

him. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  So I  am saying and you wi l l  

comment i t  is e i ther a coincidence or divinat ion on their  part  

that they arranged your return t r ip f rom Dubai to 

Johannesburg on the same date 8 June 2014.  Your 

comment? 

MR SINGH:   Sorry i t  is the meaning of  your word in your 

second… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh divinat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.  Ja my learned f r iend ( inaudible – 

laughing).   Maybe she can explain what d iv inat ion means.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No explain yoursel f  Mr – do not shi f t  the 

responsibi l i ty.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Div inat ion that means Mr Singh they 

would have known by some supernatural  powers that you 

were travel l ing and travel l ing from Dubai not f rom Cape Town 

to Johannesburg on th is very date of  8 June 2014. 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chair  I  th ink for the purposes of  this 20 

discussion what is important is also paragraph 48.4 of  the 

said aff idavi t  on page 480 is that between and 4 and 8 I  

t ravel led between Frankfort  and Heathrow.  49 says: 

“To the best of  my recol lect ion the aforesaid 

t ravel  relates to business t ravels.”  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry just  repeat that last  sentence. 

MR SINGH:   Okay so 48.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja 

MR SINGH:   Basical ly says that  I  was t ravel l ing in June 

between the dates of  4 and 6 between Frankfort  and 

Heathrow. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So 49 basical ly then says 

“To the best of  my recol lect ion the aforesaid 

t ravel  related to business t ravel . ”  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So as I  or iginal ly said Mr Chair  the issue is that 

I  was actual ly t ravel l ing on business there was no need for 

me to have this.   I  was not  requested.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but Mr Seleka’s point  is this.   I f  you 

did not ask Travel Excel lence – i f  you did not tel l  them you 

were going to be travel l ing from Dubai to Johannesburg on 

the 8t h  of  June 2014 and i f  you never asked anybody to tel l  

them or to make a booking for you to t ravel  f rom Dubai to 

Johannesburg on the 8 t h  of  June 2014 how would they have 20 

known your – how would they have known that you were 

going to be travel l ing f rom Dubai to Johannesburg on that 

date?  How would – how could they get i t  so r ight? 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chair  I  am not too sure maybe i t  is  a 

coincidence for  the word that you used 00:24:24:07.   
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Because you – Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you think they have supernatural  

powers to know this? 

MR SINGH:   Maybe – as you wi l l  see throughout the aff idavi t  

Mr Chair  some supernatural  powers was at  play.   But on her 

own version Mr Chair  at  her aff idavi t  on – she actual ly says: 

“ I  cannot  recal l  who made the request.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   This is Ms Suleiman who is saying i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, ja but she is saying between you and 10 

Mr Essa she is not sure who made the request but i t  is one 

of  you.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr… 

CHAIRPERSON:   As I  understand what she is saying. 

MR SINGH:   Then she must state that 00:24:46 because that 

is not the way I  interpret  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm. 

MR SINGH:   This is not the way I  interpret  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  – let  us see i t  – is that at  221 ha? 

“I  cannot recal l  whether I  spoke to Mr Essa 20 

or Mr Singh.”  

Is that where –  

MR SINGH:   22.3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  cannot recal l  who made the request.   

Oh okay no I  was – I  had in mind the lat ter part  of  the 
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aff idavi t .  

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but my understanding based on her 

aff idavi t  is that when she says she cannot recal l  even when 

– where she does not ment ion whether i t  was you or Mr Essa 

my understanding is that she is talking about you and Mr 

Essa because throughout her aff idavi t  the only person – the 

only persons who used to make requests for your t ravels 

were ei ther you or Mr Essa. So in that context I  understand 

her to be – when she says I  cannot  recal l  I  am – I  10 

understand her to be saying that but i t  may be that  you are 

r ight we should not be thinking about those – any of  those 

two maybe somebody else but she  as far as I  recal l  she 

never anywhere else never says in her aff idavi t  somebody 

else other than ei ther yoursel f  or Mr Essa would request  

that.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chair  i t  goes back to Ms Suleiman’s 

recol lect ion of  the events that took place six years ago or 

seven years ago.   Because i f  you then take paragraph 22.2 

and I  know I  am jumping ahead. 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Advocate Seleka but apologies for that.   I f  you 

look there she says a booking was requested by Mr Singh’s 

partner.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay, yes. 
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MR SINGH:   Ms 00:26:39. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja so sometimes i t  would be somebody 

else.  

MR SINGH:   But  the point  is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   That request  was never made by ( inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay, okay, no, no that is… 

MR SINGH:   And that  comes back to the point  of  the 

recol lect ion of  events.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR SINGH:   By Ms Suleiman. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but let  us f ind – let  us complete our 

understanding about what  your response is in regard to you.  

I  th ink relat ing to the 8 t h  of  June 2014.  Am I  r ight  to say in 

the end you saying wel l  i t  must be – i t  must have – i t  must 

be a coincidence that she got that r ight  or as you say maybe 

she had some supernatural  powers because indeed you were 

– you did t ravel  f rom Dubai to Johannesburg on the date that 

you did.  

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr Chair  based on the informat ion that I  20 

had i t  would seem l ike i t  is a coincidence because I  am not  

able to say whether i t  is – wel l  I  do not think I  can 

categorical ly state that Mr Essa did not request that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  repeat that sentence. 

MR SINGH:   I  said I  can categorical ly state that Mr Essa 
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would have not requested travel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   On your behalf? 

MR SINGH:   Not on my behalf .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Mr… 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Chairperson sorry maybe i t  is 

important Mr Singh eluded to i t  ear l ier that  t icket was voided 

i t  seems not to have been used.  And I  think i t  is an 

important factor to take into account too.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no, no, no that might be so.  At th is 

stage he was deal ing with my quest ion as wel l  as Mr 10 

Seleka’s quest ion of  how come they – this t ravel  agent had 

this informat ion correct  i f  Mr Singh was not the one who told 

them about his t ravel l ing or somebody that Mr Singh had 

asked to tel l  them.  That – that was what we are deal ing 

with.   Mr Seleka. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chair.   And to that point  

raised we should equal ly look at  the – the receipts of  the 

R9100.00 cash payment together with that t icket.   But Chair  

part  of  21 of  Ms Suleiman’s aff idavi t  i t  may wel l  a lso be 

something you had in mind i t  says from – so they get 20 

introduced Mr Anoj Singh they say gets introduced to them 

and paragraph 21 says:  

“From there onwards we had received 

requests f rom ei ther Mr Essa or f rom Mr 

Singh direct ly to book f l ights for them.”  
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So I  mean i t  st i l l  carr ies the idea you had i t  is ei ther f rom Mr 

Singh or f rom Mr Essa.  There is only that one incident 

where they say is Mr Singh’s partner who did the request but 

general ly i t  seems to be the theme.  So Mr Singh paragraph 

49 of  your aff idavi t  that you submit ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Before you go there Mr Seleka ask th is  

quest ion  to  Mr  S ingh wi th  re ference to  paragraph 20 of  Ms 

Solomon’s  a ff idav i t .   She says Mr  Essa in t roduced you,  Mr  

S ingh,  to  her  dur ing 2014.   She says pr io r  to  that  she had 

never  met  h im.   Now do you reca l l  whether,  in  terms of  10 

your  own deal ings wi th  her,  you had met  her  a t  any t ime 

before 2014? 

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No.   So do you know whether  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Wel l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is  your  reco l lect ion that  i t  may have 

been in  2014 that  the two of  you met  or  would  i t  have been 

af ter,  on  your  reco l lec t ion?  You meet ing her  –  le t  us  leave 

out  Mr  Sal im Essa for  now.   Just  in  te rms o f  your  own 20 

deal ings wi th  her.  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms o f . . .   Mr  Chai r,  I  do not  reca l l  th is  

meet ing of  2014,  cer ta in ly  by  Mr  Essa,  as  I  have sa id .   So 

your  quest ion is?  

CHAIRPERSON :    So my quest ion is .   Because you have 
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sa id  that  you have had your  own in teract ions wi th  her.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you d id  make – ask her  to  make 

book ings for  you and you d id  se t t le  your  invo ices.   So I  am 

ask ing.   In  te rms of  your  own reco l lect ion .   Are you ab le  to  

say whether  you met  her  for  the  f i rs t  t ime or  s tar ted 

deal ing wi th  her  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime in  2014 or  a f te r  2014?  

Because you have sa id  that  i t  was  not  before 2014.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink the term deal ing w i th  her  is  

probab ly  more appropr ia te .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink i t  wou ld have been probably  in  and 

around th is  t ime but  cer ta in ly  not  2012 or  2010.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You th ink  i t  may have been 2014 

somet ime?  

MR SINGH :    Somet ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no,  that  is  f ine.  Now the quest ion  

that  ar ises because I  th ink  you were qu i te  emphat ic  and 

you must  te l l  me i f  I  misunders tood you.   You were qu i te  

emphat ic  that  you were not  in t roduced by Mr Essa to  her.   20 

Is  that  r ight?  

MR SINGH :    That  is  cor rect ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Your  deal ings wi th  her  f rom the 

t ime you star ted up to  now,  the re la t ionsh ip has – the 

bus iness re la t ionsh ip between you and her  has been f ine .   
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There had been no issues?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Do you know why she would say 

you were in t roduced to  her  by  Mr Sal im Essa i f  ac tua l ly  

that  was not  –  i t  i s  not  what  happened?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  wou ld be specu la t ing.    

CHAIRPERSON :    You would  not  know?  

MR SINGH :    [No audib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r ight .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Thank you,  Chai r.   I  was go ing to  10 

ask you,  Mr  S ingh,  about  your  paragraph 49 in  the 

af f idav i t .   I  see there  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is  now Mr  Singh ’s  a ff idav i t  in  

Transnet  Bund le  5? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rect ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 840.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Four,  e ight . . .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    F ive  in  Bundle B.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  cont inue.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Were you say:  

“To the best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  the aforesa id 

t rave ls  re la ted to  Transnet  bus iness. . . ”  

I  am in t r igued by  the phrase to  the best  o f  my reco l lec t ion  

which seems to  suggest  tha t  you are not  cer ta in  about  
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what  you are say ing.  

MR SINGH :    Look,  Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  when I  –  when we 

dra f ted th is  word ing we had access to  the of f ic ia l  t rave l  

records f rom Transnet  which we had requested f rom the 

Commiss ion which ind icated to  us  that  th is  t r ip ,  bas ica l ly,  

was a bus iness t r ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  your  answer,  therefore,  yes  to  

Mr  Se leka ’s  quest ion or  is  i t  a  no?  He is  ask ing you 

whether  the reason why you sa id  to  the best  o f  your  

reco l lect ion is  the reason why you sa id  that  that  you were 10 

uncer ta in  whether  the t r ips were for  Transnet  bus iness?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You were not  –  you are cer ta in? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So is  there a reason why. . .   

Sorry.   Are you say ing you re l ied on documents f rom 

Transnet  prov ided to  you by the Commiss ion?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  there a reason why you used the 20 

words to  the best  o f  your  reco l lec t ion as opposed to ,  th is  

document  show that  I  t rave l led on a Transnet  bus iness 

t r ip?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  not  rea l ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  o ther  words,  what  Mr  Seleka is  say ing 
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i s .   He would have expected you,  i f  you were re lay ing on 

the documents you are  ta lk ing about ,  he would  have 

expected you to  say,  accord ing to  these documents  and 

you ment ion them,  you were on Transnet  bus iness t r ips .    

MR SINGH :    Okay,  Mr  Chai r,  maybe a bet ter  cho ice of  

words would  have been appropr ia te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  repeat  that ,  p lease.  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id ,  in  that  case,  maybe a bet ter  cho ice o f  

words would  have been appropr ia te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    H ’m.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  o ther  words – you know,  the po in t  i s ,  

when you say to  the best  o f  your  reco l lec t ion,  i t  does not  

g ive  the impress ion that  you are bas ing i t  on documents.    

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  l i ke you are  bas ing i t  on your  

memory.  

MR SINGH :    Memory,  h ’m.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes-no,  that  is  cor rect  because i f  the  

documents  – i f  –  but  I  w i l l  f ind out  –  i f  the  Commiss ion 

gave you the documents  that  show what  you are say ing,  

the quest ion is  a lso,  why would  they ask you th is  quest ion 
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that  you shou ld exp la in  the t r ips  to  Dubai  between 

20 June 2014 to  8  June 2014? 

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  I  assume 

Mr Se leka is  now specu la t ing as to  reasons why th ings 

were done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    The issue was about  

count ing(?) . . .   In  fact ,  w i thout . . .  my learned f r iend must  

look at  the 10.6 and then he wi l l  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no.   I  th ink Mr S ingh can dea l  10 

wi th  the quest ion.   Mr  S ingh,  what  do you want  to  say in  

response to  what  Mr  Seleka says or  do you have no 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Chai r. . .  [Speaker  is  not  c lear. ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He is  say ing i t  i s  s t range –  i t  w i l l  be  

s t range that  they  asked you to  exp la in  your  t r ip  f rom Dubai  

or  to  Dubai  in  c i rcumstances where the documents  that  

they showed you re f lected that  i t  was a Transnet  bus iness 

t r ip .   That  is  what  he is  say ing.   Do you want  to  comment  

on that?  20 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  qu i te  s imple.   I t  says – i f  you look at  

48.1,  i t  says:    

“ I  le f t  South  Af r ica  on 03.   I  entered Dubai  on 
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06.   I  ex is ted on 08.   Between 04 and 06,  I  

t rave l led  between Frankfur t  and Heathrow 

Ai rpor ts . . . ”  

 So f rom whatever  the in format ion was los t (?) .   I  

do not  know where they got  the in format ion f rom.   Indeed 

that  I  d id  t rave l  to  Dubai  between these dates and I  guess 

that  is  why they have asked me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  hang on one second,  Mr  S ingh.   Are 

you ab le  to  hear  h im wel l?    

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    I  was go ing to  say that  we 10 

cannot  hear  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    He needs to  move nearer  to  

the microphone.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  you see Mr S ing.   You –  there are  

two people  you want  to  make sure they hear  you.   I t  i s  me 

and your  counse l .  

MR SINGH :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR SINGH :    Okay le t  me rear range my . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  Mr  Seleka does not  hear  you,  you can 

deal  w i th  that .   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

MR SINGH :    [ laughs]   Okay Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  must  hear  you and your  counse l  
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because your  counse l  needs to  protect  you.   [ laughs]   And 

I  need to  make a f ind ing about  what  you are say ing.  

MR SINGH :    Okay,  Mr  Chai r,  i s  th is  bet ter?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   I  th ink  that  is  bet ter,  ja .   But  a f te r  

some t ime,  you might  f ind that  you . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    No ,  i t  i s  because of  these f i les.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay a l r ight .  

MR SINGH :    So maybe I  shou ld put  one on th is  s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  just  see how you – I  am sorry,  the  

space is  very l im i ted but  just  do your  best .  10 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ja ,  he needs both.   You see the 

counse l  has to  use th is  room and I  wou ld  not  need to  use 

such b ig  f i les .   But  that  is  f ine.   [ laughs]   H is  space is  

l im i ted.  

MR SINGH :    I  th ink  th is  wi l l  be bet ter. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t ,  ja .   Okay.   You remember  

the propos i t ion?  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  yes.   I  was – Mr  Se leka wanted to  know 

why the Commiss ion asked me . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why i t  wou ld have asked you to  exp la in  

th is  t r ip ,  i f  f rom the documents that  they showed you,  i t  

was c lear  that  i t  was a Transnet  bus iness t r ip .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  i t  was not  –  they d id  not  show 

me the documents.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.   So they put  th is  to  us  in  a  10.6 Not ice ,  

r ight?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    In  a  10.6 Not ice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    G iven the fac t  tha t  they had put  i t  to  us,  we 

then requested the in format ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    To unders tand whether  these t r ips were e i ther  10 

persona l  or  pr iva te or  bus iness or  pr ivate  t r ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  but  your  requested the documents  

f rom the Commiss ion?  

MR SINGH :    That  is  cor rect ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   So they d id  have the documents  

at  some stage?  They prov ided them to you?  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  we got  the 10.6.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    We then requested the in format ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR SINGH :    Whether  they had i t  o r  whether  they asked i t  

f rom Transnet  a f te r  our  request ,  I  am not  too sure.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   But  they u l t imate ly  gave i t  to  you?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r ight .   So is  the po in t  that  you 
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a re  making that  a t  the t ime they asked you to  exp la in ,  they 

might  not  have had those documents?  They might  have got  

those documents  af te r  you made the request?  

MR SINGH :    I  do not  know Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    But  i t  wou ld seem so.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay a l r ight .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  i f  you look – I  can take you 

fur ther,  fo r  example .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR SINGH :    I f  you look  at  the sub – jus t  go to  paragraph 

54 on page 481.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  that  o f  your  a ff idav i t?  

MR SINGH :    Of  my a ff idav i t ,  yes .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    You see,  they asked me to  exp la in  a  re turn 

t r ip  to  Hong Kong on 30 June to  03 Ju ly.   Now again,  in  

that  –  i f  you look at  that ,  again i t  i s  a  bus iness t r ip  to  –  

bas ica l ly  the Commiss ion had thought  that  I  had a re turn  

t r ip  to  Hong Kong,  re la t ing to . . .  re turn to  Hong Kong.   I t  20 

was a  bus iness t r ip  to  China that  was v ia  Hong Kong.   So 

the . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    So the – I  do not  know i f  I  am answer ing your  

quest ion?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  no,  no.   I  th ink,  in  e ffect ,  you are  

say ing you do not  know but  what  you do know – you do not  

know when they had the documents in  the i r  possess ion.   

That  is  the Commiss ion.   What  you do know is  that  they 

sent  you a  10.6  d i rect ive  and in  that  10.6 d i rec t ive,  you 

were asked to  exp la in  th is  t r ip .   You requested in format ion.   

They prov ided you wi th  in format ion.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  know at  what  s tage they were 

in  possess ion of  the in format ion?  10 

MR SINGH :    Or  the more to  be hand –  ask ing these 

quest ions in  the 10.6.   I  was not  aware of  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]  

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  sor ry.   I  again  – I  

need to  again just  ra ise my concern  in  the contex t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    You have to  look,  wi th  the 

greatest  o f  respect ,  a t  paragraph 1.30.   When these 

quest ions about  the t r ips  are  asked,  they are asked aga inst  20 

the fo l lowing quest ions.   I t  s tar ts  o f f :  

“The f requency and the reasons for  to  the. . . ”  

Then i t  goes:  

“ In format ion re la t ing to  loca l  and in ternat iona l  

t r ips that  appear  to  have co inc ided by t r ips o f  
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members  by the Gupta  fami ly  and the i r  

assoc ia tes in ter  a l ia . . . ”  

So i t  i s  aga inst  that  background that  there  is  then 

quest ions asked about  the t r ips .   So the propos i t ion  put  

fo rward by Mr Seleka is .   They knew about  these  t r ips  and 

they must  have known that  i t  was off ic ia l  work  t r ips .   Why 

would they ask h im?  I t  i s  not  a  va l id  po in t .   I t  i s  asked in  a  

spec i f i c  context .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  you can re-examine on i t  when 

you re-examine.   Okay.   Mr  Se leka,  le t  us cont inue.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  S ingh,  then le t  

us go back to  Ms So lomon’s(?)  a f f idav i t .   Paragraph 22.2.    

“The book ing was requested by Mr S ingh ’s  

par tner,  Ms Sa l ine Make(s ic ) . . . ”  

Is  that  pronounced correct ly?  

MR SINGH :    We wi l l  accept  i t  fo r  now.   N ike.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  N ike.   [ laughs]   Is  that  your  

par tner?  

MR SINGH :    Sorry?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  that  your  par tner?  20 

MR SINGH :    I t  i s  my cur rent  w i fe .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I s  that  your  cur rent  w i fe?  

MR SINGH :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Co inc idence or  d iv inat ion?  

MR SINGH :    Ne i ther.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    What  is  that  now,  Mr  Se leka?  [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Cha i r  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You and Mr S ingh,  you are  get t ing to  ta lk  

about  th ings that  we are not . .   [ laughs]   But  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  sentence,  Chai r.   I  was s imply  

conf i rming wi th  Mr  S ingh that  Ms Sal ina Nike is  the 

par tner.   He conf i rms i t  i s  h is  cur rent  w i fe .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    So I  was ask ing whether,  i s  i t  a  

co inc idence or  a  d iv inat ion? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  they knew about  that?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   And what  was the answer,  

Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He says . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Nei ther  o f  the  above? 

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 

MR SINGH :    Ms Solomon knew that  Ms Nike was my 

par tner.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you deal t  w i th  her?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   But  I  d id  not  hear  you g ive  that  
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answer  when the two of  you were ta lk ing.  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  thought  he was ask ing the quest ion wi th  

tongue in  cheek.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Oh,  okay.   Maybe he was.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l r ight ,  le t  us cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So.  

“Ms Sal ina Nike  for  Mr  S ingh and her  f l igh t  10 

f rom Johannesburg on 6 August  2014 to  Dubai  

and back to  Johannesburg on 12 August  2014.   

Mr  S ingh and h is  par tner  were issued wi th  

t i cket  number. . . ”  

And the numbers  are g iven,  two numbers.  

“ . . . respect ive ly.   See SS-5.  

The to ta l  cost  was R 60 000,00 which was 

charged to  Mr  Essa ’s  account . . . ”  

And i t  i s :   See SS-6.  

“Mr  Essa set t led th is  v ia  EFT to  my Nedbank 20 

account .   See SS-6.1.  

I  subsequent ly  t ransfer red th is  f rom my 

Nedbank account  to  the account  o f  Travel  

Exce l lence a lso at tached here to  the rece ip t  

i ssued on 6 August  2014. . . ”  
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Mr  S ingh . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess the f i rs t  quest ion is  whether  you 

and your  par tner  under took that  t r ip  to  those dest inat ions 

and back.    

MR SINGH :    [No audib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Sorry,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

MR SINGH :    I  was jus t  get t ing that  name.   So I  am going 10 

to  keep th is  f i le  here  but  I  am go ing to  t ry  and get  c lose to  

the. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  that  is  f ine .   Just  do what  w i l l  

make you comfor tab le  Mr  S ingh.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  the f i rs t  po in t  to  be made is  that  

Ms Su le iman is  mis taken in  her  reco l lect ion .   So Ms Nike 

d id  not  request  th is  6 t h  o f  August  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Th is  book ing?  

MR SINGH :    Th is  book ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH :    Ms Nike ,  in  fact ,  requested a  book ing in  

August  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    August  2015?  

MR SINGH :    2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  2014?  
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MR SINGH :    Not  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay?  

MR SINGH :    Which a lso was cance l led and not  used.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was not  pursued?  

MR SINGH :    I t  was not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    I t  was booked,  i t  was cancel led but  i t  was –  

so i t  was cance l led.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    We never  used i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    So Ms Solomon’s  reco l lec t ion in  te rms of  who 

requested th is  f l ight  is  incorrect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    On the 6 t h  o f  August  2014,  however,  we d id  

f l y  to  Dubai .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And I  requested that  f l igh t .   So f rom that  

perspect ive,  that  is  the s ta te  o f  the paragraph 22.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   So is  your  response that ,  one,  20 

Ms So lomon is  mis taken in  say ing i t  was your  par tner  who 

requested that  she make that  book ing but  tha t  the pos i t ion 

is  that  you asked her  to  make the book ing,  numbers 2 and 

3.   You and your  par tner  d id  t rave l ,  f l y  f rom Johannesburg 

on 6 August  2014 to  Dubai  and back to  Johannesburg on 
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12 August  2014.   That  par t ,  you say,  is  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    That  is  cor rect ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r ight .   And wi th  regard to  the 

t icket  numbers ,  you do not  d ispute those even though you 

might  not  reca l l  whether  those are the cor rect  numbers?  

MR SINGH :    I  was jus t  go ing to  say,  Mr  Chai r,  i f  I  reca l l ,  

those t icket  numbers . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry /  

MR SINGH :    I f  I  reca l l ,  these t icket  numbers that  wou ld  

rea l ly  . . . [ in tervenes]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    You wi l l  be a  gen ius.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MR SINGH :    No,  that  second word that  you used.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Okay.   So but  the  t r ip  d id  

happen and i t  was booked through or  by  Trave l  Exce l lence.   

The book ing was requested by you.   And then,  was – d id  i t  

cost  R 60 000,00?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  i f  you look at  the invo ice that  

Ms So lomon at taches to  her  a ff idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  20 

MR SINGH :    Again ,  I  do  not  reca l l  th is  invo ice o ff  hand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is  SS-6.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  SS-6.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    But  i t  seems l ike the number  is  in  the ba l lpark 
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o f  what  I  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    In  te rms of  the t icket  pr ices and so on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR SINGH :    So what  is  anomalous,  Mr  Chai r,  i s .   I f  you 

look at  the invo ice i tse l f ,  okay?  SS-6 on page 1565.17.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay I  am there .   Yes?  

MR SINGH :    So i f  you look at  i t ,  Mr  Chai r,  you look at  

a i r fa re and you look at  a i r fa re for  Mr  S ingh and Ms Nike,  

the f i rs t  two l ines.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    You see i t  i s  actua l ly  R 20 000,00 and 

R 20 000,00.   Then you have a i rpor t  taxes,  R 10 000,00 

and R 10 000,00,  coming to  a  ba lance of  R 60 000,00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Okay.   Now when you compare that  to  the 

Serend ip i ty  Tours  invo ice  which is  on page 1565.16,  the 

page before  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  h ’m?  

MR SINGH :    You wi l l  see,  Mr  Chai r,  that  there is  a  20 

d iscrepancy in  the a i rpor t  taxes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    In  respect  o f  the a i rpor t  tax?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  i f  you look on the Trave l  Exce l lence 

invo ice  i t  i s  a i rpor t  taxes of  R 10 000,00 and R 10 000,00 

s t ra ight .   Okay?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I f  you look at  the  invo ice  f rom Serend ip i ty,  

the taxes are R 6 000,00.   So,  bas ica l ly,  i f  you look a t  the 

l ine a i rpor t  taxes  and a i rpor t  taxes  sub ject  to  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    So you are  bas ica l ly  R 6 627,00 p lus 322.81.   

Are you there Mr  Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am look ing but  I  th ink  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    Okay . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am th ink ing in  the meant ime whether  10 

we should go in to  the deta i ls  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .because you say the book ing was 

requested by you . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    But  Mr  Chai r  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . the po in t  that  one has to  th ink  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    So the po in t  I  am making Mr  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    I s  that  there is  a  d iscrepancy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Between,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    R 60 000,00.  
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MR SINGH :    R 60 000,00 and a source document  f rom 

Serend ip i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

MR SINGH :    Now,  the reason why I  make that  po in t  i s ,  

Mr  Chai r,  i s .   Th is  R 60 000,00 is  t ied back to  an EFT or  a  

bank set t lement  f rom somebody.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Le t  us  not  say Mr Essa or  whoever.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    Le t  us  jus t  say somebody,  okay?  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Now,  in  –  and I  w i l l  –  and again,  when we go 

through each o f  these invo ices,  you wi l l  see the same 

pat tern.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    I s  that ,  i t  i s  l inked to  some bank s ta tement  

w i th  some va lue and then you have an invo ice that  is  

generated that  equals  that  but  i t  i s  not  suppor ted by the 

actua l ,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  –  fo r  lack  of  a  bet ter  word,  externa l  

invo ice .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.    

MR SINGH :    I f  th is  one . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The record(?)  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    . . . in  i t se l f  can be re l ied  upon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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MR SINGH :    Because i f  you look at  the date  on which the 

Serend ip i ty  invo ices are  generated,  they are  generated on 

the 13 t h  o f  November  2018.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Where do you see that?  

MR SINGH :    So i f  you look a t  1565.16.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    I f  you go r ight  to  the bot tom,  Mr  Chai r,  on  the 

bot tom le f t -hand corner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    You see there ,  Mr  Chai r,  there  is  a  date.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    13 November  2018.  

MR SINGH :    And I  th ink there is  a  t ime there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    As wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Now . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You regard  that  date as  a date for  what?  

MR SINGH :    That  is  what  I  am say ing.   I  do not  know what  

that  date  is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR SINGH :    Because i f  th is  t rave l  happened in  2014,  I  

wou ld expect  th is  invo ice  to  be dated 2014,  not  2018.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    . . .wh ich is  a  dupl icate(?)  invo ice.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Which invo ice Mr S ingh? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    The one at  1565 . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    1565.16.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  the date is  there in  that  b lock.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  but  I  am say ing is ,  i f  you look at  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    31 Ju ly  2014.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  but  i f  you look at  the  bot tom.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes?  

MR SINGH :    A t  the bot tom le f t -hand corner,  you see a  

date of  13/11/2018.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  th ink ,  Mr  S ingh,  unt i l  we know what  

they say  or  she says th is  date  represents,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  

say much about  i t  because there  is  noth ing ind icat ing what  

i t  i s  fo r.   Whereas i f  you look a t  the top,  you can 

unders tand that  is  the  document  number,  that  is  date,  date  

and that  is  account  number. . .   But  here  at  the bot tom,  i t  i s  

jus t  a  date and t ime.   And I  do not  know whether  the words 

SUP or  what .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  o therwise there is  noth ing wr i t ten  20 

which g ives us an idea what  tha t  date represents.   Maybe 

she can be asked to  g ive us a  supplementary a ff idav i t  and 

say -  te l l  us  what  that  date represents and then you can 

comment  on i t  to  see whether  –  what  i t  means.  

MR SINGH :    No,  I  take that  Mr  Chai r  but  again I  am asked 
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to  comment  on a document  that  is  in  here.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And I  am te l l ing you,  f rom what  I  see,  and I  

am comment ing on the issues that  you are present ing to  

me in  te rms of  the documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    And I  take your  po in t  that  maybe when she 

comes,  she can say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  10 

MR SINGH :    And maybe at  the same t ime she can expla in  

as to  why the Serend ip i ty  invo ice is  53 to  70 and her  

invo ice  is  60.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  repeat  that  po in t?  

MR SINGH :    Sorry,  Mr  Chai r.   I f  you look at  the  

Serend ip i ty  invo ice the to ta l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEERDEN :    Cha i rperson,  maybe my c l ien t  

must  jus t ,  when he dea ls  w i th  the invo ices,  re fer  to  the 

annexure numbers and the pages so we are  a l l  on  the 

same page.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  le t  us –  wel l ,  i t  i s  impor tant  to  re fer  

to ,  a t  least ,  the page.    

MR SINGH :    Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    These pages numbers are  long.  

MR SINGH :    Long,  ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    So i t  i s  1565.16,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

MR SINGH :    I f  you look at  the  invo ice to ta ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR SINGH :    And then you wi l l  see there is  a  l ine be low 

that  says less to . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So i t  i s  53 to  70.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR SINGH :    Okay.   So that  is  e ffect ive ly  the to ta l  tha t  was 

the costs  o f  these t r ips(?)  f rom Serend ip i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Then you wi l l  see that  the  1565.17 which i s  

the Travel  Exce l lence invo ice ,  you now have an amount  o f  

R 60 000,00 in  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    Okay.  So there is  a  d iscrepancy o f  

R 7 000,00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja .  20 

MR SINGH :    And i t  i s  a l l  a l located to  a i rpor t  taxes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Which is  not  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  ja .   Okay.  

MR SINGH :    And a l l ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  would understand that ,  
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yes,  Trave l  Exce l lence has to  charge for  the i r  serv ice.   So 

there would  be a d iscrepancy between Serend ip i ty  and 

Trave l  Exce l lence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH :    But  not  the  va lue of  R 7 000,00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja,  she can be asked to  deal  w i th  

a l l  the quer ies you ra ised insofar  as  they can be exp la ined.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  th is  one,  we – the po in t  i s .   You 

accept  that  she made the book ings for  you,  i t  was a t  your  10 

request  fo r  you and your  par tner  to  t rave l  to  Dubai  and 

back on the dates g iven .   I  guess the next  th ing is .   D id  

you pay her  to  set t le  whatever  the invo ice was,  whether  i t  

was R 60 000,00 or  whatever  in  regard  to  th is  t r ip?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  a  genera l  comment  across 

a l l  o f  the  t rave ls  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Are. . .  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    As I  sa id ,  I  d id  pay for  a l l  o f  them  

CHAIRPERSON :    You pa id  fo r  a l l  o f  them?  

MR SINGH :    I  pa id  for  a l l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Would  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH :    In  a  manner  I  descr ibed to  you. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes ,  wou ld  you have any proof  o f  

payment  in  regard to  payments  you made for  these t r ips 

where you had requested them to make the book ings for  
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you?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  w i l l  check but  I  do not  th ink so.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   But  where you made payments by  

way o f  cash because you sa id  there would have been such 

occas ions,  they would have had to  issue you wi th  rece ip ts ,  

I  would imagine?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Chai r,  but  I  do not  th ink  I  kept  any of  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And where you have – where you 

pa id  by way of  EFT,  that  should  be ab le  to  be t raced in  10 

your  accounts,  bank accounts?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  i f  there were occas ions 

where that  happened there would be records.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry?  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id  on the occas ions when those 

happened,  there  would  be those records.   Unfor tunate ly,  

fo r  me to  go back and request  them.   Yes,  a l l  my bank 

accounts  have been c losed.   So access ing  bank records is  

a  prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  to  the extent  that  the  20 

Commiss ion might  be ab le  to  t race that .   I f  your  

cooperat ion  is  requi red,  you would  g ive your  cooperat ion?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Chai r,  we wi l l  cons ider. . .  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You cons ider  i t?  

MR SINGH :    [No audib le  rep ly ]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Because the Commiss ion – the 

banks have been qu i te  cooperat ive  whenever  the 

Commiss ion has issued them wi th  summonses to  d isc lose 

cer ta in  in format ion.   They have,  genera l ly  speak ing,  been 

very cooperat ive .   Of  course some i t  may be done wi thout  

your  consent  but  to  the extent  that  your  cooperat ion  might  

be requ i red,  that  is  why I  was ask ing but  you have sa id  you 

and your  legal  team would cons ider.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay,  a l r ight .   But  again,  her  10 

vers ion here is  qu i te  c lear  namely that  i t  was Mr Essa who 

set t led th is  invo ice.   She says Mr  Essa pa id  v ia  EFT to  her  

Nedbank account  and she subsequent ly  t ransfer red the 

money f rom her  Nedbank account  to  the account  o f  Trave l  

Exce l lence.   So I  take i t  tha t  you are not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  

deny whether  Mr  Essa made some payment  to  her  in  regard  

to  th is  t r ip  and she moved the money f rom her  Nedbank 

account  in to  the account  o f  Travel  Exce l lence or  you are 

say ing i t  i s  one,  you never  asked Mr Essa to  do that .   Two,  

you do not  see any need why Mr  Essa would  have done 20 

that  because he had not  been invo lved in  th is  book ing,  you 

had requested the book ing yourse l f  and three,  you say you  

pa id .  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect ,  Mr  Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So i f  Mr  Essa made some payment ,  

maybe that  is  the i r  own th ing but  you made –  you set t led  

th is  account  [ ind is t inc t  –  dropp ing vo ice]  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect ,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    And Mr Chai r  not  to  fo rget  that  –  and I  w i l l  

come back to  i t ,  the d iscrepanc ies  in  the invo ices are  a b ig  

issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Are a b ig  issue? 

MR SINGH:    Are a b ig  issue.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  I  unders tand that .  

MR SINGH:    And you wi l l  see why.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  unders tand that ,  I  unders tand that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  just  wanted to  say 

on that  aspect ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  an in ter  par tes  t ransact ion.   I f  

Mr  S ingh says he was overcharged,  he must  go af ter  Trave l  

Exce l lence.   The Commiss ion,  what  are we going to  do wi th  

i t?  20 

MR SINGH:    No,  le t  us  not  get  th is  incor rect ,  Mr  Seleka.   I  

d id  not  say I  was overcharged.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  I  am say ing i f  you say you were 

overcharged.  

MR SINGH:   That  is  why I  am say ing,  I  was say ing I  was 
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not  overcharged.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Because th is  invo ice is  a  fabr icated invo ice.   

I  am te l l ing you,  th is  invo ice  has  been created to  equal  an 

amount  that  appears on the bank s ta tement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  wa i t ,  wa i t ,  wa i t .   Wai t .    Because 

I  a lso  wanted to  comment  on that .   The invo ice,  le t  us go 

through i t ,  i s  dated 31 Ju ly  2014.   That  is  the invo ice on 

page 1565.17.  

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  what?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    1565.17,  the  one we have been deal ing 

wi th .  

MR SINGH:    That  is  the invo ice .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Say again? 

MR SINGH:    That  is  the invo ice .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  that  is  Travel  Exce l lence  invo ice .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    31  Ju ly  2014.   Do you see that?  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Now they say they  rece ived 20 

payment  on 6 August  2014,  that  is  on page 1565.19.  

MR SINGH:    1565.19? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then –  is  that  e lec t ron ic  bank ing 
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t ransfer  they are ta lk ing about  on the page before that ,  

a lso  dated August ,  5  August  2014 which is  the  very f i rs t  

ent ry,  see ex date and the amount  is  60 000,  the amount  i s  

60 000 on that  rece ip t .   So I  am not  sure  – what  are you 

say ing,  the invo ice has been created to  match the amount  

because the invo ice comes before the payment .  

MR SINGH:    I  cou ld  a lso  –  we have deal t  w i th  backdat ing 

qu i te  s ign i f i cant ly  in  th is  [ ind is t inct  –  dropping vo ice]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We have deal t  w i th? 

MR SINGH:    I  have sa id  we have we have deal t  wi th 10 

backdat ing of  documents  qu i te  ex tens ive ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  on ly  insofar  as  i t  re la tes to  your  

MSA and your  le t te r.  

MR SINGH:    Okay.   So,  Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  as I  have sa id ,  in  

my v iew,  i f  you  look at  the  rece ip t ,  i f  Ms So lomon is  to  

cont inue wi th  th is  thread,  Ms So lomon should  then have 

produced Trave l  Exce l lence ’s  bank s ta tements that  re f lec ts  

the depos i t  o f  60 000.   Here  there is  just  th is  rud imentary  

rece ipt  that  is  again  produced,  okay?  That  re ferences,  Mr  

Essa [ ind is t inc t ] .   S imi la r ly,  Mr  Chai r,  in  te rms of  th is  20 

e lec t ron ic  bank ing cont ra  there is  not  s tamp as to  where 

th is  or ig inates f rom.   The authent ic i ty  o f  th is  [ ind is t inc t  –  

dropp ing vo ice]  what  i t  re f lec ts  and i t  on ly  re f lects  a  

depos i t .   So where is  the payment?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You are now ta lk ing about  Mr  Essa ’s  

payment?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  i f  you look a t  1565.18.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    I t  i s  purpor ted to  be a bank s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

MR SINGH:    That  re f lec ts  an amount  o f  60 000 be ing pa id  

to  Ms So lomon spec i f i c .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And Ms Solomon asser ts  that  th is  10 

amount  was then t ransfer red to  Trave l  Exce l lence ’s  bank 

account .   So on her  vers ion I  would  have expected her  to  

have a  bank s ta tement  that  re f lects  her  bank s ta tement  

that  re f lects  the cont ra  of  60 000 that  is  go ing out  and then 

i f  Trave l  Exce l lence ’s  bank s ta tement  to  show 60 000 

coming in .   Th is  would deal  w i th  her  vers ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    Not  in  re la t ion  to  my t icket  that  I  pa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So that  is  the def ic ienc ies  that  we have wi th  20 

th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no,  that  is  f ine.   Those po in ts  

shou ld be ra ised wi th  Ms Su le iman so that  she  can deal  

w i th  them maybe in  a  supplementary a ff idav i t  bu t  she must  

s t i l l  come and g ive  ev idence,  maybe she wi l l  dea l  wi th  that  
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but  some of  the  po in ts  that  Mr  S ingh is  ra is ing are  th ings 

that  should  be easy to  address.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  there is  one more 

based on the po in ts  that  was ra ised by my c l ient .   Of  

course i t  i s  very  easy through metadata to  es tab l ish  when 

a document  was generated and when not .   So that  is  a  

fu r ther  po in t  that  can eventua l ly  be looked at .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  a lso ,  I  mean,  i f  the re levant  banks 

can just  produce these documents  then i t  i s  very  ob jec t ive .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And so that  wou ld be – that  shou ld be 

easy to  jus t  obta in  the re levant  documents  f rom the bank.   

But  i f ,  Mr  S ingh,  i t  i s  t rue that  Mr  Sa l im Essa d id  pay 

Trave l  Exce l lence in  respect  o f  th is  -  in  respect  o f  your  

t rave l l ing,  even i f  he  d id  so wi thout  –  or  i f  he d id  so  

wi thout  you hav ing asked h im or  wi thout  any ar rangement  

between the two o f  you,  are  you ab le  to  say why he would 

do that?   In  o ther  words,  an amount  –  le t  us say accord ing 

to  Ms Solomon,  an amount  o f  R60 000 was pa id  by  Mr  

Sal im Essa in  respect  o f  your  t rave l l ing and your  par tner ’s  20 

t rave l l ing.    

 Now I  unders tand the issues you have ra ised about  

th is  bank s ta tement  and so on,  but  le t  us  assume that  in  

the end the banks prov ide proof  o f  the  payments  and i t  i s  

estab l ished that  indeed Mr Sal im Essa made payment ,  why 
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wou ld he make a payment  in  respect  o f  your  t rave l l ing and 

your  par tner ’s  t rave l l ing? 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  I  can emphat ica l ly  say that  he 

never  d id  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  guess  that  you cannot  say that  

because you were not  there  to  see whether  he made the 

payment .   What  you can say is  you never  asked h im.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Chai rperson …[ in tervenes]  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Chai r,  I  say ing is  he never  made 

payments on my behal f .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    On your  behal f .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Chai rperson,  sor ry,  w i th  

greatest  o f  respect ,  my c l ient  s ta ted i t  as  a  fact  and I  

thought  we were deal ing wi th  fac ts .   He pa id  for  th is  t i cket .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  no,  no,  no,  I  am not  deal ing wi th  

that .   I f ,  a f te r  a l l  the ev idence is  in ,  Mr  S ingh,  the fac t  

remains that  Mr  Sal im Essa made payment  to  Travel  

Exce l lence and that  that  payment  was in  regard  to  your  t r ip  

and your  par tner ’s  t r ip .   I f  you never  asked h im to  do so 

and i f  there  was no ar rangement  between the two of  you 20 

that  he shou ld pay for  i t ,  why would  he do that  because 

that  quest ion wi l l  ar ise i f  as a  mat ter  o f  fac t  when a l l  the 

ev idence is  in ,  the  fact  s tares us in  our  face that  Mr  Sal im 

Essa d id  make the payment  on the date g iven by Ms 

Solomon and that  the  payment  was in  regard  to  your  t r ip  
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and your  par tner ’s  t r ip ,  the two of  you.   So I  am say ing the 

quest ion  that  w i l l  s tare us in  the face is  i f  you never  asked 

h im to  pay for  you,  i f  there was no ar rangement  between 

the two of  you that  he should pay for  you,  why would he 

have pa id  th is  amount  [ inaudib le  –  speak ing 

s imul taneous ly ]  

MR SINGH:    Th is  is  a  hypothet ica l  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no,  i t  i s  not  hypothet ica l  in  the  

sense that  i f  the  bank documents that  w i l l  be asked for,  i f  

they reveal  that ,  i t  w i l l  be a rea l i t y.   Of  course i f  they 10 

reveal  that  there was no payment ,  tha t  is  the end of  the 

mat ter.   No payment  by  Mr Essa,  that  is  the end o f  tha t  

mat ter.  

MR SINGH:    Okay,  le t  us dea l  w i th  i t  l i ke  th is ,  Mr  Chai r.   

As you sa id  when you star ted th is  l ine  of  inqui ry,  you sa id  I  

cannot  actua l ly  say or  not  say …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    …whether  Mr  Essa pa id  or  d id  not  pay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

MR SINGH:    These amounts .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Not  fo r  my t rave l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Let  us leave t rave l  as ide.   So i f  there are 

indeed amounts  that  Mr  Essa would have pa id  to  Ms 
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So lomon,  fo r  whatever  reason,  those  th ings may have 

happened but  i t  i s  not  necessar i ly  that  he pa id  for  my 

t rave l .   So le t  us – in  your  case ,  Mr  Chai r,  you are pos ing 

to  me,  i f  the  bank s ta tements come back and i t  re f lec ts  

these 60 000 amounts  as  Ms So lomon a l ludes to ,  I  s t i l l  f ind 

i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  understand how i t  w i l l  be  then assoc ia ted wi th  

the fac t  that  i t  was for  my t rave l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  th is  is  what  I  am ra is ing wi th  you.   

You were not  there  when accord ing to  Ms Solomon she had 

communicat ion wi th  Mr  Sal im Essa about  th is  payment .   10 

She says that  the payment  was made by Mr Sa l im Essa 

was for  your  t r ip ,  okay?  Now I  was suggest ing to  you 

ear l ie r  on that  you cannot  deny what  was sa id  between the 

two of  them because you were not  there.  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   But  what  you can say  is ,  i f  Mr  

Sal im Essa sa id  to  Ms So lomon he was pay ing for  your  t r ip ,  

he was say ing so wi thout  you hav ing request ing h im to  do 

that .   That  is  what  you can say and i t  m ight  surpr ise  you,  

that  is  another  th ing,  but  i f  I  were to  be l ieve Ms Solomon,  20 

that  th is  is  what  she was to ld  by  Mr Sa l im Essa ,  then I  

wou ld then come back and say wel l ,  on  the one hand you 

say you never  asked Mr Sal im Essa but  we a l l  know your  

t r ip  d id  happen.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And Ms So lomon,  based on her  a ff idav i t ,  

i t  seems is  not  go ing to  say you pa id  fo r  th is  amount  based 

on th is ,  I  do not  know when she comes what  she wi l l  say 

but  based on th is  i t  looks l i ke  she wi l l  say i t  i s  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa who pa id and then I  wou ld  have to  ask myse l f  the  

quest ion  but  what  are  the probabi l i t ies that  Mr  Sa l im Essa  

would pay th is  amount ,  say to  Ms Solomon I  am pay ing for  

Mr  S ingh ’s  t r ip  w i thout  the two of  them having spoken,  

w i thout  an ar rangement .   That  is  what  I  w i l l  be  faced wi th  

and I  am g iv ing you a  chance to  say th is  is  how th is  can be 10 

exp la ined,  i f  there is  an exp lanat ion that  can be g iven.   But  

you might  say wel l ,  I  do not  know how i t  cou ld  happen and 

I  cannot  o ffe r  any exp lanat ion,  a l l  I  can say is  I  never  

asked h im to  and I  pa id  fo r  the t r ip  myse l f .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  that  is  where i t  s tays,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay ,a l r ight .   Mr  Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Let  us go back to  

Ms Su la iman’s  a f f idav i t .   Wel l ,  le t  us –  I  must  jus t  say th is  

par t  i s  not  captured in  the Transnet  request  to  you.   So le t  

us go to  paragraph 22.3 of  Ms Su la iman’s  a ff idav i t .  20 

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  what  page are you on now,  S i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 1565.5 .  

MR SINGH:    1565.5.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja.   The 6 November  t r ip ,  paragraph 

22.3.   
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MR SINGH:    I  am there,  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

“A book ing was requested for  Mr  S ingh to  f l y  f rom 

Johannesburg on 6 November  2014 to  Dubai  and 

back to  Johannesburg on 9 November  2014.   I  

cannot  reca l l  who made the request .   Mr  S ingh was 

issued wi th  t i cket  number  4724296595,  see SS9.   

The to ta l  cost  was R55 775 which was charged to  

Mr  Essa ’s  account ,  see SS10.   From my reco l lec t ion  

I  rece ived a ca l l  f rom Mr S ingh who in formed me 10 

that  a  dr iver  would  be dropp ing of f  cash to  set t le  

the  account .   As per  Mr  S ingh ’s  adv ice ,  a  dr iver  

dropped o ff  the  cash on 11 November  2014.   I  

a t tach here to the rece ip t  i ssued 11 November  2014,  

see SS11.   Th is  amount  was depos i ted in to  our  

bank account  together  w i th  o ther  cash we had on 

hand.   The amount  depos i ted on 11 November  2014 

inc lus ive  of  the  R55 775 amount  to  R65 700. ”  

Now the f i rs t  quest ion again ,  Mr  S ingh,  is  whether  there 

was a book ing for  you f rom Johannesburg …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  guess,  Mr  Seleka,  i t  i s  bet ter  to  s tar t  

w i th  the quest ion  whether  there was a  t r ip .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On those dates to  that  dest inat ion .   Did  

you t rave l ,  Mr  S ingh,  f rom Johannesburg,  d id  you t rave l  on 
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6  November  2014 f rom Johannesburg to  Dubai  and d id  you 

come f rom Dubai  on 9 November  2014? 

MR SINGH:    Sorry,  Mr  Chai r… 

CHAIRPERSON :    We are  at  paragraph 22.3,  page 1565.5.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There was a  t r ip?  

MR SINGH:    There  was a t r ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and i t  was to  Dubai ,  f rom Jo ’burg  

to  Dubai  and f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg and on the dates 

g iven there .  10 

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You agree? 

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect ,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  then the next  th ing is  whether  i t  i s  

t rue that  the book ing was made by Trave l  Exce l lence.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is  so.   And then the next  quest ion  

is ,  who requested the book ing? 20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  wou ld have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry?  

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You would have.   Okay,  a l r ight .   And 

what  do you say about  the payment?   She says she 
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rece ived  a  ca l l  f rom you and you in formed her  that  a  dr iver  

wou ld be dropp ing off  cash to  set t le  the  account  and she 

says the account  was R55 775.  

MR SINGH:    I  am jus t  get t ing to  the re levant  annexure.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe the amount  should  be the last  

th ing because you might  need to  check but  in  te rms of  you 

hav ing ca l led and to ld  her  a  dr iver  wou ld  de l iver  the cash  

to  her,  do you reca l l  that?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink i t  was bas ica l ly  the  same as 

I  exp la ined to  you before ,  that  I  would  have pa id  fo r  th is .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms o f  the method of  payment ,  we wi l l  

have to  check and get  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  but  you would have pa id  i t .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    E i ther  cash or  … 

MR SINGH:    Or  some manner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r ight .   So the use of  a  dr iver,  

you say you d id  not .   You d id  not  use a dr iver  to  drop cash 

to  pay th is .  20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  in  te rms of  th is  spec i f i c  one,  I  

cannot  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  in  th is  spec i f i c  instance,  I  cannot  

reca l l .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  reca l l .  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  poss ib le? 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Seleka?  Or  do you want  to  say 

anyth ing about  the amount?  

MR SINGH:    I  was just  go ing to  go to  the par t icu lar  

annexure.  

CHAIRPERSON :    SS10.  

MR SINGH:    SS10.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 1565.21.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  o ther  than aga in the d iscrepancy in  

te rms o f  the a i rpor t  taxes I  th ink noth ing e lse  that  I  want  to  

ra ise around the invo ice.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  not  tha t  is  f ine.   Okay.   And the 

date of  payment  that  she g ives there ,  you do not  take issue 

wi th  the dates or  do you? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  see that  there is  a  Travel  

Exce l lence bank s ta tement  a t  SS12 that  re f lects  an amount  20 

of  R65 700 again .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    And she exp la ins  th is  by  v i r tue  of  the fact  

that  there was other  case.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  
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MR SINGH:    That  needed to  be depos i ted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So again,  Mr  Chai r,  I  do not  see a bank 

stamp.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR SINGH:    That  ind ica tes how the 65 was made up.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Normal ly  you would  go and depos i t  o r  

ind icate,  you know th is  is  the makeup of  th is  65.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

MR SINGH:    And i t  i s  made up o f  55 or  50 or  f rom th is  

person or  that  person or  someth ing.   So I  do not  see that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  d id  not  get  the answer  to  your  

quest ion  whether  Mr  S ingh you take issue wi th  the cash 

receipt .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  he sa id  he does not  take issue wi th  

i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He does not  take – okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  asked h im about  the dates,  that  is  20 

what  I  have – you take issue wi th  the dates that  she g ives 

for  payment?  

MR SINGH:    No,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  okay ,a l r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  that  is  f ine.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So just  out  o f  in terest ,  Chai r,  i f  we 

might  go aga in  to  the Transnet  f i le ,  5 (B) ,  page 427 

because th is  par t icu lar  c l ip  is  re f lected there.   427,  Mr  

S ingh,  paragraph 1.13.6.  

MR SINGH:    Th is  is  on the 10.6 not ice? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So aga in is  the requi red – le t  me wai t  for  you.   

427.   You are there?  1 .13.6.   Ja re la tes  to  your  re turn t r ip  

to  Dubai  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry,  Mr  Seleka,  is  i t  poss ib le  to  

pu l l  your  mic c loser  to  you or  is  i t  not  moveable?  Okay,  ja ,  

a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Re lates to  your  

re turn t r ip  to  Dubai  between 6 November  2014 to  9  

November  2014,  the dates co inc ide wi th  Ms Sula iman’s .   

You share the f l ight  to  Dubai  w i th  Mr  Sal im Essa on EK766.   

Shal l  we f i rs t  deal  w i th  that?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  do you want  to  –  oh,  I  thought  you 

would take us to  the answer.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i f  there is  an answer  le t  us  look 

at  the answer  before  he says anyth ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the answer  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  maybe you read the whole of  1 .13.6 ,  
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then we go to  the answer.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   So the f i rs t  par t  i s  you – wel l ,  

the second par t ,  you share the f l ight  to  Dubai  w i th  Mr  

Sal im Essa on EK766.  

“The fo l lowing ind iv idua ls  were in  Dubai  dur ing the 

same per iod. ”  

Cha i r,  should I  read the names o f  these ind iv idua ls? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Ashok Narayan,  Mr  Sanjay Grover,  

Mr  Gez inh l iz iyo Vincent  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Gez inh l iz iyo Vincent  Zuma.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Vincent  Zuma,  thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr 

Zwelakhe Nhlanganiso Ntshepe.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Nhlanganiso Ntshepe.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tshepe.  Ms Ju l ia  Bas i tsano Khumalo,  

Evan Na idoo,  Mr  Abraham Stephanus Burger,  Mr  Mohamed 

In t ius Ahmed Pate l  and Mr Mohamed Iqba l  Survé.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And le t  us  go to  the answer.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  S ingh ’s  a ff idav i t  –  the re levant  

paragraph is  on page 482 of  the  same Transnet  –  o f  the  20 

same bundle ,  yes.  

MR SINGH:    482? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    482,  paragraph 60,  61,  62.   So Mr  

S ingh answers  at  paragraph 1.13.36:  

“Return t r ip ,  Dubai  6  November  2014 to  9  November  
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2014. ”  

Paragraph 60:  

“ I  conf i rm that  I  t rave l led re turn  to  Dubai  on the 

date set  out  above. ”  

61 – wel l  61,  Chai r,  i s  an answer  to :  

“You shared a f l ight  to  Dubai  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa on 

EK766?”  

Mr  S ingh answers :  

“ I  have no knowledge whether  the ind iv iduals…”  

Oh no,  wh ich one are you answer ing.   Let  us go to  62,  10 

sorry,  Chai r.   The answer  is  a t  62:  

“Last ly,  I  take not  o f  the  a l legat ion that  I  a l legedly  

shared a  f l ight  w i th  Sal im Essa.   I ,  however,  deny 

that  I  knew that  he was on the same f l ight . ”    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  – we l l ,  one,  he –  i t  seems Mr 

S ingh admi ts  that  he t rave l led  to  Dubai  and back to  

Johannesburg on the dates g iven in  the d i rec t ive.   He has 

no knowledge of  –  he says he has no knowledge whether  

the ind iv iduals  l i s ted in  the d i rect ive in  that  paragraph 

were a lso in  Dubai  dur ing the per iod ment ioned.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And he does not  deny that  Mr  Sal im 

Essa was on the same f l ight  but  he says he was not  aware 

of  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Is  that  cor rec t ,  Mr  S ingh? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Now is  the re levant  paragraph of  the  

d i rect ive  which is  responded to  here does not  co inc ide wi th  

22.3 of  Ms So lomon’s  a f f idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is  cor rect?  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  that  is  the one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you sa id ,  Mr  S ingh –  in  fact  you are  

say ing there  is  noth ing par t icu lar ly  –  there is  noth ing 10 

s t range about  paragraph 22.3 about  the t r ip  because you 

requested Ms Solomon to  make that  book ing and she made 

i t  and you t rave l led and you pa id  them.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Obv ious ly,  Mr  S ingh,  th is  is  in  

November  2014,  you would have known Mr Essa at  th is  

t ime.  

MR SINGH:    I  have no reco l lect ion spec i f i ca l ly  when I  

actua l ly,  as I  sa id ,  met  Mr  Essa.   I  do  not  th ink I  can 20 

answer  the quest ion  def in i t i ve ly.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Let  us  move on.   A t  paragraph 22.4  

…[ in tervenes]  
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MR SINGH:    We are back on… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    We are  back at  Ms Sula iman’s  

a f f idav i t .   Th is  is  towards  the end of  2014,  Mr  S ingh,  you 

were at  Transnet  a t  the  t ime.   Th is  is  November  2014.  

MR SINGH:    On which paragraph are we now? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry,  I  just  want  to  p iggyback on the 

las t  po in t .  

MR SINGH:   On which paragraph? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  about  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   He just  wants  you to  conf i rm that  towards 10 

the end of  2014 you were s t i l l  a t  Transnet .  

MR SINGH:   Oh,  yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  and I  thought  I  understood that  

you had on a  couple  of  occas ions met  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa 

in  2014.   

MR SINGH:   Yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And you jus t  do not  reca l l  when was 

that?  

MR SINGH:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you knew Mr Essa towards,  by  . . .  o r  20 

towards or  by the end of  2014 you knew Mr  Essa? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink I  sa id  that  i t  was probably  in  

2013,  2014.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  th ink you sa id  2012,  2013.   
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MR SINGH:   Ja .   2012,  2013 there.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  thought  you a lso sa id  once or  

twice ,  is  that  r ight?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you have agreed when Mr  Seleka 

says on a coup le of  occas ions.   So that  seems to  me to  

make i t  more than once or  tw ice,  but  maybe not  rea l ly,  bu t  

you i t  i s  once or  tw ice.   

MR SINGH:   Yes ,  Mr  Chai r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And around 2012,  2013 . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect ,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And not  2014.   

MR SINGH:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So th is  is  the man you would recogn ise 

i f  he  was on the same f l ight  w i th  you or  on the same bus or  

t ra in  or  car?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Tra in  cou ld be very long.   I f  you are in  

the same . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Coach.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Shaf t ,  yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You would recogn ise . . . [ in tervenes]   



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 188 of 249 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  the quest ion is  whether  based on 

the fact  that  in  2012,  2013 you had met  h im once or  twice ,  

whether  in  2014 i f  you met  h im in  the same f l ight  on which 

you were t rave l l ing you would  recognise h im? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink  I  would  have recogn ised h im,  

but  I  d id  not  meet  h im on the f l ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id  not  see h im on the occas ion.  

MR SINGH:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So le t  us  then go to  paragraph 22.4 o f  10 

Ms Su le iman’s  a f f idav i t .   Eskom Bundle 18,  bracket  C:  

 “A book ing was requested for  Mr  S ingh to  f l y  

f rom Johannesburg on 23 February  2015 to  

Dubai  and back to  Johannesburg on 26 

February  2015. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   You were f requent  in  Dubai ,  Mr  S ingh in  

2014,  ear ly  2015.   Yes,  cont inue Mr Seleka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I ,  where was I?  

CHAIRPERSON:   22.4.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes:  20 

 “ I  cannot  reca l l  who made the request .   Mr  

S ingh was issued wi th  t i cket  number  

1959734196,  see SS13.   The to ta l  cost  was 

R31 000-00 which was charged to  Mr  Essa ’s  

account ,  SS14.   From my recol lect ion  I  
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rece ived  a ca l l  f rom Mr  Singh who in formed me 

that  a  dr iver  would be dropp ing of f  cash to  

set t le  the account .   As per  Mr  S ingh ’s  adv ice  a 

dr iver  dropped of f  the  cash to  myse l f ,  wh ich 

was depos i ted w i th  re ference Essa on 6  March 

2015.   See SS15.   The reason the depos i t  

re ference ref lec ts  S Essa was because the 

amount  was used to  se t t le  Mr  Essa ’s  account .   

I  a lso a t tach hereto the rece ip t  i ssued,  dated 6 

March 2015.   See SS16. ”  10 

 Again Mr S ingh,  the t r ip  between those dates,  23 

February  2015 to  26 February  2015,  do you conf i rm i t  f rom 

Johannesburg to  Dubai?  

MR SINGH:   I  conf i rm that .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    You conf i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you conf i rm that  on 23 February  2015 

you f lew f rom Johannesburg to  Dubai  and on 26 February  

2015 f lew back f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg.   Okay,  and 

who had requested Ms Sule iman to  make the book ing? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r  that  wou ld  have been me.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry?  

MR SINGH:   I  d id .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id?  Okay.   Cont inue Mr Seleka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  and you a lso  conf i rm the fac ts  

regard ing payment ,  you ca l l ing  her  say ing the dr iver  wou ld 
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come to  drop off  the cash?   

MR SINGH:   As I  have sa id  in  the prev ious response,  I  am 

not  too sure about  th is  par t ,  but  a t  the end of  the day I  

pa id  for  the t r ips ,  yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  you cannot  remember  whether  you 

sent  a  dr iver.  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you made the payment .   

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And can you reca l l  whether  i t  was in  cash 10 

or  you say i t  m ight  have been cash,  i t  might  have been in  

some other  way? 

MR SINGH:   Some other  fo rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   But  as  I  sa id  we wi l l  look in to  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and do you make any . . .  do  you take 

issue wi th  the amount?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  we wi l l  have to  go to  the 

. . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   We would  have to  go there .   20 

MR SINGH:   Back to  the . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  you say more or  less ,  i t  i s  f ine .   I  

do not  know i f  we need to  go there,  because you may be 

making the same po ints  that  you have made in  regard  to  

the others,  but  i f  you make a d i f ferent  po in t ,  that  is  
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d i f fe rent .   

MR SINGH:   We l l  Mr  Chai r,  just  two th ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You want  us  to  go there? 

MR SINGH:   I f  we can go to  SS14.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   

MR SINGH:   Wh ich is  1565.    

CHAIRPERSON:   SS14,  what  is  the page,  1565?   

MR SINGH:   1565,  24.25.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  I  am there.   

MR SINGH:   The f i rs t  one Mr Chai r  i s  i f  you look a t  Ms 10 

Sule iman’s  s ta tement ,  she says that  I  was scheduled to  f l y  

on the 23 and re turn on the 26 t h ,  per  paragraph 22.4.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   However,  should you go to  1565.25.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   You see that  there is  a  re turn date of  the 1 s t  

o f  March .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes,  yes.   

MR SINGH:   So the s ta tement  obv ious ly  is  incorrect  in  

te rms of  the re turn date  of  the 26 t h ,  i t  should  be the 1s t  o f  20 

March i f  the invo ice is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Then you wi l l  see Mr  Chai r,  i f  you look at  the  

f i rs t  co lumn,  the a i rpor t  tax co lumn and the to ta l  co lumn.   

I f  you take the EFA and you add i t  to  the a i rpor t  taxes 
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wh ich is  twenty thousand p lus twenty thousand,  i t  does not  

g ive  you a to ta l  o f  th i r ty  thousand.   

 That  to ta l  shou ld be for ty  thousand and then i f  you 

add a  thousand to  that ,  the grand to ta l  should  be for ty  one 

thousand,  but  then i f  you look a t  the to ta l  co lumns at  the  

bot tom,  the ten p lus  . . .  the  twenty  p lus the ten g ives you  

for ty  one,  i t  does not  g ive you for ty.  

 So again  there is  a  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You say there  is  a  d iscrepancy wi th  the 

numbers ,  wi th  the f igures .  10 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  that  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes but  o ther  than that  you admi t  

the t r ip  and,  but  you say you pa id  fo r  i t  yourse l f .   

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  Mr  Chai r,  but  the reason why I  

ra ised th is  issue wi th  the d iscrepancy on the invo ice  is  

because i t  i s  used to  jus t i f y  a  depos i t  or  depos i ts  or  EFT’s  

that  have been made and can be proved.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   Yes,  the substance of  th is  invo ice does not  

make sense.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja .   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  that  is  a l l  I  want  to  note.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no that  is  f ine.   Then cont inue Mr 

Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Cha i r,  i f  we may 
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again go to  the Transnet ,  5 (B) .   Page 427.  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry,  sor ry  one second.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 427,  paragraph 1.13.5 .   Which 

seems to  cor re la te  wi th  Ms Su l l i van ’s  a f f idav i t ,  paragraph 

22.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Seleka,  can I  d is turb you and ask 

someth ing e lse?  I  do  not  want  to  fo rget .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  am remember  that  because I  am 

going to  ask that  here.   team works on my bundle to 10 

ind icate,  ind icate  a paragraph what  Mr  S ingh ’s  response 

was,  where he says I  admi t  that  th is  t r ip  d id  happen 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On that  date.   From there,  there and 

back,  but  I  made . . .  I  requested the 15 t h ,  I  d id  not  send the 

dr iver  or  I  am not  sure ,  I  sent  a  dr iver,  but  I  made a  

payment .   In  regards to  each paragraph I  wou ld l i ke  

someth ing l i ke  that .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  prec ise ly  because I  now wanted to  

ask you to  make sure the team can do that ,  I  remembered 

that  there is  homework that  your  team was supposed to  do 

in  regard to  Eskom.   That  document  re la t ing to  Mr  Tsots i  

and Ms Lynne Brown about  the composi t ion of  the var ious 
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commit tees.   You wi l l  reca l l  that  some t ime back 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  had asked that  your  team should work  

on that  and produce a  document .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect .   

CHAIRPERSON:   In i t ia l l y  the document  that  has been 

produced was not  cor rect .   I  sa id  i t  shou ld  be redone.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And last  t ime we ta lked about  i t ,  I  sa id  10 

your  team must  g ive  me the document .   I  have not  rece ived 

th is .   Now I  d id  not  want  to  fo rget  that  because i t  i s  

impor tant .   So . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you can make sure  that  I  get  that  not  

la ter  than tomorrow.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  that  one but  in  regard to  th is  one,  

th is  is  the request  I  am making.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is  r ight  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   So you can cont inue.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  am hop ing I  can get  th is  one not  
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la ter  than Monday.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes .   I ,  yes we should  be ab le  to  

prov ide i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  w i l l  do i t  myse l f ,  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   I  d is turbed you whi le  you 

were on someth ing,  so  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no but  I  am f ine.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  S ingh,  tha t  is  Eskom,  Transnet  5(B) ,  10 

page 427 paragraph 1.13.5.   Which I  sa id  seems to  

correspond wi th  Ms Sule iman’s  paragraph 24,  22.4.   So 

th is  re la tes  to  re turn t r ip  to  Dubai  between 23 February  

2015 and 1 March 2015.    

 So I  th ink is  tha t  one of  the d iscrepanc ies  you were 

t ry ing to  po in t  out  in  the invo ice or  the a i r  t i cket ,  that  i t  has  

a date of  1  March? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So i t  seems to  be here.   

MR SINGH:   I  agree.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  thank you.   The fo l lowing 

ind iv iduals  were in  Dubai  dur ing the same per iod and the 

names are there  Chai rperson.   Some of  them are  d i f f i cu l t  

to  pronounce.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Te l l  me which one are d i f f i cu l t  to  
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p ronounce,  I  w i l l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can I  read the ones which are fami l ia r?   

Mr  Sa l im Essa is  a lso  there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  te l l  me when you are  s tuck.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  w i l l  come to  your  a id .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  Cha i r.   So there  is  Akash 

Garg,  Ashok Narayan,  Sanjay Grover,  Viv ian Ke i th  Oates.   

Mr  S ingh,  may I  paused there.   We have not  asked you 

whether  you knew th is  people  or  you know them.   Do you 10 

know these peop le?  You do not  know Akash Garg? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you know Akash,  Mr  Akash Garg? 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ashok Narayan? 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   San jay Grover?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Viv ian Ke i th  Oates? 

MR SINGH:   I  do s i r.   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You do.   How do you know h im? 

MR SINGH:   I f  i t  i s  indeed the same Viv ian Ke i th  Oates 

that  I  know,  then i t  wou ld  be,  he was the head of  in terna l  

audi t  a t  Eskom,  I  mean at  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  Transnet?  
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MR SINGH:   Yes ,  on behal f  o f  Ernest  Nyambo.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On behal f  o f  Ernest  Nyambo? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Shamim Shaik? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You do not  know.   Is  that  Mogammed 

Raf ique Bagus? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ra jesh Kumar Gupta? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  as I  test i f ied before I  know Mr  10 

Gupta.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You know Mr  Gupta.   Mr  Ra jesh Gupta.  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   R iaz  Za loo jee? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Michael  Andrew Thomas Hul ley? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Abraham Stephanus Burger?  

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sa l im Az iz  Essa?   20 

MR SINGH:   As I  have tes t i f ied  I  have met  h im once or  

twice .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the answer  is  yes? 

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   S te fan Nel?  
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MR KOKO:   No.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Zwelakhe Nhlanganiso . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Nhlanganiso.  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   You do not  know h im? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hamza Farooqui?  

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Michael  Rodenburg? 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Pat r ick  Makhubedu? 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   K im Valer ie  Dav ids?  

MR SINGH:   I f  i t  i s  indeed Ms Brown’s PA,  then I  have met  

her  in  her  o ff i c ia l  capac i ty.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the answer  is  yes? 

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now there is  a  Lynet te  Brown.   I  do not  

know whether  that  is  Lenel le  or  Lynet te  Brown.   Could  that  

be the min is ter?  Do you know? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   He might  not  be ab le  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH:   I f  th is  re fers  to  the min is ter  then I  know the 

min is ter,  but  i f  i t  i s  not  the min is ter,  then I  do not  know 

who th is  is .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And Maboikanyo Imogen Mashaz i?   
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MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   No? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l ,  they say they were in  Dubai  a t  the 

same t ime as you.   Your  a ff idav i t  i s  on page 481.   I  mean 

on page 481 you answer,  you prov ide in format ion in  

response.   At  paragraph 1.13.5 re turn t r ip  to  Dubai ,  23  

February  2015 to  1  March 2015.   Paragraph 58 you say:  

 “ I  conf i rm that  I  t rave l led ,  re turned to  Dubai  on 

the dates set  out  above. ”  10 

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  s i r,  where are  you?  Page?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   481.  

MR SINGH:   481.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Of  the same bundle.   

MR SINGH:   Paragraph? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   58.  

MR SINGH:   58.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have read 58,  you conf i rm the dates.   

59 you say:  

 “ I  have no knowledge whether  the ind iv iduals  20 

l i s ted in  th is  paragraph were in  Dubai  dur ing 

the per iod ment ioned s ince I  have not  been 

prov ided wi th  any proof  thereof . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Seleka,  le t  me comple te what  I  wou ld 

l i ke to  be done to  make my job eas ier.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  need a document  that  w i l l  l ink  what  

the paragraphs in  Ms Su le iman’s  a ff idav i t  l ink  i t  w i th  the 

quest ions in  the d i rect ive .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   L ink  i t  w i th  the answers of  Mr  S ingh ’s  

a f f idav i t .   So that  one can see they are the same.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And h is  answers.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  and h is  answers ,  yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r ight .   So now th is  answer  a t  

paragraph 58 and 59,  paragraphs 58 and 59 re la tes  to  what  

paragraph in  Ms Sule iman’s  a ff idav i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   22.4 .   

CHAIRPERSON:   22.4.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   A l r ight ,  thank you.   So that  t r ip  Mr  

S ingh which you have admi t ted,  was i t  a  Transnet  bus iness 20 

t r ip  or  was i t  a  personal  t r ip?   

MR SINGH:   The one . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   The one you,  the  one deal t  wi th  in  

paragraph 22.4 of  Ms Sule iman’s  a ff idav i t ,  tha t  you deal  

w i th  in  the paragraph that  we have jus t  looked at  in  your  
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a f f idav i t ,  namely  paragraph 58 and 59.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  they are personal .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Personal?  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  am not  sure whether  we 

asked h im in  regard  to  each of  the  t r ips because i t  

becomes impor tant  to  know whether  i t  was persona l  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  bus iness because h is  a ff idav i t  does 10 

not  a lways ind ica te whether  i t  was  persona l  or  bus iness.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Cha i r.   We know Mr S ingh,  you 

have at  least  ident i f ied one which is  the f i rs t  one of  8  June 

2014,  as  accord ing to  your  reco l lect ion is  a ,  wel l  I  th ink  i t  

i s  two.   

MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r,  i f  you look a t ,  le t  us  make i t  

easy.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   Of  a l l  the f l ights  that  I  covered by Ms 

Sule iman,  they a l l  [ ind is t inct ]  and we come to  the one 20 

. . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh,  yes.   

MR SINGH:   Pr ivate  t r ips.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.  

MR SINGH:   The one that  we have a l i t t le  b i t  o f  a  
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content ion wi th  is  the f i rs t  one.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:   Wh ich I  am say ing she records i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR SINGH:   But  I  am say ing I  have a d i f fe rent  vers ion as 

to  how they happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   No,  that  he lps.   Then we know 

that  accept  that  one,  your  vers ion is  a l l  the others wh ich 

you admi t  were pr iva te .   

MR SINGH:   Yes.   Mr  Chai r,  your  issue comes in  when you 10 

are  look ing at  the  [ ind is t inct ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

MR SINGH:   There  is  a  mix ture there .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay,  okay.   No,  that  is  f ine.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So at  least  the ones in  th is  a f f idav i t ,  

except  fo r  one,  are  pr iva te,  personal .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja .   Let  us complete what  we need to  

ask h im about  paragraph 32.4.   Then le t  us  take an 

ad journment ,  a  ten minutes ad journment .   We wi l l  take the 20 

ten minutes ad journment  and then when we come back,  we 

I  w i l l  hear  what  is  go ing to  happen about  the  even ing 

sess ion f rom the work  team concerned and . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Lawyers invo lved.   So we wi l l  in terpose.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then depending on what  I  am to ld ,  

we wi l l  take i t  f rom there .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   You st i l l  want  to ,  do you s t i l l  have  

quest ions on that  paragraph? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  Mr  S ingh have we,  you are  

accept ing everyth ing there wi th  the payments  as wel l?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  not  every th ing.   He does not  accept  

the  issue of  a  dr iver  but  says he is  not  sure  whether  he 

would have sent  a  dr iver.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  he says in  the end the payment  came 

f rom h im.   Is  that  r ight  Mr  S ingh? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect  Mr  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the amount ,  R31 000-00? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  I  . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You have commented . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH:   I  have commented on that ,  in  te rms of  the  

d iscrepancy . . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  but  your  reco l lect ion of  what  you 
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pa id? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  I  do not  as I  sa id  I  do not  have a  

reco l lect ion  of  the exact  amounts  l i ke  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MR SINGH:   But  the issue of  the  invo ice  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR SINGH:   D iscrepancy . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

MR SINGH:   L ink ing to  the depos i t  in  the  bank s ta tement  is  

obv ious ly  a  concern .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   So ja ,  o r  so the substance of  the 

a l legat ions . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  I  th ink  except  fo r  the issue o f  the  

dr iver  and the issue of  the d iscrepancy in  the amount ,  the 

invo ice  in  substance he accepts.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Chai r,  i t  may be an oppor tune t ime to  20 

. . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  le t  us take  a ten minutes 

ad journment ,  then we adjourn.   Thank you.  

HEARING ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES:  
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CHAIRPERSON:   We are just  in terposing at  th is  s tage for  

me to  be in formed what  the s ta te  o f  a ffa i rs  is  w i th  regard  to  

the even ing sess ion that  was p lanned.   I  was go ing to  hear  

Ms Norma Gigaba ’s  ev idence.   Mr  Myburgh,  do you want  to  

te l l  me anyth ing? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you Chai rperson.   We d id  

dur ing the course of  the  morn ing rece ive  a le t ter  f rom Ms 

Gigaba ’s  a t torneys adv is ing that  she wi thdraws f rom her  

par t ic ipa t ion in  the commiss ion.   Ms Gigaba ’s  a t to rney is  

here .   10 

 She has a copy of  the le t te r.   Might  I  suggest  that  

she be a l lowed to  address you and hand up the le t ter  

fo rmal ly?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay a l r igh t .   I f  you can do i t ,  i f  your  

mic  is  work ing,  you can do i t  f rom where you are.   That  is  

f ine.   Just  make sure your  mic  is  work ing or  o therwise they 

can san i t ise the podium and then you can . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV MAKHATHINI  SC:   I  th ink i t  i s  work ing Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay a l r igh t .   

ADV MAKHATHINI  SC:   Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  you can just  s tar t  by  p lac ing 

yourse l f  on  record  and then you can te l l  me what  you need 

to  te l l  me.   

ADV MAKHATHINI  SC:   Okay.   The fu l l  name Gcwal is i le  

Makhath in i  f rom RNT At torneys.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV GCWALISILE MAKHATHINI :  I  represent  Ms Norma 

Gigaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV GCWALISILE MAKHATHINI:   Okay.   We rece ived 

Chai r,  inst ruct ions Chai r  las t  n ight  that  Ms Gigaba would  

l i ke  to  w i thdraw her  par t ic ipat ion  f rom the commiss ion and 

I  th is  morn ing addressed the le t te r  to  the commiss ion,  

adv is ing t ru th  to  that  e ffect .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Would  you l i ke  to  read that  le t te r  10 

in to  the record? 

ADV GCWALISILE MAKHATHINI :   Yes,  Chai r.   Okay:  

 “To the secretary o f  the  commiss ion.   As 

adv ised by the commiss ion on Fr iday,  9  Apr i l  

2021 that  our  c l ient  Ms Norma Mngoma was 

schedu led to  g ive  ev idence before  the 

commiss ion today,  the 13 t h  Apr i l  2021.   Two,  

th is  le t te r  serves to  in form the commiss ion that  

as  of  la te  yesterday we rece ived inst ruct ions 

f rom our  c l ient  in forming us of  one,  her  20 

persona l  concerns wi th  how var ious aspect  

regard ing her  proposed appearance at  the  

commiss ion has been handled or  a l legedly  

mishand led by the commiss ion and two,  her  

dec is ion to  therefore  wi thdraw her  
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par t ic ipa t ion in  the work  of  the  commiss ion.   

We are  fur ther  ins t ructed to  in form the 

commiss ion accord ing ly  o f  the  above as we 

hereby do. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Is  there  anyth ing you are ab le  to  

te l l  me o ther  than what  is  in  the le t te r  about  her  dec is ion? 

ADV GCWALISILE MAKHATHINI :   There is  noth ing Chai r,  I  

have not  yet  even had an oppor tun i ty  to  consu l t  in  deta i l  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV GCWALISILE MAKHATHINI:   Other  than what  she 

d iscussed wi th  me before  wr i t ing th is  le t ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.  

ADV GCWALISILE MAKHATHINI :   Thank you Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Mr  Myburgh,  what  do you say 

about  th is  s i tua t ion? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  we are  not  appr ised of  

prec ise ly  the deta i l  o f  Ms Gigaba ’s  facts  in  re la t ion  to  the 

commiss ion,  obv ious ly  those are th ings that  can be 

addressed in  the course of  her  ev idence.   What  we would  20 

l i ke  to  p lace on record  for  present  purposes,  is  the le t te r  

came as someth ing of  a  surpr ise to  us,  because Ms Gigaba 

was schedule to  g ive  ev idence remote ly  f rom Cape Town 

on Fr iday a f ternoon.  

 The next  th ing that  we learn t  o f  was th is  le t te r,  and 
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I  th ink prec ious l i t t le  cou ld  have happened between Fr iday  

af ternoon and Tuesday morn ing.   But  that  we can deal  w i th  

in  t ime.   What  we propose to  do is  then to  issue a 

summons,  so that  Ms Gigaba is  compel led to  come and 

g ive  ev idence before you.   

 She of  course then wi l l  be a t  l iber ty  to  deta i l  

whatever  her  concerns are.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We understand that  i t  i s  obv ious ly  

d i f f i cu l t  fo r  you to  schedule her  ev idence immediate ly  as o f  10 

now,  but  we jus t  do po in t  out  that  obv ious ly  for  the  purpose 

of  the  summons,  the sooner  we get  a  date  the bet ter  

because then we can issue the summons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And I  th ink  i t  w i l l  p robab ly  be in  the 

in terest  o f  everyone that  her  ev idence be heard  sooner  

than la ter.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You a lso know DCJ,  that  Mr  Gigaba 

h imse l f  has brought  an appl icat ion dur ing the f i rs t  ins tance 20 

to  suppress the ev idence of  Ms Gigaba.   So when the 

mat ter  is  se t  down aga in,  i t  may be most  pract ica l  that  Mr  

Gigaba ’s  appl icat ion  is  then heard before Ms Gigaba g ives  

ev idence.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No,  that  is  f ine.   I t  i s  surpr is ing that  
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she made th is  dec is ion.   She was schedu led to  g ive  

ev idence on,  I  th ink  Fr iday.   She,  we were to ld  I  was to ld  

she was ready to  do so v ia  Zoom for,  actua l ly  f rom Cape 

Town.   

 Then I  ad journed the hear ing o f  her  ev idence to  th is  

a f te rnoon or  evening.   So I  wonder  what  i t  i s  that  cou ld  

have happened in  the meant ime,  but  i t  seems to  me that  

you are r ight  in  say ing that  she shou ld g ive ev idence and i f  

she has anyth ing to  say,  she wi l l  say i t  a f te r  the summons 

has been issued,  and when she hears  in  response to  the 10 

summons.   

 So I  do author ise that  a  summons be issued against  

her.   I  w i l l  g ive  a date to  the legal  team to inser t  in  the 

summons as to  when she must  appear  before the 

commiss ion.   So yes,  and then w i th  regard to  Mr  Gigaba ’s  

appl icat ion that  w i l l  be set  down for  hear ing before the 

commencement  o f  Ms Gigaba ’s  ev idence,  on the day that  

she wi l l  be requ i red to  g ive ev idence.   

 So le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t ,  and we wi l l  take i t  f rom 

there.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.   May we be 

excused? 

CHAIRPERSON:   You are excused.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Okay,  then we can resume 
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w i th  Mr  S ingh ’s  ev idence.   Have you had a chance to  

san i t ise  proper ly?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Our  he lper  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  they go on s t r ike?  Okay,  a l r ight .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   We have an unders tanding that  we wi l l  

t ry  and f in ish or  ad journ at  about  quar ter  to  s ix .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So Mr Singh,  we unfor tunate ly  w i l l  

not  be ab le  to  f in ish aga in today,  because we could have 

gone beyond,  but  everybody thought  we would  have 

f in ished ear l ie r  which has not  happened,  and your  counse l  

had other  commi tments and we need to  accommodate that  

and another  day wi l l  be ar ranged for  you to  f in ish .  

MR SINGH:    R ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us  cont inue.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  S ingh,  back to  Eskom Bundle 18.   

18(B)  page 1565.5,  paragraph 25.5.   Are you there?   20 

 “A book ing was requested for  Mr  S ingh to  f l y  

f rom Johannesburg on 11 June 2015 to  Dubai  

and back to  Johannesburg on 15 June 2015.   I  

cannot  reca l l  who requested the book ing.   Mr 

S ingh was issued wi th  t i cket  number  
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9242812055,  see SS17.   The to ta l  cost  was 

R30 075-00 which was charged to  Mr  S ingh ’s  

account ,  see SS18.   From my reco l lec t ion . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   To Mr Essa ’s  account .   You sa id  S ingh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh,  sor ry.   I  beg your  pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To Mr Essa ’s  account .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   “To Mr  Essa ’s  account ,  see SS18.   

From my recol lec t ion I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom Mr  

S ingh who in formed me that  a  dr iver  wou ld be 

dropp ing o ff  cash to  set t le  the  account .   As per  10 

Mr S ingh ’s  adv ice a dr iver  dropped off  the 

cash on 13 June 2015.   I  a t tach hereto the 

rece ip t  i ssues,  dated 13 June 2015,  see SS19.   

The cash was depos i ted on 17 June 2015,  

a long wi th  o ther  cash on hand,  see SS19.1. ”  

 Mr  S ingh,  again  do you conf i rm the t r ip  a l leged ly  

requested by yourse l f  f rom Johannesburg to  Dubai  and 

back f rom Dubai  to  Johannesburg on the dates ment ioned,  

11 June 2015 to  15 June 2015? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  I  do conf i rm.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm making the request  fo r  that  

t r ip?  

MR SINGH:   I  do s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wi th  Trave l  Exce l lence? 
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MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   The dr iver?  

MR SINGH:   No Mr Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You,  is  i t  a  def in i te  no or  you cannot  

reca l l  sending a  dr iver?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  s imi la r  to  the other  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR SINGH:   There  is  no reco l lec t ion.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The last  t ime I  th ink  you sa id  you do not  

reca l l  hav ing sent  a  dr iver,  bu t  you know that  payment  

came f rom you? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The same as . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   The same as here .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   The same as here.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess un less  there  is  an issue about  

d iscrepancy we can move to  the next  book ing.  20 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  a t  SS18 . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR SINGH:   Wh ich is  on 1565.29.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   You f ind the same d iscrepancy Mr  Chai r  in  
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te rms of  the invo ice.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   In  te rms of  the  a i r  fa re and the a i rpor t  taxes 

do not  add up to  the to ta l .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  S ingh,  can I  ask you th is?  In  so far  

as  you conf i rm the your  request ,  the  t r ips  made,  the dates 

are  correct ,  the  dest inat ions is  cor rec t .   Were you invo iced 

by Trave l  Exce l lence? 

MR SINGH:   To my reco l lec t ion ,  yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Where are those invo ices? 10 

MR SINGH:   I  do not  have them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Why? 

CHAIRPERSON:   There  are  no invo ices? 

MR SINGH:   I  do not  reca l l .   I  do  not  have record .   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you say you do reca l l  that  you were 

sent  invo ices?  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  in  regard  to  some . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR SINGH:   I  would have thought  a l l  o f  them Mr Chai r,  bu t  

I  do not  reca l l  them.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

MR SINGH:   In  deta i l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Wel l ,  you know Mr Se leka,  maybe 

Mr S ingh cou ld ident i fy  in  regard  to  the next  paragraph or  

is  i t  on ly  two le f t ,  two or  th ree.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Whether  the,  h is  answer  in  

regard to  th is  one is  the same for  the rest ,  because then i t  

was go ing to  be qu icker  but  i f  i t  i s  on ly  two le f t ,  then ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   We can do the same.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can just  go through each one of  

them.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So does i t  mean we wi l l  not  be 

ab le  to  obta in  the invo ices  f rom you? 

MR SINGH:   No.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.   Okay,  you can then . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   P lus  proof  o f  payment .   Or  rece ip ts  f rom 

you.   You cannot  prov ide that ,  but  you say to  the extent  

that  you may have pa id  by  EFT,  that  should  be re f lected in  

the bank records,  but  you do not  have access to  those.   

 That  is  what  you have sa id .   I f  the commiss ion is  

ab le  to  get  those,  you expect  that  those records wi l l  s  how 

the payments? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  we sa id  that  we wi l l  consu l t  w i th  

counse l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   No,  no that  is  f ine .   That  i s  

f ine.   Of  course f rom the commiss ion ’s  s ide,  i t  can ask for  

bank records in  regard to  Trave l  Exce l lence in  te rms of  

what  payments were g iven there.  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Which  can be ident i f ied whether  they 

re f lec t  what  Ms Sule iman says here.   Okay,  a l r ight .   Okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now Chai r,  then we need to  go to  the 

Transnet  bundle  because . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   There is  a  corre la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  tha t  is  f ine.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Transnet  Bund le  5(B)  page 427,  

paragraph 1 .13.7 .   That  is  the las t  paragraph on the page,  

page 427 Mr Singh.   Th is  re la tes to  re turn  t r ip  to  Dubai ,  11 10 

June 2015 to  15 June 2015.   You shared a f l ight  to  Duba i  

w i th  Mr  Ashok Narayan on EK764.   The fo l lowing 

ind iv iduals  were in  Dubai  dur ing the same per iod.   

 St i l l  Narayan . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Mr  S ingh,  you sa id  you 

what  d id  you say  about  Mr  Ashok Narayan,  whether  or  not  

you know h im? 

MR SINGH:   I  sa id  I  d id  not .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You do not .   

MR SINGH:   And then there  is  Suan Di jon.    

MR SINGH:   Do you need me to  conf i rm each one of  these 20 

again? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  whether  or  not  you know.  

MR SINGH:   No,  I  do not .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mark  Henry  Juan Paul  Verasat?  

MR SINGH:   No,  I  do not .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Z i tho le le  Nyangana Absa lom Sind i?  

MR SINGH:   No,  I  do not .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sarushn i  P i l lay? 

MR SINGH:   No,  I  do not .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   At t ie  Gupta? 

MR SINGH:   I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You do know her.   How do you know,  is  

i t  a  mister  or  miss?  

MR SINGH:   I t  i s  a  Mrs.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  how do you know her?  10 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  she is  the wi fe  to  Mr  Ra jesh Gupta.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ra jesh Gupta,  the next  person? 

MR SINGH:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  so you know both of  them.   

Zak iya  Ghard ia? 

MR SINGH:   No s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sa l im Az iz  Essa? 

MR SINGH:   Yes  s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  pronounced that  way,  Sany i f  

Kumar.  20 

MR SINGH:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja,  thank you Mr S ingh.   Zakhar ia  

Kas im Vahid? 

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ashok is  a l ready there .   Dav id  Cl ive  
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Hersowich?   

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Veronica Ragavan? 

MR SINGH:   I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Govender.   How do you know her?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  she was e i ther  the  CEO or  had some 

pos i t ion  wi th in  Oak Bay Resources or  Tegeta  at  some 

stage.   So I  had in teract ions wi th  her.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have in teracted wi th  her?  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   What ,  do you  mind te l l ing  the 

Chai rperson what  the purpose was o f  the in teract ion? 

MR SINGH:   I  was exp la in ing to  the Chai rperson that  i f  i t  i s  

indeed the same Ms Ragavan who worked at  Tegeta or  

e i ther  Oak Bay,  she was we in teracted re la t ing to  I  th ink  

the pre-payment  fo r  659.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The 659 payment .  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which we wi l l  come to  when we deal  

w i th  the Tegeta t ransact ions.  20 

MR SINGH:   Indeed so.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  oh I  see.   Then Chai r,  we go to  Mr  

S ingh ’s  a f f idav i t  on page 482.   In  the same Transnet  

Bundle 5(B) .   482,  paragraph 63,  64,  65.   

MR SINGH:   The page number  again  s i r?   Page number? 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   482.   So your  answer  is  to ,  a t  

paragraph 1.13.7 ,  re turn t r ip  to  Dubai  11 June 2015 to  15 

June 2015.   Paragraph 63 says:  

 “ I  conf i rm that  I  t rave l led  to  re turn to  Dubai  on 

the dates set  out  above. ”  

 Now aga in to  your  ear l ie r  exp lanat ion,  th is  w i l l  be a 

pr ivate  t r ip .  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   64 says,  Mr  S ingh your  pr ivate t r ips ,  I  

know we have not  asked th is .   I f  you are  ab le  to  te l l  the  10 

Chai rperson when they are pr ivate what  is  i t?   Is  i t  a  

ho l iday you are  tak ing to  Dubai  or  is  i t  someth ing you 

cannot  d isc lose because i t  i s  pr iva te and personal?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  a t  th is  po in t  I  would  l i ke  to  be l ieve 

that  they  are pr ivate and persona l .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   64 says:  

 “ I  have no knowledge whether  the ind iv iduals  

l i s ted in  th is  paragraph were in  Dubai  dur ing 

the per iod ment ioned,  s ince I  have not  been 

prov ided wi th  any proof  thereof . ”  20 

 65 says:  

 “Last ly  I  take note of  the a l legat ion that  I  

a l legedly  share  the f l igh t  w i th  Ashok Narayan.   

I  however  deny that  I  knew that  he was on the 

same f l ight . ”  
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 I  see that  you do not  deny knowing h im.   

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  the forens ics  d id  not  ask for  us to  

conf i rm whether  we knew these ind iv idua ls .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  i t  because you heard my learned 

f r iend whisper  that?  

MR SINGH:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because she just  sa id  that  now.   You 

are  not  a l lowed to  tes t i f y.  

MR SINGH:   No s i r,  I  d id  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   She whispered that  Chai r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   Chai rperson,  i t  was not  to  

ass is t  my c l ient .   I  mean i f  Mr  Seleka read the not ice he 

would have c lear ly  seen that  i t  does not  ask do you know 

these people  or  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  but  I  do not  th ink you shou ld 

in ter fere .   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER SC:   I t  was  not  to  in ter fere 

Chai rperson,  not  a t  a l l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay a l r ight .   Let  us  cont inue.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Obv ious ly  Chai r  I  can 

t raverse issues beyond the d i rect ive  to  Mr  S ingh.   Mr 

S ingh,  then le t  us  go back to ,  sor ry.   Cha i r,  you do not  

have any quest ion before? 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Are you done,  are  you done wi th  hav ing 

deal t  w i th  22.7? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  we are s t i l l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You are at  22.6? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  we are s t i l l  a t ,  we are  jus t  f in ish ing 

22.5.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  le t  us  move on to  22.6 and 22.7 and 

le t  us f in ish that  par t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Mr  S ingh,  back  to  Ms Sule iman’s  

a f f idav i t .   Paragraph 22.6 .   Now:  10 

“A book ing was requested by Mr  S ingh for  Mr  

S ingh and par tner  to  f l y  f rom Johannesburg on 

15 December  2015 to  Dubai  and back to 

Johannesburg on 24 December  2015.   Mr  

S ingh and h is  par tner  were issued wi th  t i cket  

numbers  691663661 and 691663662 

respect ive ly  see SS20.   The to ta l  cost  o f  

R140 000-00 was charged to  Mr  Essa ’s  

account ,  see SS21.   From my reco l lect ion I  

rece ived  a ca l l  f rom Mr  Singh who in formed me 20 

that  a  dr iver  would be dropp ing of f  cash to  

set t le  the account .   As per  Mr  S ingh ’s  adv ice,  

the dr iver  dropped off  the cash on I  a t tach 

here to the rece ip t  i ssued,  dated 21 December  

2015,  see SS22.   Af ter  rece ip t  o f  the cash,  we 
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gave i t  to  a  f r iend of  ours who in  tu rn d id  an 

EFT to  the Travel  Exce l lence FNB account  in  

an amount  o f  R140 000-00 on 21 December  

2015,  see SS23.   We somet imes do th is  in  

order  to  avo id  hav ing to  pay a cash deposi t  fee 

i f  we depos i ted the cash at  the bank. ”  

Now the same quest ions fo l low Mr Singh.   Do you 

conf i rm your  a l leged request  for  yourse l f  and your  par tner  

to  Trave l  Exce l lence for  the t r ip  on the date  15 December  

2015 to  24 December  2015? 10 

MR SINGH:   I  do so s i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the p lace as ment ioned,  f rom 

Johannesburg to  Dubai  and back to  Johannesburg? 

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   The amount ,  hundred and for ty  

thousand,  do you a lso conf i rm i t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  i f  we have regard to  the amount  

. . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  sub ject  to  the usua l  concerns that  you 

have ra ised.  20 

MR SINGH:   Yes ,  Mr  Chai r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja ,  and the . . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   The dr iver.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The way in  which payment  was made? 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  as before . . . [ in tervenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

MR SINGH:   I  do conf i rm that  I  made the payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You cannot  reca l l  how you made the 

payment?  

MR SINGH:   That  is  cor rect .   I  conf i rmed that  the  payment  

was made by me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You conf i rm that  you made the payment ,  

what  you cannot  conf i rm is  whether  i t  was cash 

. . . [ in tervenes]   10 

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  EFT.  

MR SINGH:   Or  dr iver.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Or  a  dr iver,  d id  you say or  a  dr iver?  

MR SINGH:   Yes ,  Mr  Chai r  as  before  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   There is  aga in  in  th is  

case a corre la t ion in  the d i rect ive ,  in  the  Eskom, Transnet  

Bundle 5(B) ,  page 428.    

MR SINGH:   Sorry  Mr  Chai r,  before  we go there .   Are we 20 

go ing to  deal  w i th  the d iscrepanc ies on the . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   The invo ice?  

MR SINGH:   Yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  unders tood you to  be say ing as 

far  as  the invo ice  is  concerned,  subject  to  your  concern  
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that  you have expressed in  regard to  o ther  bookings,  about  

the d iscrepancy,  you had no prob lem wi th  the amount .   I  

unders tood you to  be say ing that .  

MR SINGH:   No,  no I  am jus t  say ing that  the amount  in  th is  

case is  re la t ive ly  large.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Relat ive ly?  

MR SINGH:   Large.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   Let  us,  ja  le t  us  deal  w i th  that .   

Okay,  what  wou ld you l i ke to  say about  i t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Chai r,  i f  you go again  to  1565.32.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SINGH:   As you wi l l  see,  as  we ra ised before  Mr Chai r,  

the a i rpor t  tax ,  the  a i r  fa re seems to  be cor rect  when 

cross- referenced to  the Serendip i ty  invo ice  which is  

re f lec ted on 1565.33.   but  the a i rpor t  taxes are  complete ly  

misrepresented and i f  you then look Mr Chai r,  the to ta l  o f  

the Serendip i ty  invo ice is  in  the reg ion o f  about  R95 500-

00.    

 Yet  the  amount  that  is  then on the invo ice,  is  

hundred and for ty  thousand.   So Mr  Chai r,  these 20 

d iscrepanc ies are ra ther  la rge.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

MR SINGH:   And even i f  I  was generous Mr  Chai r,  I  would  

not  be pay ing . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR SINGH:   Such large d iscrepanc ies.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes.  

MR SINGH:   And Mr Chai r,  las t ly  again.   I f  you add up a l l  

these numbers  that  appear  on th is  tax  invo ice,  they 

actua l ly  do not  come to  hundred and for ty  thousand.   They 

actua l ly  come to  R146 560,  144 560.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  they g ive you a  d iscount?  

MR SINGH:    Sorry? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id  they g ive  you a  d iscount?  10 

MR SINGH:    Wel l  i t  seems l ike  I  was overcharged f i rs t l y  

and then they dec ided to  g ive  me a d iscount .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay,  a l r ight .   Mr  Seleka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  thank you Chai r,  and I  a lso  see  

that  the  tax invo ice  doesn ’ t  on ly  inc lude t icke ts  i t  a lso 

inc ludes what  appears  to  be Dubai  v isas,  amounts to  

mul t ip le  ent ry  and then the t icket ing fee.  

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.    

MR SINGH:    There ’s  a  corre la t ion again  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry  Mr  S ingh how would  you rece ive 

invo ices f rom Trave l  Exce l lence? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  i t  was on WhatsApp or  some sor t  o f  

communicat ion.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m on WhatsApp? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Or? 

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld th ink  i t ’s  WhatsApp,  I  don ’ t  th ink  –  a t  

that  t ime I  d idn ’ t  rea l ly  mainta in  an emai l  address or  

pr ivate  emai l  address but  I  th ink  i t  would  have been on 

WhatsApp.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  thought  the CFO would be fas t id ious 

about  these th ings? 

MR SINGH:    Wel l  as i t  re la tes to  my own personal  s tu ff  I ’m 10 

not  s loppy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m okay what  page Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page –  Transnet  5(B)  page 428.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  Transnet  Bund le  5? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  113.8.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are there,  Mr  S ingh,  i t  re la tes to  a  

t r ip  to  Dubai  between 15 December  2015 and 24 December  

2015,  that  cor responds wi th  paragraph 22.6 in  Ms 

Sule iman’s  a ff idav i t ,  20 

 “The fo l lowing ind iv idua ls  were in  Dubai  dur ing the 

same per iod,  Marc Henry  – ja  those d i f f i cu l t  names,  Henry,  

John,  Paul  …[ Ind is t inc t ] ,  Zan ier  Verbeek,  do you know that  

person Mr S ingh? 

MR SINGH:    No I  do not  know anyone of  these.  



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 226 of 249 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Hamza Farooqui ,  I ’ ve  a l ready asked 

you,  Soo jang Dejon[?] ,  Ashrack Nara jan[?] ,  Idam Essa.  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You don ’ t  know h im,  he seems to  be 

re la ted to  Mr  Essa? 

MR SINGH:    I  wou ld assume so.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Zeenat  Osmani [? ]  do you know h im? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sureya Kent  S ingana[?] .  

MR SINGH:    No.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ar t ie  Gupta,  you know,  Shubange 

Gupta? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You don’ t  know? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Amankant  S ingana[?]  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Chasank Singana[?]  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Duduzane Zuma? 20 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Duduzane Zuma? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You don’ t  know Mr Duduzane Zuma? 

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  I  know of  h im.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  you ’ve never  met  h im? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mogammed Raf ique Bagus.  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ra jesh Kumar Gupta? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes? 

MR SINGH:    Sorry  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Edward Mziwoxo lo  Zuma? 

MR SINGH:    No.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jan Hendr ik  Chr is t iaan Smal?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Se ipat i  Sy lv ia  D lamin i?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thabo Sy lvester  Johnson.  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Shamim Shaik? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Marco Rot tenberg? 

MR SINGH:    No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tokyo Sexwale? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You don’ t  know Mr Tokyo Sexwale  

MR SINGH:    No s i r,  I  know of  h im but  I  don’ t  know h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tokyo Masima Gabr ie l  Sexwale.   Ja  
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now Alphen de Kock?  

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sak iya Vulga.  

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Fana Hlongwane? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Xo l isa Kennedy Memani?  

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tato  Motwe.  

MR SINGH:    No.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sure ly?   Your  answer? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.   Pat iswa Gi f t  Magashu le? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Dav id  Cl ive Haskov i tch? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sumat i  Ne i l  Jacobs? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ayanda Dlod lo? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Madwikano Imogen Mashaz i?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Zachar iah Cass im Mahied? 

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Pau l  Shondlo  F la t i?  
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MR SINGH:    Not  too sure,  i f  i t  i s  the ex CFO of  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    I  may have met  h im once or  tw ice in  CFO 

forums that  –  for  SOC’s  so I  don ’ t  rea l ly  reca l l  bu t  i f  I  d id  

in  that  c i rcumstance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  David  Douglas Des van Rooyen? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So you know of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    I  know of  h im but  I  don’ t  know h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  Prosper  Ladis las  Abess i?  10 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mohamad Noah Kapat i?  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You know of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Mohamad Noah Kapat i?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Kupdan Ter ran Moodley?  

MR SINGH:    Kovendran Moodley? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.   I  know of  h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You know of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    How do you know of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Sorry  s i r?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    How do you know of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Because of  a l l  the ar t ic les  that  have been 

wr i t ten,  I  don ’ t  have a  re la t ionship.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no that ’s  f ine but  I  jus t  want  to  

know how do you know of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    Because of  the media  ar t ic les.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To what  e ffect?  

MR SINGH:    In  terms of  the a l legat ions re la t ing to  h is  

invo lvement  in  …[ ind is t inct  –  dropped vo ice] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H is  invo lvement  in  Regiments? 10 

MR SINGH:    The a l legat ions re la t ing to  Regiments and the 

– I  don ’ t  know what  you want  to  ca l l  them,  the a l leged 

re la t ionship  that  he has w i th  Regiments.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You ’ve never  met  h im through 

Regiments? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ashu Chala? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r,  I  may have met  Mr  Ashu a t  the Gupta  

res idence but  tha t  would be l imi ted to  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  you have been…[ intervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You know Mr  Seleka,  Mr  S ingh i f  

necessary can do a supplementary a f f idav i t  to  say which 

one of  these people  he knows which ones he doesn’ t  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So maybe you can devote your  
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quest ion ing to  more substant ive th ings.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  oh,  sor ry  but  can I  fo l low 

up on th is  quest ion Chai r,  which I  just  had? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  S ingh you sa id  you might  or  may 

have met  h im a t  the Gupta res idence? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  that  in  Saxonwold? 10 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have been there? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A couple  o f  t imes? 

MR SINGH:    As I ’ve tes t i f ied to  the Commiss ion a l ready.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m sorry  I  d idn ’ t  hear  the answer.  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id ,  as  I ’ve  test i f ied to  the Commiss ion 

a l ready,  Mr  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  he asked a few t imes or  a  number  20 

of  t imes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A couple  o f  t imes.    

CHAIRPERSON:    A coup le  of  t imes.  

MR SINGH:    Now you ask me to  remember  my response 

that  I  gave three or  four  weeks ago.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no he ’s  not  ask ing about  the 

response you gave,  he says,  you sa id  you may have met  

h im at  the Gupta res idence.   So then he asked,  oh you ’ve 

been there,  I  th ink  you sa id  yes and then he sa id  a  couple  

of  t imes and what ’s  your  answer  to  that?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  i f  you ’ re  def in ing a couple as  two,  then 

no,  Mr  Chai r,  i t  was def in i te ly  more than that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was more than that?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  and what  es t imate  would you 10 

g ive?  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  when we . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Over  the whole  per iod? 

MR SINGH:   I  th ink when we t raversed th is  the last  t ime,  I  

th ink we spoke about  …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    S ix  or  e ight  or  ten ,  no I  th ink  you sa id ,  

not  more than ten.  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  i t  was between 10 and 12.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  now I  remember  ja .   No,  no I ’d  

fo rgot ten that  you d id  actua l ly  ta lk  about  how many t imes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  I  wasn ’ t  –  was I  here? 

CHAIRPERSON:    [Laughter ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  wasn ’ t  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  was i t  on  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    I t  was on Transnet .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes,  i t  was on Transnet  ja ,  so  I ’m 

sorry  Mr  Se leka we’ re  ta lk ing about  Transnet  and you were 

not  invo lved in  Transnet .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  in  a l l  fa i rness Mr Chai r,  you a lso  ta lked 

to  me about  Eskom and Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  no,  no that ’s  t rue okay a l r ight ,  so he 

sa id  under  the Transnet  work  s t ream he had been to  the  

Gupta res idence,  e i ther  he sa id  not  more than 10 t imes or  

maybe around ten t imes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  i t ’s  f ine,  I  won ’ t  read the res t  o f  10 

the names Mr  S ingh,  i f  we need to  do a supp lementary  

a f f idav i t  we can do so but  I ’ l l  be in  touch wi th  your  legal  

team.   Then your  a ff idav i t  i s  on page 482 at  the bot tom of  

the page paragraph 66.  

MR SINGH:    What  page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    482.  

CHAIRPERSON:    482? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The last  paragraph? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The bot tom of  the page,  paragraph 66.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So the -  i t ’s  an answer  to  paragraph 

113.8,  re turn t r ip  to  Dubai  15 December  2015 to  24 

December  2015,  Mr  S ingh says,  

“ I  conf i rm that  I  t rave l led re turn  to  Dubai  on the 
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dates se t  out  above” ,  

Mr  S ingh aga in  i t  w i l l  be for  pr ivate purpose? 

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then the next  page is ,  

“ I  have no knowledge whether  the ind iv iduals  l i s ted 

in  th is  paragraph were in  Dubai  dur ing the per iod 

ment ioned s ince I  have not  been prov ided wi th  any 

proof  thereof ” .  

Should we read in to  that ,  Mr  S ingh,  that  you d idn ’ t  meet  

w i th  them in  Dubai?  10 

MR SINGH:    No s i r,  I  conf i rm that  I  d id  not  meet  w i th  the 

ind iv iduals  in   Dubai .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sorry  I  can ’ t  hear?   

MR SINGH:    I  d id  not  meet  w i th  any of  these ind iv iduals .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So even in  those occas ions when Mr  

Sal im Essa is  sa id  to  have been in  Dubai  the same t ime,  

shou ld we read your  answer  to  that ,  where you say that  

you have no knowledge that  they were present  there,  to  

mean that  you d id  not  meet  w i th  them? 

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson I  th ink we’ve reached the 

end of  i t ,  paragraph – that  was 22.7.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  you were s t i l l  on 22.6.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja we’ re  get t ing to  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You s t i l l  have 22.7.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   That ’s  cor rect ,  that ’s  Ms Sule iman’s  

a f f idav i t  Mr  S ingh sor ry  to  have to  jump between the two 

f i les .  Page 1565.6 paragraph 22.7  reads,  

“A book ing was requested for  Mr  S ingh to  f l y  f rom 

Johannesburg to  Dubai  on 50524 February 2017 

and back on 27 February  2017,  I  cannot  reca l l  who 

made th is  request .   Mr  S ingh was issued wi th  t i cket  

number  9150537622CSS24.   We fur ther  a lso booked 

a t i cket  fo r  Mr  Rajesh Kumar Gupta (Mr  R Gupta)  

fo r  th is  f l ight ,  together  w i th  v isas for  Mr  Varun 10 

Gupta and Mr  [ ind is t inc t ]  S inga la ,  the  invo ice  is  

addressed to  Mr  R Gupta and was charged to  

account  number  C000349 which was the account  

be long ing to  Sahara Computers ,  a  Gupta  owned 

ent i ty.   The to ta l  amount  invo iced was R134 560.00 

CSS25.   To the best  o f  my reco l lec t ion  I  rece ived a 

ca l l  f rom Ashu Twala  who was our  contact  person at  

Sahara Computers who in formed me that  a  dr iver  

wou ld be dropping o ff  the money in  cash.   Th is ,  in  

deed took p lace see ing as the dr iver  dropped of  20 

R170 000 in  cash shor t ly  thereaf ter,  the  d i f ference 

would have been for  set t lement  o f  outs tanding fees 

on the i r  account  CSS26.   Th is  cash was again g iven 

to  a  f r iend,  who in  tu rn  made an EFT payment  to  

Trave l  Exce l lence FNB account  CSS27” .  
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I  w i l l  –  fo r  completeness I  wi l l  read,   

“ In  the past ,  we have f requent ly  ass is ted the 

Guptas wi th  book ing f l ights  fo r  themselves or  fo r  

o ther  par t ies on the request  o f  e i ther  the Guptas or  

Mr  Essa,  then 22.9,  i t  i s  common for  our  c l ients  to  

pay cash for  the i r  book ings,  both  Mr Essa and Mr  

S ingh f requent ly  sent  the i r  dr ivers to  de l iver  cash 

for  the i r  book ings” ,  

Mr  S ingh do you – that  22.7,  do you conf i rm the t r ip  f rom 

Johannesburg to  Dubai  on 24 February 2017 to  27 10 

February  2017? 

MR SINGH:    I  do s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You do,  a t  your  request  aga in? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi th  Trave l  Exce l lence? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And for  pr iva te purpose? 

MR SINGH:    That ’s  cor rect .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Your  –  the payment ,  they say i t  was 

made by Sahara Computers,  d id  you make the payment  20 

yourse l f?  

MR SINGH:    I  d id  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id? 

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you know of  Sahara Computers 
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making th is  payment  as  a l leged? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you know whether  –  were you 

aware that  Mr  Ra jesh Gupta,  together  w i th  Mr  Varun Gupta 

and Mr S inga la were a lso booked on the same f l ight?  

MR SINGH:    I  don ’ t  th ink  she ’s  say ing that  they were 

booked on the same f l ight ,  I  th ink she ’s  jus t  say ing that  

v isas were ar ranged.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She says for  th is  one,  

“We fur ther  a lso  booked a t icket  fo r  Mr  Ra jesh 10 

Kumar Gupta for  th is  f l ight ,  together  w i th  v isas  for  

Mr  Varun Gupta and Mr S inga la” ,  

Ja,  we l l ,  maybe we shou ld then just  conf ine ourse lves to  

Mr  Rajesh Gupta.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  was not  –  I  do not  reca l l  Mr  Gupta  

be ing on the f l igh t ,  I  don’ t  reca l l  see ing h im.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    On that  f l ight?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you reca l l ,  how much you pa id? 

MR SINGH:    Ah Mr Chai r,  th is  is  go ing to  be an in terest ing  20 

one.   Let ’s  go to  the document…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  I  don’ t  th ink she says you pa id  

because she says Sahara Computers made the payment  

and that  was a cash payment  dropped of f  by a  dr iver  but  

she seems to  suggest  that  the  payment  fo r  yourse l f  and Mr 
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Ra jesh Gupta for  the f l ights  and then on the other  hand for  

the v isas for  the two o ther  gent lemen was a co l lect ive  

payment  made by Sahara Computers.  

MR SINGH:    I  th ink  that ’s  what  she ’s…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Chai r,  i f  we go to  the documents  a t  

1565.37 which is  Annexure SS25.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Just  repeat  that  Mr  S ingh p lease? 

MR SINGH:    1565.37.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1565.37? 10 

MR SINGH:    That  is  cor rect .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SINGH:    And we wi l l  a lso re ference 1565.36.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja,  okay I ’m there .   What  po in ts  d id  you 

wish to  make about?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  I  th ink,  f i rs t ly  we – so Mr  Chai r,  I  

have no reco l lect ion  of  th is  ar rangement  in  te rms of  Sahara 

pay ing for  my t r ip ,  there  was no such ar rangement  that  I  

reca l l .   So,  as  I ’ve  s ta ted I  pa id  fo r  my t r ip ,  so  i f  you look 

at  the 15 – the …[ ind is t inct ]  invo ice which is  a t  1565.37 i t  20 

is  made out  to  Rajesh Kumar Gupta and i t  re f lects  me as a  

passenger  wh ich cor re la tes  to  the tax  invo ice which  is  

bas ica l ly  f rom Serend ip i ty  on 1565.37.   Now,  what  is  

in terest ing is  that  th is  invo ice re la tes to  the Serend ip i ty  

invo ice  we should  have the same conf igurat ion of  the 
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Serend ip i ty  invo ice as i t  was the case wi th  my par tner  

when we t rave l led and the conf igura t ion was that  her  name 

was on the top my name was on the bot tom so i t  was one 

book ing wi th  one t icket ,  I  mean,  two t ickets  but  one 

book ing.   Now you f ind  that  in  th is  case,  Mr  Gupta is  not  

re f lec ted on th is…[ ind is t inct  –  dropping vo ice ]  wh ich I  can 

on ly  assume that  he then made h is  own ar rangement  and 

there ’s  another  invo ice which is  obv ious ly  not  prov ided by,  

e i ther  Serend ip i ty  or  Trave l  Exce l lence,  so that ’s  the f i rs t  

po in t .   Then i f  you look at  the SS26 which is  on 1565.38.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Chai r,  on  Ms Osmond’s  –  on Ms 

Sule iman’s  vers ion he agrees that  i t  i s  Sahara that  pa id ,  he 

rece ived  the cash f rom …. [ ind is t inc t  –  dropped vo ice ]  yet  

the  rece ip t  i s  made out  to  Mr  S ingh,  so  I  don’ t  unders tand.  

I f  anyth ing,  Mr  Chai r,  that  shou ld have been made out  to  

Sahara Computers or  in  the name of  Mr  Ra jesh Kumar 

Gupta.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  there  is  a  corre la t ion  

again,  Chai rperson,  in  Transnet .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bundle  5(B)  page 428,  Mr  S ingh,  

paragraph 1.13.9.  

MR SINGH:    Sorry? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    428.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    What ’s  the paragraph? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    1 .13.9,  the second las t  paragraph,  

re turn  t r ip  to  Dubai  between 24 February 2017 and 27 

February  2017,  that ’s  one and then the second par t  o f  i t  

you shared both f l ights  to  and f rom Dubai  w i th  Mr  Ra jesh 

Kumar Gupta on f l ight  EK762 and EK761,  you have sa id  

you were not  aware of  h im? 

MR SINGH:    No s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Your  response to  th is  is  on page 483 o f  

the same Transnet  Bund le 5 (B) .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    483? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    483 paragraph 68,  69 and 70,  i t ’s  an 

answer  to  paragraph1.13.9 re turn t r ip  to  Dubai ,  24  

February  2017 to  27 February 2017,  paragraph 68 reads,  

“The content  o f  th is  paragraph is  denied.   I  

spec i f i ca l ly  deny the a l legat ion  that  I  t rave l led  

re turn to  Dubai  between 24 February 2017 to  27 

February  2017” ,  

 Now – okay Mr S ingh I ’m not  apprec ia t ing,  ye t ,  your  

denia l  so  you wi l l  he lp  me understand 20 

because…[ intervenes] .  

MR SINGH:    In  te rms of  the content  o f  the…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No le t  h im f in ish,  Mr  S ingh 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because the a l legat ion in  Ms Sule iman 

af f idav i t ,  paragraph 22.7 I  thought  is  to  the same effect  o f  
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your  –  i t ’s  not?  

MR SINGH:    Not  techn ica l ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  you can exp la in  the d i f fe rence 

because you admi t  Ms Sule iman’s  a l legat ion…[ in tervenes] .  

MR SINGH:    So,  i f  you look Mr  Chai r  a t  428,  I ’m on the 

r ight  page r ight ,  428? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    428 yes,  1 .13.9.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  i f  you look a t  428,  Mr  Chai r,  1 .13.9 i t  

says,  accord ing to  the 10(6)  not ice,  re turn t r ip  to  Dubai  

between those dates,  24 and 27.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    So,  Mr  Chai r,  in  actua l  fac t  the –  again  as  in  

the case of  Hong Kong,  I  was t rans i t ing through Dubai ,  so  

the actua l  f l ight  dest ina t ion was actua l ly  South Af r ica ,  

Dubai ,  Del i .   So the 10(6)  the f i rs t  re turn t r ip  to  Dubai  was 

not  a  re turn  t r ip  i t  was a re turn t r ip  to  De l i ,  so that ’s  what  

we…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you compare th is  w i th  Ms 

Sule iman’s  paragraph 22.7 because I  know you accept  that  

one,  you admi t  that  one but  I  jus t  need to  unders tand what  20 

is  d i f fe rent  –  what  is  the  d i f fe rence between the two 

because she a lso says  a book ing was requested for  Mr  

S ingh to  f l y  f rom Johannesburg to  Dubai  on 24 February  

2017 and back on 27 February  2017.   I  cannot  reca l l  who 

made th is  request ,  Mr  S ingh was issued wi th  a  t i cket .   So,  
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that  par t  you have sa id  that  i t  i s  cor rec t  and I  thought  i t  i s  

the same as …[ in tervenes] .  

MR SINGH:    Okay maybe I  should have then sa id ,  i t ’s  not  

techn ica l ly  cor rect  because the Serend ip i ty  does re fer  to  a  

date i f  I  can get  to  i t ,  I  th ink  i t ’s  1565 …[ ind is t inc t  –  

dropp ing vo ice] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You want  the  t icket ,  SS24? 

MR SINGH:   SS24.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  on page 1564.36.  

MR SINGH:    Yes,  and you ’ l l  see there ,  Mr  Chai r,  i t  10 

bas ica l ly  says Joburg,  Dubai ,  De l i ,  Dubai ,  Joburg,  so  

maybe I  should  have a lso,  when you led 

paragraph…[ ind is t inct  –  dropped vo ice ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So are  you say ing the omiss ion of  De l i  

i s  what  you’ re  t ry ing to  correc t?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  le t ’s  unders tand,  when you led 22.7 you 

asked me i f  I  agree that  the t ickets  were issued.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No that  was a t r ip  on those dates 24 to  

27 February  f rom Johannesburg to  Dubai  and back f rom 

Dubai  to  Johannesburg.  20 

MR SINGH:    Okay,  so maybe I  should have sa id ,  

techn ica l ly,  i t  was actua l ly  to  –  inc ludes Del i  as  we l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  so i t ’s  cor rec t  –  what  is  i t ,  i t ’s  

cor rec t ,  save that  you need to  add Del i  to  i t?  

MR SINGH:    [ Inaudib le  27.08] .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay but  is  i t  the  same as the 10.6  

d i rect ive? 

MR SINGH:    The reason why we deny the 10.6 d i rec t ive  

was because we thought  they were spec i f i ca l ly  re fer r ing to  

f l ights  that  on ly  happened between –  i t  says re turn t r ip  

f rom Dubai  to  –  I  mean between these wi th  a  re turn t r ip  so  

we actua l ly  sa id ,  no i t ’s  not  a  re turn t r ip  f rom Dubai  on ly,  i t  

a lso  inc luded a leg to  De l i  and we make the po in t  that  we 

actua l ly  d idn ’ t  spend any t ime in  Dubai ,  i t  was in  t rans i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which,  I  suppose insofar  as the  10 

qual i f i ca t ion is  made in  regard to  Ms Sule iman’s  a f f idav i t  

add Del i ,  accept  the  res t  but  you need to  add Del i ,  I  th ink ,  

noth ing fur ther  tu rns on that .  

MR SINGH:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  i t ’s  just  the issue of  payment ,  o f  

course which is  the one l inger ing issue.  

MR SINGH:    [ Inaudib le  28.16] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  the sense that  she says there  was a  

g loba l  payment  o f  R170 000 f rom Sahara Computers,  you 

say you pa id  for  yourse l f .  20 

MR SINGH:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And  then whether  you were wi th  Mr  

Rajesh Gupta on the f l ight ,  you say – what  do you say,  

you ’ re  not  aware of  tha t  or  you deny that?  

MR SINGH:    I  d id  not  see h im on the f l igh t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  you d idn ’ t  see h im.   Chai rperson 

that  is  on the t rave l .   Can you reca l l  how d id  you pay for  

th is  f l igh t ,  Mr  S ingh,  fo r  th is  t r ip?  

MR SINGH:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chai r,  i f  you look at  the amount ,  i t ’s  

around R60 000,  I  assume i t  was in  and around that  

amount .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Raise your  vo ice p lease? 

MR SINGH:     I ’m sor ry  Mr  Chai r,  I ’m say ing i f  we have 

re ference to  the Serend ip i ty  invo ice i t  was around R60 000 

so I  assume i t  w i l l  be in  that  reg ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  but  how d id  you pay,  can you 

reca l l ,  o r  you wouldn ’ t ,  d r iver  drop o ff  cash,  EFT? 

MR SINGH:    I ’d  be specula t ing that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  now,  Mr  S ingh,  look ing at  th is  

ev idence or  a ff idav i t  o f  Ms Su le iman that  i t  was Mr  Sal im 

Essa who in t roduced you to  them,  you say you can ’ t  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No I  think he did not say i t .  

MR SINGH:   I  denied i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   He did not say he did not recal l ,  i t  he 20 

denied i t .  

MR SINGH:   Denied.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh you denied i t? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  Oh then that wi l l  make me ask you 
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a di fferent quest ion.  Chair  I  see the t ime, 5:44.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes wel l  let  me ask this quest ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you noted Mr Singh that in her 

aff idavi t  about these bookings Ms Suleiman at  one t ime says 

she one t ime says you made the request for the booking.  

Other – on other t imes she says she cannot recal l  who made 

the requests.  You note that? 

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   And sometimes she says you made 10 

payment by way of  arranging for a dr iver to drop off  cash.  

You have noted that? 

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   And sometimes she says Mr Essa made 

payment to sett le your account.  Maybe just  once I  do not 

know whether i t  is more than once but sometimes she says 

so.  Do you recal l  that? 

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   And – and she says I  th ink al l  the t ime 

these bookings they l inked them – them to Mr Sal im Essa’s 20 

account for the reason that she gave that they regarded him 

as the “Guarantor” in quotes.  Now you are not suggest ing 

are you that where she says Mr Sal im Essa made the 

payments in regard to your account your bookings or t r ips 

that she is del iberately and falsely gett ing Mr Essa to be 
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involved in regard to your t r ips but you are saying she may 

be mistaken or are you saying no she is just  fabr icat ing?  Or 

you saying no I  am not saying she is fabr icat ing I  th ink she 

is genuinely mistaken? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Chair  in terms of  the overal l  concluding. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Remarks that I  wanted to start  wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes, yes. 

MR SINGH:   You would see that the discrepancies that  I  

have highl ighted.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   Throughout al l  of  th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Indicate that maybe Travel Excel lence’s 

account ing records their  books of  account  and the l ike is not  

exact ly one hundred percent.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.  

MR SINGH:   Which may lead one to conclude that i t  is  a 

fabr icat ion in terms of  the documents that we have now 

seen.  Because there is one document that I  recal l  now Mr 20 

Chair  that I  would just  l ike to highl ight.   Just  one point .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And then I  wi l l  move on Mr Chair.   Which is 

fair ly a smal l  th ing but i t  is – to me i t  is a bi t  of  – i t  is a 

signi f icant matter.   I f  you – i f  you look at  1565.37.  



13 APRIL 2021 – DAY 373 
 

Page 247 of 249 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   H'm 

MR SINGH:   Which is the – the invoice that relates to Mr 

Rajesh Kumar Gupta which is the last  invoice for 

R134 560.00 you wi l l  not ice Mr Chair  in the centre of  the 

invoice at  the bottom there is a date of  28 November 2018 

which is the day before the commissioning of  this aff idavi t .   

So again Mr Chair  I  am as you said before we do not know 

the relevance of  this date but i t  begs the quest ion when was 

this invoice generated?  And on what basis and how?  So on 

one hand Mr Chair  I  am – i f  I  had to give the benef i t  of  the 10 

doubt to Ms Suleiman I  would say this is just  very bad 

account ing and record keeping and admin and i f  that is the 

case then Mr Chair  i f  you look at  the – the theme i t  may be 

that she – because on her version she al located me to Mr 

Essa’s account then the receipts that she got she issued 

receipts with reference to Mr Essa.  So that could be one 

version or explanat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And then on the extreme side you could then 

say given this evasiveness of  this i r regular discrepancies i t  20 

could be that – that i t  is a fabr icat ion because as I  said 

before Mr Chair  i t  is – i t  is convenient for a bank statement 

to ref lect  a R170 000.00 then to – for you to say I  received 

R170 000.00 in cash and then you have an invoice that has 

signi f icant discrepancies that add up to R170 000.00. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:   And your source documents do not t ie them – 

t ie up to them. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR SINGH:    So that is the summary I  would make Mr Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that is f ine.   We need to stop 

because our counsel needs to go and we did agree that in 

order to stop but  I  just  want to say that i t  wi l l  be a – or let  

me put i t  th is way.  To the extent that you made payments to 

Travel Excel lence you would have made those payments i f  i t  10 

was EFT or other than cash you would have made those 

payments to whatever account number they would have 

given you, is that  r ight? 

MR SINGH:   I  would think so yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Yes.  And i f  i t  was cash you would 

have given them cash and they would have deposited 

themselves. 

MR SINGH:   Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON:   To whatever account.   Okay.  So I  th ink 

that the legal team and invest igat ion team need to make 20 

arrangements for Travel  Agents – Travel Excel lence bank 

accounts to check whether there were payments f rom Mr 

Singh in regard to any of  these so that i f  there is proof that 

payments were made we can know payments were made 

from his account.   Obviously those that 00:08:14 of  cash that 
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is d i fferent.   But we must establ ish which ones i f  any ref lect  

payments that were made through EFT or what okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Alr ight .   I  th ink we must stop here.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then maybe on the day when Mr Singh  

comes back to the extent that there is something to wrap up. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On th is we wi l l  wrap up and then move on. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chair.   Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Thank you very much to everybody 

we are going to adjourn for the day.  For the benef i t  of  the 

publ ic tomorrow I  am hearing the evidence of  Mr Gwede 

Mantashe test i fy ing on behalf  of  the ANC in regard to 

Parl iamentary Oversight and the issue of  deployment and 

other matters.   But basical ly i t  wi l l  be about Par l iamentary 

Oversight and deployment because the President wi l l  

towards the end of  the month test i fy in relat ion to the ANC.  20 

We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 14 APRIL 2021  


